4’ \"::. N

(A

Based on National Curnpulum of Paklsmn 2D22 23

Model Téxtbook of

\JM N

English
Grade

National Curriculum Council
Ministry of Federal Education and Professional Training

Natlonal Book Foundatmh
~saga U\
Federal TeMbook Board
" Islamabad

N o

\Ir\ H\“\j'



whmm mmumml

nmwmmtmummm

,.ﬁmmﬂ.mmdu‘hmmmnm , stored In a retrieval system, or
V. —glectronic, mechanical, phatocopying, recording, or otherwise—without the prior &
. Unauthorized use, duplication, or distribution is strictly prohibited and may result In legal

A Model Textbook of English for Grade 11 .
based on Pakistan Natlonal Curriculum (NCP) 2022-23

Authors
Ruhl Zaka (Managing Author)
Amber Kashif, Sadia Malik, Iffat Nazeer, Shazla Shakeel (Co-Authors)

Contributors/Collaborators
inam Ullah Jan, Shahazad Ahmad, Zulfigar Ahmed {Designers)

Supervision of Curriculum and Review Process
Dr. Mariam Chughtal
Director, National Curriculum Council (NCC)
Ministry of Pederal Education and Professional Training, Govemment of Pakistan, Islamabad

internal Review Committee Members
Robina Shaheen, Fazaia Teacher Tralning Institute lslamabad, Mosheen Zafar, Fazala Teacher Training Institute
Mamoona Ikhiaq, Naval Education Headquarter Islamabad, Ayesha Khalid, umlsduauq(nﬁmu-mftshmm }

Khalll Ur Rehiman, Federal Government Educational Institutions (FGEI) nanm;- Chakisls / Cantt
Arta Batool, Federal Govemment Educational InsBiutlons (FG81) /) Regonl Office Chakiala / Cantt
mmmmmtcamm ( Muhammad YousafKhan, Fazla Schools And Collages
t@wwn@m irec " g{ﬁaﬁ:hn, Saima Hafeez

NI _WHmb Curriculm & Textbook Board
,\@WM Noonarl, Government of Sindh, School Education & Literacy Deparment
Mr. Fareed Ahmed, School Edu Department, Bolochistan
MLMPMMW Edu Department Bolochistan, Dr. Lubna Shaheen, School Edu Department Bolochistan
Inamullah Khan, Drectorate Of Curriculum And Teacher Education Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Abbottabad,
Inamullah Hag Hashml,Azad Government Of Jammu & Kashmir Directorate Of Curriculum Research & Development
Ms. Arfa Batool, Federal Government Educational Institutions (FGE)) {C/G) Reglonal Office Chaklala / Cantt
Abdul Wahab, Khalil Ur Rehman, Federal Government Educational Institutions (FGEI) (C/G) Regional Office Chaklala / Cantt

Desk Officer
Shazla Abbasl, National Curriculum Council (NCC)

('\\ J
\
\J

NBF Txtbooks Development Supervision
Murad All Mohmand

Managing Director, National Book Foundation (NBF)

In-Chage, NBF Textbooks Development
Mansoor Ahmad, Assistant Director

Printad In Pakistan
First Edition - First Impression: March 2024 | Pages: 220 | Quantity: 34000°,
mwon MImmuwmummem—m
24 | Page: ln]mm

Price: PKR 380/-, m -mktsm ;mav-lsna-a
E ﬁm‘lqn Puh \& Printers, Peshawar

i o frum 'the hhl;lond Book Foundatlon, please visit our website at www.nbhorg.pk
I unmmm—.uwpmmummmsurmunau-tboounbrmpx
mHm« corections, kindly send your comments to ‘nbftextbooks@gmall.com’ and ‘textbooks @snc.gov.pk’

Nota
All lllustrations, artwork, and images In this book are Intended solely for educational

and promational purposes, benefiting the public interest,

‘nalich-11 Fadaral ISR Sind SidaR Prarnce Risark GA/ORZTZRNPEOR TR 27



ModelText Book ufGra;\ng:_;ﬁiQ.ﬁ;lﬁtféﬁuéﬁéﬁ tothe structure and purposes.

This textbook is deﬁlﬁpéﬂ"i\ﬁaccnrdance with National Curriculum of Pakistan IX-XIl (NCP) 2022-23. This text
book is aimed to provide students of elementary grades with a wide range of activities to help them achieve
students learning objectives of their appropriate age/grade. The book provides the students with a range of
fiction and non-fiction texts which are acquired from both authentic sources as well as exclusively produced for
this age group of Pakistan students. The selection/development of contents of books has been pu rposely carried
outinthe contextof multilingual communities where Englishistreated as second or third language.

This unique arrangement of textual materials provide a platform where students can improve their reading,
writing, speaking and listening skills. Themes of the selected texts are selected in accordance with list of themes
providedin SNCacross the wide range of genre indicated in NCP. The ethical concepts embedded in the texts will
engage students to think and relate with real concerns of their lives and reflect upon their own personality
developmenttowardsabecoming aresponsible citizen. This bookis designed to provide awide range of readings
with avariety of local, national and international contexts which will enable students to learn more about their

identity and connection to the world. The variety of activities will help them to think criticall and-make these
connections. N ~ON LY

This bookiis structured in a way to provide in-depth knowledg Eaﬂdﬂﬂbégw\-‘a\}{ o\

(o2l ™
différenttypesigenres of literary
texts. Units are grouped togetherin a section with‘vﬁpelﬂ%ﬂqfhaﬂje like narratives, poetry or drama, Each section
has set of activities towards the en@tueﬂgage\theigh{dqu)/m Fig/h order thinking skills, critical evaluation,
differentiate and extended activitiesis given tq setallin the backdrop of contextual needs. Each unit begins witha
pre-reading activity and amﬁlg;héﬂiﬁg'écﬁvities to keep students engaged in the reading and help themin
comprehension of thg\\{é s Each unit has a range of questions based on different stages of understanding and
comprehension and students will have to answer questions based on reading for detail to reading for

inferences and ideas. Use of dictionary and pronunciation is taught through direct and indirect usages of
dictionary sources.

There is strong focus of writing activities and for that, a wide range writing assignments are introduced which
required outcomes both asindependent writers as well as in pairs/group work. The variety of writing assignments
has been designed to reveal students with different types of texts like informational texts, expository text and
imaginative work of writing. Activities like role-plays, debates, one-minute speech, drama and poetry recitals
are introduced to provide students with opportunities of listening and speaking English. These activities are
designed with special focus on listening and speaking for different audiences and different situations, The
purpose of these activities is to provide backdrop to develop effective communication skills in English. The
difficulty level of all activities is varied to cater for learning needs of students from multilingual backgrounds and
multiple local/national context.

The targets of all planned activities can be achieved fully with an active support of teacher, Evidently all such
activities shall require diligent effort of teacher to guide the students in appropriate mann@r as well asto provide
them with continuous support. Activities requiring sear{;t,\ingj,ﬁ;gu;aﬁp“mﬁi:fnaI'-.\m}bg"rﬁéﬁéﬁ‘ihi‘augh library andfor
online sources shall also need special assistance from teacher, This active'support from the teacher shall help

students to fully benefit from this @fﬁﬂwﬂéﬁign{id@ﬂbﬁéklﬁf English to acquire better English language

Dr. Raja Mazhar Hameed
Managing Director



Contents

Units 2|

\rhame

S. No Sub-Theme
B Communication& | .
1 FameyJ Values In Pakistan Collaboration - . D aking
2 Shooting Stars Innovation & » Creativity in 5clence
Hal Borland (Non-Fiction) Creativity
The Wind (Poem) ' -
4 Robert Louis Steyenson Nature
4 Butterflies (Short story) Soft Skills * Narrative
Roger Dean Kiser
SDG-Millennium .
5 | Clean water and Sanitation Development Goals i “
The Darkling Thrush (Poem) | . A
6 | Thomas Hardy Literature &Poetry— ; itiie
Wcrld Heritage Sites in | = 4 VALY A T : G Application
| Social Media:. ;|\ \\\\L -
.8 A Bl%ﬁiﬂg]@f% turse? D’ig’itﬂl Mndin P:re & Economy
9 Sunshine After Rain (Poem) Drug Education * DNy Enifestion
Erenda Winders * Refusal Skills
The Small Woman: Soft Skills * Teamwork
10| Alan Burgess (a biography) SDGs . P enaKing
) & Human Relationships
11 | The T“"‘"‘" Questions Literature and Fiction]| & Fhilosophical fiction
Leo To sty fictional framework
Break Break Break (Poem) , e Expression of human loss )
12 Lord Alfred Tennyson Lyric Poetry l‘ﬁﬂ“ mﬁw&f&jﬁ fe?e
Blow, Blow, Thou (Paem) Lvri . Hmhness of life compared
’ ’ ric Poet with the bittermess of the West Wind
13 William Shakespeare y Y . Reﬂecuvg, @mchuhc poetry
14 | Choice of a Profession Eggsepreneu@ip 7o | ¢ esentverk s
The Ninny e g oy LAl
15 Anton Chekhov A SOﬂ Sk'“s | » Decisign 7
el of socletal t 1
16 Fourter'en QD“E Att Play) Literature and Drama Héﬁmﬂfﬁ"%ﬁm Sy
Alice Gerstenberg T e e
# Hope and Determination
47 | The Last Leaf (Short Story) Literature and Fiction | * Wﬁﬂz i
0. Henry of hoge I te face of adversly
" - between
The Necklace (Short story) | 2 s s . voger ¢
18 | Guy de Maupassant Literature and Fiction | s fae andc C:r;fmmwuwm
consequences of pride and deception

|English-11 Federal ISB Sia1 SideA Process Blank G4/Pa2002008:0525:22



Reading and

Creative

'*

critical thinkinvg. & q(;mmunjcation and ( Grammar | writing Page#

g‘?mﬂl" o Q *I'E'\J '” L'-m Sentence and ‘ebcabubaly mmm? wrﬁ"r%;) para;rapn with mn?ﬂ:&lvg h{jgs .

Analytical Thinking Supporting details of Pakistani families and lo wrile a 6

| | sanbanoas Prrasal W‘t’s few santences on the topic
%533 1 Inforration sboul NASA skllls k?lrml ga’ng Narrative writing using 15
prehension Queston (Presentaton's preparation) | Fisesraoungy™> o™ | transtonal devices

Gbnssgry. Comprehension Intonation pattem, Reciti T I Poem's summary

Questons. Fiuresof Speech | pems,Aentve s and | Coonct o mupﬁon ERTEEES (0 poam 25

Glossary, Comprehension Questions | Information collection i, .

Summarizing Fiction and Non-Fiction Sw‘ﬁﬁfmf"“mhpaml mﬁ?ﬁm Descriptive essay writing 40

Elements of story discussion Idioms and proverbs Proof reading Ipdmiquas

Glassary, Comprehension Questions . Verbs, Kinds of verbs Précis Writ

Pattems of organization on a Extended digcussion Gonmlahonaand Denotation| Wi m'é"{anm 55

| paragraph 7 Phrasal verbs | Email Writing, (Format )

Glossary, Comprehension Questions , oms and Proverbs_| POIiS 1o Undersan & peer |

inonaton Pate, Eleeats of Poaty] 1ve LiSening Skils WEH ﬁl"a':[mﬂ R e D 70

Glossary ) Geographica Iniormahm ions énd mmms Feomaie fex:ﬂanamry lexts fo

Comprehension Questions sysﬁ&, M‘lﬁunﬁh S of pronoun) mrp»; m m :J;nmphx ideas, 81

; A Clauses (Types of clauses) | Ymieand [

Glossary N ﬂfb"l’dbm complex eiting and prool reading
AN Adjectives (Types of clauses) 91

Cwmﬂwam&b)hp(u\ | Presentation - Puncluation, Phrasal verbs ‘;:m o hmul ;

Glossary _ Adverbs (Types of adverbs) | Summarizing the poem ‘

Comprehension Quesons Group discussion Pronoun Antecedent Writing an essay with the help 102

Collective nouns, Punctuationy of mind map

' Calaphonic reference .

Comprehension Questions mﬁm Prepositons ote 114

Glossary , Modal Verbs, Conjunctions

Comprohension Cuestions Group discussion ﬂwdmp&ﬂm h%mmmmm 125

Glossary ' Intafjecton

Comprehension Questions 141

Glossary

Comprehension Questions 151

Glossary

Comprahension Questions * 158

Questions )

Choosethebestanswer | \[] | |1\~ i 172

Gomy N UV [ o Viows b e oy 1 own Serences

Comprehension Questions Causes ofconfict 180

oot Mot
Comptehension Questions Summary ofhe ey 195
Glossary | Pa Represeatonof o | - S50e AR Fm b Literary Devices and their identification 206




After completing this lesson, students will be able to:

respond to texts for different purposes (including arguments and discussions) ¥
respond to questions on a range of communicative skills

engage in extended discussions and take into account other speaker’s viewpoints and presenting
one’s own with clarity

use pre-reading and while reading strategies to analyze and explore dlfferent layers of
meaning within text -

identify sentence patterns and structure for grade spe¢t }genres

give an informal personal and analyﬂcal respOnse to al 'text and provide some supporting
textual reference \ NS

read to nalyze descnptwef argumentative persuasive essays

"'T-Iﬂt?ﬂstmct sentences using the sentence patterns and structures learnt in earlier classes
" identify and use phrasal verbs in sentences

demonstrate understanding of figurative language, word relationships

write informative/explanatory texts to examine and convey complete ideas, concepts and
clearly

use precise words and phrases, telling details, and sensory language to to convey a vivid
_picture of the experiences, events, settings and/or chara-:ters

'rL‘

N ll-‘ it

P ../

""."-!



mm____ O\ 0\ | (O, PAMILY VALUES IN PAKISTAN

Pre-Reading LS
+ What is the con ept]:pf a_‘;famllw
* Identify sphma *fanﬁ{y values.

In Pakistan, family is a “bond of relationships”, which strengthens the relationships of a
family. Family members love and respect each other without any expectations.

The tenets of Islam further strengthens this bond. The existing
family ties, based on selflessness, are well watered by the injunctions ,
of Islam. According to Islam; “we must look after our parents, Why is family taken as a
especially in their old age, when they are gone perish minded. It can | «pond of relationship™?
be said that universal teachings of our religion are the essential part
of our family values. '

People in Pakistan mostly follow the joint family system and live thmr lives with their
parents. They give much respect to their customs and traditions and-pay dueattentmn to family
values. The value of a strong family system has played ar} impoet,ant\ml‘e in influencing an
individual's way of living, social role, chmcé of prmfes;wn and decision-making. A strong family
unit creates a safe, posmfve ands(pﬂpnrttve\placefor all members to thrive in, They are able to
utilize resources and lwe together‘ln afairly healthy manner.

’Ljrhérﬂﬁér' of a Pakistani family has respect for the elder family members. The
grandparents form a central beacon in a traditional Pakistani family. They are treated with
reverence and hold an authoritative place. They work together with other elder family members
to solve problems and pass their skills and experiences to the next generation. They are good
“role models” and are looked upon as the primary source of guidance. Accordingly, they are
provided with care and support from their family members.

The male members of the family are generally considered to be the guardians of the
family and play a significant role for the well-being of their family. The major decisions, in the
family, are taken by them and their words go unquestioned. Their dream is to support their family
members and work for their social and financial well-being. When all the male members work
together and contribute equally to the family, the financial burden is minimized and the elements
of jealousy and evil also remain under control. The family members are able to prosper and thrive
together. ~ \\

In Joint family units all the family members. live, together
and share joys and sorrows with each) other The) elders, in the
family, set the tone by rea;z%hmg aut tn thmi\fnendsand community
and teach their children the lmpnrtance of doing the same. All the | Who is the guardian of a
female mern}tfeﬁ (ot 'the family handle jointly the household | family?
responmb\htles and support each other in the household chores. As -
children spend most of their time under their custody, the entire grooming of children is also done
by them. Women consider their family as their entire world and jointly fulfill their family needs
and wants.

B e
TR » ?
ol s ks ] e, A 4



At the same tlme the fammhes '1n\PEki‘sftan‘ never fail to lonk at children in the family as
"gifts from Allah(.m-nh-)i All the elder family members are responsible for teaching the children
the basic bﬂi}efs o} lr.e-hgmn Family values, customs and traditions are also transferred to children
by their elders and they are also taught to respect and honour their elders. The children watch
their parents taking care of their grandparents and also make well-
thought-out decisions over the years. This role guides the children to
be supportive and good decision-makers. Among the children of
strong families, the moral and emotional problems are lesser. They
tend to go on to have strong, healthy families of their own, having
learned examples from their elders.

While-reading"

How do children make
well-thought-out
decisions?

Our family values look to us dreamlike and we thank Allah(xi<-), for we are tied into a
cohesive whole of the family system. Sometimes, poverty and other problems happen to
overshadow some of our family units, but, with the role of the state and education of the people,
we can easily avert these dangers. Nevertheless, such bitter phenomena are rarely found

Tersely, in Pakistan, people absorb the traditional and ;uktural fafmlg Values and they
demonstrate respect and regard to their elders Heoples mnin &b}ectwe is “living together,
growing together and surv’udng together “'H re,) iwng phyﬂcal Jand emotional support is quite
usual in a joint family systﬂn Tﬁms leads toﬁ happy, healthy and prospering family which benefits
the society as a q{q It i is\ said that one good family builds a good community, then all good
communmﬁs] bﬂjvg a gnod society and at the end all good societies jointly make a successful
nation.

Post-reading

What is the main objective of Pakistani people while living togeﬂmer?)

4z iy e o e i . -
Bl REET . S = e
i e A O L e sl e s



(1< FAMILY.VALUES IN PAKISTAN

Given below are the difficult words from the unit. Look at their meanings and give
synonyms of each in the given column. The first one is done for you. Also use these words

in your own sentences.

Words Meanings ' Synonyms
thrive to grow or develop well flourish, prosper
beacon alighthouse or other signal for guidance

reverence deep respect

perish minded a person with spoiled mind

utilize to make use of S\ @0
authoritative authentic, accurate | NI
significant :mpertant poWér‘qu 3 \\

thrive ,,develap ﬂQUﬂSh

cohesive.. W \J, N' \ihited, working together

bewltchmg united, connected

avert to turn away, to turn aside

phenomena fact, happening

demonstrate to show clearly

prospering doing well, flourishing

Reading and Critical Thinking

a. Answer these questions
1. Discuss the characteristics of family as a bond of relaumnshlps

2. Explain the way elderly famﬂy members are gwen respect by others in Pakistani
society? )|\ \
3. The joint family SYStem help the chlLdren to grqw‘mth posjtivity. Give reasons.

4. Descril th Way children are brought-up and nursed in the trad1t10nat Pakistani
family?’ 4

5. Describe how the physical and‘emotional support is a strength in a joint family
system.

6. Who can play positive role to keep the family values in Pakistan intact and how?
7. Analyze l:he text carefully and 1dentlfy the theme nf the unit.




b] Choose the correct aptlnn \
i. Family values, cr.\stams and tradltlons'are transferred to children by
a) g)dtehdéci family b)theirelders c) their close friends
ii. The central beacon in a Pakistani traditional family is created by

a)auntsanduncles b) cousins c) grandparents
iii. The tenets of Islam further —————— this bond
a) weakens b) threatens c) strengthens d) finishes
iv. Universal teachings of our religion are the ———-part of our family values
a) negligible b) essential c) moderate d) minimal
v. Our family values look to us:
a) an eye-wash b) unimportant c) dreamlike d) disappointing

Jﬁur:t1‘.»'1t¥\J N I '\

‘SH \are the happiest moment of your life with your grandparents and your class fellows.
+ Acknowledge the role of your grandparents in the life of your parents and also yours.

» Form groups in the class. Exchange views about the concept of happy family life living
with grand parents.

« Give enough time to each group to present the viewpoint.

« After exchanging viewpoints, make a chart of the main key points, highlighted in the
class discussion.

Topic Sentence and Supporting Details
| Topic sentence: | The real beauty of any nation lies within its traditions, values, and

| culture.
l Supporting Details | In Pakistan, a family is not merely a grnupnf peuplewm are together
| just by nature, here-family dis-a\ "bumd gaf rel;a;ﬁemsmps" in which |
people are| jmned to» each uther w\th emotional ties, where every
( lrelatlon makesd:\he other relation complete, where family members
| lcwe and vrespect each other without any expectations and where
i AR U H \‘1 J {\elders are regarded with dignity and horor.

. Read the passage carefully and mark topic sentences and supporting details from
fourth and sixth paragraphs.

. What is the difference between ‘customs’ and ‘traditions?

+ How would you expiain 'neeas’ and 'whims' in context with the text?




e

1<\ FamiLy VALUES IN PAKISTAN

Extensive Readilg T QU

Itisa grﬁ(:l; th.lth Hmt the degree of happiness may vary according to the degree of virtue;
and ﬁohsequently, the life which is most virtuous is most happy. Every degree of virtue has
a proportionate degree of happiness accompanying it. If we expect too much from life, we
cannot be happy. It is only by giving to life what we can best afford, that we can lead a
joyous life. Life is not self-aggrandizement. Aself-seeker and selfish man can never do any
good to others. It is only by realizing that the needs and desires of others are important

and should be addressed. Let us share the sufferings of others if we want to keep away
from sorrow.

Quest of happiness is a noble pursuit and it is worth striving, no matter how far we
succeed. The question arises whether human failure to achieve perfect felicity does not
have an injurious effect on character, it is not so; but on the contrary the difficulties and
sufferings that we undergo in our life, are really blessings in dlsgm;.e, which help in
developing our character. Character, in fact is canqugstof\l;héjawe( se;ﬁbythe upper self
in us. Once the character buﬂdmgls dme,sﬂcﬁess and happlhésf s in easy reach. We must
keep in mind that r@ppin j&}ﬁa conﬁimwt the'mind. It does not depend on something
external. It springs frarrl withip» Contentment is the first condition of happiness. Ahappy
and co ?QMJ Nﬂ& is'a source of immeasurable joy and contentment. In such a
surfqm'{ﬂm one can find love, trust, and mutual respect form those around. Family
members share each other's triumphs and tribulations, creating a supportive environment
where each person feels valued and understood. Communication flows openly, fostering a
sense of unity and understanding. In a happy family, laughter and shared moments of joy
are frequent occurrences, making every day a celebration of togetherness. This kind of
harmonious atmosphere does not only add to the well-being of individual family members
but also strengthens the family's resilience in facing life's challenges.

(The Book of Virtues by William J. Bennett)

Pursue Al ‘,Tradltu\cns o Marely  Social |
| Peruse 1.\_1‘[{‘\.‘1"\}] {"‘\\;‘_,1"“\?..' o | treditions Marily Socail
NN A - ~ |
Beacon Honour Erode Prosper }
Beakon oonor aerode ' Procepar
_ N |




Sentence: A sentence is a set éf words\\at is complete in itself, typically containing a
subject and pre l; |cnnve5nng a statement, question, exclamation, or command, and
cnnmstmmﬂa in clause and sometimes one or more subordinate clauses. (Oxford
Dictionary).

Kinds of sentences:

Declarative Sentences

A declarative sentence is the most basic type of sentence. Its purpose is to relay
information, and it is punctuated with a period. For example

The boy walked home.

| love honey.

Interrogative Sentences

Interrogative sentences interrogate, or ask questions. These are direct questions, and they

are punctuated with a question mark. For example: S, (\‘ ( \f‘v..g
.y (’I/‘\" ‘CAE//‘”J" L
Why does the sun shine? 0 N o \s' TCA
1 R!\' \ ,/f‘\ I'\ \ _B "\'-“II\ \'v \I'--'\) |’ '
Whose dog is that? A v\ \/7\\{ O 3‘\\/,-
\ ~ M\ .\ \

T\&_\"\ ,i\\ \\‘)/\

Willyougoto Lahore? O \ O V-

Exclamatu{y\gwﬁ

Exclamat \sentences are like declarative sentences. They make a statement instead of
asking a question, but their main purpose is to express strong emotion. They have an
exclamation point instead of a period. For example:

| said | wanted tacos instead of pizza!
How well he sings!

Wow, he just won a gold medal!
Imperative Sentences

Imperative sentences do not simply state a fact but rather tell someone to do something.
These can be in the form of friendly advice, basic instructions or more forceful commands.

For example:

Please shut the door to keep out the bugs.
Turn left at the bridge.
Stop bothering me!
Optative Sentences O T\ , .
Optative sentences exwess‘.,a_p_raye!r msh curse etc.For example:
May Allah bess Gslatt) -

May you become successful in life.

Long live Pakistan.

Activity: Make one sentence each according"t'cf the types given above.

NSRS 12 T R




b) Writetwo senteﬁéé;‘ of

fieach type given in information box.

Peclaii ?ﬂ fitences

\\J

Interrogative Sentences _

Exclamatory Sentences

Imperative Sentences

Phrasal Verbs

a] Phrasal verbs: A verb combined with an adverb or a preposition or sametlmes both, to
give a new meaning is called phrasal verb. - \)\“\\
‘ C

Examples: left over, breakout, seeoff \\(\Y\?/(i\ ;6)‘

i) Fillin the blanks Qe;wg&%é{%iﬁ%ﬁéf‘&im&ingsentences.
Please--++---- y\?u% &-&Q\eﬁv in . |
YUNRE

. takeuff
* takeover
ii) The storm forced us to =======+=--- our camping trip.
 calloff
« callout
» callup
ifi} Ineedto ------------ on my math homework before | can go out.
» catchon
= catchup

—~()

« catchout €O\
iv) We needto --------------- witha plan toaddrass tm; issu \
* come up with (‘) N\, v ot

b) Use the fnllowing phrasal verbs in sentences.
ask for

aimat_




back up

believein ___ o[
WV

blow up
c) Punctuate the given lines.

at the same time, the families in pakistan never fail to look at the children in the family as
gifts from allah

d) Give antonyms of the following words.
join _ complete _ respect
strong positive deep__ —_ 5\ (\(\)

b- Write a paragraph abqqt A Paklstam W ;‘;:lding };eremuny g‘lﬁng full information,
observation and preparatlnn 0{ the whole-function.

c- Explaul mﬁ& ppi'agHaHhs hnw are the marriage formalities carried on in a Pakistani family.

Teacher's Point
. Teacher may help the students in giving the concept of extended narrative incident writing.

+ I classroom discussions, a variety of linguistic exponents may be used, such as inquires, persuasion, arguments,
comparisons, evaluations in a wide range of context throughout the oral communication skills practice sessien.

214 L T T e




SHOOTING STARS

Hal Borland (Non-Fiction)

After completing this lesson, students will be able to:

+ use pre-reading and while-reading strategies to analyze and explore different layers of
meaning read and use inference and deduction to recognize implicit meaning

+ read to analyze descriptive /argumentative, persuasive essays

+ extract salient points and develon a mind map to write informational text to understand
about meteors

« respond to questions on a range of communicative purposes search for more relevant
information concerning the unit PN NGO

- consult general reference materials; dic;jona{r:f.“ thesalras forpreclse theaning/information

+ use punctuation marks eorrectly-

+ understand and use ngun andts kinds' WN\e

+ interpret the, us¢ of transitional devices in writing

* write irder}Hati#é texts to convey complex ideas, concepts of the content



"'SHOOTING STARS

Pre-Readmg O\ NN
What do you kﬂn}w §bout a galaxy”
+ How man% pthnets are there in universe?

Most clear, dark nights you can see a shooting star, as we call it, if you keep looking.
Those shooting stars are meteors. They are points of light that suddenly appear in the sky,
like distant stars, race across the darkness, usually towards the horizon, and disappear.

For a long time, nobody knew what a meteor was but finally those who studied
stars and the sky decided that a meteor was a piece of a comet that exploded long ago.
Those pieces are still wandering about the universe in huge, looping paths that follow the
original comet's orbit. There are uncounted pieces of such comets out there in the depths
of space. Periodically clusters of them come close to the earth’s orbit, or path around the
sun. Most meteors are small, probably only a few inches in diameter, ut ‘when they enter
the earth’s atmosphere the friction makes them whl;ﬁ ‘{ 'Cﬁhén fhgwmk ’big as stars
streaking across the darkness. 0 Q r’ﬁ

H\‘\\

There are half @ dozeﬁ mﬁtebr\ showers each year Each is named after the
constellation fro w\nrch it appe‘ars to come. The biggest of all, the Perseids, named for
the consﬁ a\(t}ﬁ' \Perseus, occurs on the 10th, 11th, and 12th of August. The next
largest, the Leonidas, named for the constellation of Leo,
comes on the nights of November 14, 15, and 16. Another, the
Andromedids, which is not quite so big, comes from November
17 to 23. There are other meteor showers in December, January,
April, May, and July, but none of them is as big as those in August
and November.

What are shooting stars?

Most people watching meteors will be satisfied if they see ten or twenty in an hour
of watching. On special occasions, however, the meteors seem to come in droves. The
most remarkable meteor shower 1 ever heard of was seen by a distinguished astronomer,
Professor Denison Olmstead, of New Haven, Connecticut, on the night of November 12,
1833. He was watching the Leonidas, which seem to come: from d1réctly 'overhead and
race downward toward the horizon in ali dlrectmns, He repwted that meteors fell “like
flakes of snow. " He estimated that he saw, 240 \000'metedrs in nine hours that night. He
also revealed that they ranger:l in\size i%rn mere streaks of light to "globes of the moon’s
dlametef ‘A i‘qgt\ hétl hot been a notable astronomer whose accuracy was beyond
quemon, Buéh statements would seem ridiculous. But there is no reason to doubt what he
reported. He had seen one of the most unusual meteor showers ever reported. What he
watched should be called a meteor storm rather than a mere shower.

| once watched the August Perseids with an astronomer on a hilltop in an open

T



\;"‘-, A\
N\ \ \
m . k\_,l — \ \ \\_ g
\\ —0) | W W

\ \J \/

country, and in two hﬁur:;\ we cﬂuntéi almost a thousand
meteors. That w J@ﬁ rrmst Jever saw at one time. After that |
tried watcl(lgﬁg\\fb\' meteors in November and the most, | ever
saw in November was about one hundred meteors in two hours
of watching.

Who is an astronomer? l

The amazing thing about these meteor showers is that they come year after year.
Professor Olmstead saw all those Leonidas in November of 1833, but if you watch for
meteors this year you almost certainly will see them on the same nights that he saw them.
They will come next year, the year after that, and for countless years more. Your
grandfather saw them, and your grandchildren will see them if they look for them.

Occasionally, a meteor reaches the earth. Then it is called a meteorite and it is
valued as a sample of the vast mystery of the deep space in the sky. Scientists examine it,

try to guess what it was to begin with, where it comes fmm andwhm @ut there.
Nobody ever learned very much from the m j 0> ften contain a

great deal of nickel and iron. g

Only a few large mﬁm e earth The largest we know about, fell
inArizona (U. S. A) ago and made what is now called Meteor Crater, a hole
abouta m%?\ﬂ' ﬁgﬂ gﬁ% 600 feet deep. Some Indian legends of the Southwest tell of a big
fire that fell from the sky and ate a huge hole in the earth, so this big meteorite may have
fallen since man first arrived in America, perhaps twenty-five thousand years ago.

Other big meteorites have fallen, in ancient times, in Texas (U. S. A), Argentina, northern
Siberia, South-West Africa, and in Greenland. A meteorite weighing more than thirty-six
tons was found in Greenland and now can be seen in the Hayden Planetarium in New York
City. Millions of meteors have flashed across the night sky, but only a few large meteorites
have ever reached the earth. Never in all the centuries of written history has there been a
report of anyone being struck by a meteorite.

Post-reading




-

Hal Borland- (1\?@&71@?8}, ‘born in Sterling, Nebraska, was a naturalist, a person who W
studies’ dn‘mats and plants. He worked as a reporter for the Denver Post and the
Brooklyn Times. He was also a writer of documentary film scripts, radio scripts, and
other non-fiction. The National Audubon Society honaored him by creating the Hal
Borland Trail in Connecticut. Borland's essay “Shooting Stars” blends his fascination
with nature and his ability to report facts in a clear, captivating manner.

i -~V )
|&/ﬁ //-16\ I\ \‘,‘: U
B}
| ' /// \'A -

Given below are the difficult words frgin/ti]e umt i.wk at tﬁew meanings and give
synonyms of each.in thqgwemmipmw T\e ﬁrﬁtnnem done for you. Also use these words

in your own sentences
[AS)
¢ \l l\l\'\\
Words NA Meanings Synonyms
horizon the line that forms the apparent boundary range of vision, skyline
between the earth and the sky
friction - the rubbing of the surface of one body
against another
droves large numbers; crowds !
meteors falling stars
comets meteors P

periodically annually, regularly

constellation  system, variety, methgd O\ ACANY [

revealed opened. lnfnrm \ \/
ridiculous ' ‘
1 perseids. | N J; \H ‘éﬁygroupof meteors that appears annually |
} around August :
| mystery riddle ;
R 18 [ R R T 2 A V]

|Fnalish-11 Federal ISB Sia2 SideB Process Blaok04/28/2022) 25058822



~ SHOOTING STARS

a. Read the unit carefully and answer the following questions.
1. Define meteors?
2. When do the biggest meteor showers occur?
3. Describe the most unusual meteor shower ever reported.

4, Give the reason of attributing so much value to meteorites.

5. Explain the effect of the largest meteorite that fell to earth?

6

. Why do you think scientists collect meteorites? What is it about meteors
that stirs the imagination? AR

7. Describe the difference between a sc1ent1ﬁc expl;namqn and an Explanatmn
offered by a legend or myth? Q /--—": \ \ \, [\

8. Can.scientists learn 59me1hmg fmm\egem:lshr myths? }

b) Fill in th?\planﬁi w;th'the correct option:

. There are/" meteor showers each year.
a) two dozen b) one dozed c) half dozen
ii. There are points of light that suddenly in the sky.
a) disappear b) appear c) become hazy
iii. Ameteor reaches the earth
a) frequently b) occasionally c) randomly
iv. One can see a shooting star in
a) dark nights b) while raining  c) cloudy weather
v. The most remarkable meteor was seen by a distinguished
a) astrologer b) astronomer c) scientist B
vi. The largest meteor fell in e\ C

a) Venezuela

b) Arizona-  ©,

Acronyms are words which are made up of the initial letters of a group of words. The
initial letters make a new word, which can be pronounced.

Sometimes the initials alone do not make a word which can be pronounced, so another
letter is taken from one or more of the words in the group.

9 N Y




SUPARCO is an examp(e qf(suchp-..a~~bworcr It stands fnr Pak1stan Space and Upper
Atmosphere RESﬁal‘Chl Commission.

Acronymﬁ'sﬂ!ould not be confused with abbreviations in which each initial letter is
pronounced separately.

The following are abbreviations:
P-O-W (Prisoner of War)
Q-A-P (Old Age Pensioner)

What do the following abbreviations stand for?
U.K W.H.O
What do the followi ng acronyms stand/for? \ ‘1 \ ()

A1\ ; \I‘R&DAR» UASER

« Search any incident about falling of shooting stars and share with the class.
+ Divide the class into small groups.

- Instruct each group to prepare a presentation about shooting stars(meteors)
using the information they gathered. Each presentation should include.

+ Definition of meteors.

 Origin of meteors.

+ The science behind the bright streak of light.
« Information about a famous meteor shower (the perseids).
« Images, diagrams (if they can arrange). e

1’ u A
Silent Letters: A letter is silent if it is not produced. Examples include “p” in
psychiatry, e “w” inwrite, the “m” in mnemonic, the “h” in vehicle in more.

20 e R R T

iFamliah 14 Cadasal 1288 laN CldaA Drannaa Dlissk O4MNMINVTEINTEAL Y A0



" SHOOTING STARS

It is a book| éxplaimng usually in alphabetical order,
words of a language, or giving their equivalent,
reference book of words and topics of subjects
arranged in alphabetical order.

Most people think that dictionary has only one
function to describe one words’ meaning, but the
dictionary has more functiohs.

1. Usage of words, meanings, pronunciation, parts
of speech, synonyms/antonyms

Use of Dictionary AN

« Tolookup the meaning of an Engllsh ward

« Tofind the English translaumuf a we\d m y;zur{anguage e’
+ Tocheck the s?ellhﬂg of a word

+ To cheék ihé blu ral of a noun in past tens of a verb

« Tofind out other grammatical information about a word

» To find the synonym and antonym of a word

« Tocheck the part of speech of aword

- To find out how to say a word

+ Tofind examples of the use of a word in natural language
Phonetic symbols

The phoneuc symbols used in a dictionary can be viewed in Advanced Lea rner's
Dictionary of Current English (6" edition); v

Abbreviations and notations used: - ‘

Abbreviations used: 5

Adj = ad]ectwe AR\ verb

Adv = l J verd - n = noun

Pp = past participle us = American pronunciation




A\/f\
A —~/\\ f
\

12\ \C v SHGDTING STARS

l‘ \ =

* Find the given wﬁr'dsm a dlctlhhary and also write which part of speech they
belong to! N :
NN
we!ﬁ}#}ﬁg po tentlal mtnmate, argue, ethnicity, diverse,
* Punctuate the given lines

he was watching the leonids which seem to come from directly overhead and race
downward toward the horizon in all directions he reported that meteors fell like
flakes of snow '

Use the following phrasal verbs in sentences.
get along

N

yon @f\\y‘\?
=T —t \U)\Y
O AN (O Eo\”)\'/
see to o O A \ATW QAN
break down __ O\~ 0\ \‘5\ -

S\R\RARAB\ED il

look aft [ - I\ \ \ ) ‘\/I} LS -
W ,

( N
Parts of Speech

)

-

_—
C—

\
U

cross out

| The parts of speech explain how a word is used in a sentence. There are eight main
parts of speech (also known as word classes): nouns, pronouns, adjectives, verbs,
adverbs, prepositions, conjunctions and interjections.

Noun: A noun is a word that refers to a thing (book), a person (Betty Crocker), an
animal (cat), a place (karachi), a quality (softness), an idea (justice), or an action
(walking). It's usually a single word, but not always: cake, shoes, school bus are all
nouns.

Kinds of Nouns

1. Proper Nouns. (o)

Proper Nouns are used to refer to spemﬁt: persons 'plac-ﬁ ur\tfﬂ‘ngs They always start
with a capital letter. These nouns a[ refer to the ‘names of the days of week and
months, and also variousr names of organization, institution, religion, etc. Which are

proper and ].sp?q!ﬁcp \ForExample:
Quaid- e\-ﬂiam Muhammad Ali Jinnah

Pakistan

l~lsl‘dmunt Everest ‘)




" SHOOTING STARS

| Forming Abstract Nouns with Suffixes

kAbstract nouns are frequently formed with the addition of suffixes.

(2. Common Nnu”s N \[ |
Proper nou:né refer to general unspecific person, place or thing. For example:

Coor ) (o ) (oes )

3. Compound Nouns

A compound noun is a noun which contains two or more words which join together to
make a single noun is called a compound ncun. It can be written together, they can be
hyphenated such as “Mother-in-law” or separate words such as “Post office”.

For example

m | lunchhm.D

4. Collective Nouns Q T \\ ! -ﬁj; CAU -

A Collective noun \ksq ﬂoun wmchrefers to a group of people or group of somethingina
specific @&Iﬁﬁéﬁ\&r uhwt ‘Collective nouns can be either singular or plural, For example:

fleet of ships

5. Concrete Nouns

Aconcrete noun is a noun that can be touched, smelled, seen, felt, or tasted.

Concrete nouns can be countable or uncountable, common nouns, proper nouns, or
collective nouns can be concrete noun. For example:

) (=) ()

6. Abstract nounisanoun dennting an ldea, quality or state rather than a cuncrete
object. V)

For Example: o\

Camse )

23



rrE:w..Elmples* . O\
determmedl-'-—-«h\h\lLvad]a:twe

determlnaﬁnn tion

Examples of making abstract nouns with the suffixes are given below:
| ------ NeS§---=-=ser=s-e sadness, happiness

-------- ism---------------nationalism, sufism

--------- ship-------------relationship, leadership

-------- ment-----------punishment, excitement

-------- tion-----------exhaustion, friction

-------- ity-----------extremity, longevity

What is the difference among proper, concrete and abstract nounsft J(\‘;lve three
Cexamples of each. ’.?(?:\\ \/ia@)\f\g )

TN N o

« Write three examgles for tﬁq'se%llfvgi{\ﬂpaﬂs of speech
O\ ,4—\/- \\ V !

ai A e "«\ \\ r\

T\
\ \\/V

Common NQ}:R\JI\]\“ oL+

Compound Noun

Proper Noun

Collective Noun

Concrete Noun

Abstract Noun

Writing

Tranmlnn words are like ‘and’, ‘but’, 'so’ and because They show your. mader;;‘
relationship between phrases, sentences, or even paragraphs: Whe they are used,

they make it easier for the readers m/understanﬂ hbw thoughts and ideas are
connected. For example equaﬁy."' mp\rt‘ant \again, ﬁna‘tty, moreover, besides and
@xandly \ )

. erte\a ﬂdﬁrﬂ@l}aﬂh on the "Beneﬁts of Exploration of Universe”. It should have
transitional devices in it.

Teacher’s Point
Help students in writing a paragraph with a use of transitional devices.

TS 24




' vE

[ (Poem) -
rt'Louis'Stevenson

After completing this lesson, students will be able to:

read with accurate pronunciation, appropriate pitch and voice variation suitable for fictional and
nonfictional texts.

ask and answer higher-order questions to guide/assess reading(e.g., Why is the author saying this

right now? Why did the author choose this word? How is this different from what | read somewhere
else?

evaluate how authors use language, including figurative language fd@@act on the
reader .Discuss others' reading critically, takingacco fi
demonstrate attentive listening' i grot

Ll

standard pronunciation “

summarize compl sses, or information by paraphrasing them using correct
langua onal devices, own words and relevant punctuation marks.
da&ﬁﬁ@ﬁd@ and application of parts of speech in oral and written communication in

varying
use paraphrasing skills to paraphrase a poem.
use summary skills to write an objective summary of the given text and poem

write formal letters and email$ to people in extended academic (professional) environments for
various purposes

ps/and taking turns to speak with




Pre-ReadfﬁQ \ea »}.«; S N
’\q 4 \\ d
Wé\v m% m%pes of wind do w

| Reading
| saw you toss the kites on high

e And blow the birds about the sky;
And all around | heard you pass,
Like ladies' skirts across the grass-
0 wind, a-blowing all day long,
0 wind, that sings so loud a song!
e
| saw the different thi m&“ QO " - |
But EIWW ;f‘f '
| felt yo heard you call, x f m P
| could not see yourself at all-
. . ; Robert Louis Stevenson known |
0 wind, a-blowing all day long, as Robert Louis Balfour | "
0 wind, that sings so loud a song! Stevenson was bom November |
13, 1850, Edinburgh, Scotland -
~ and died on December 3, 1894 at 'v‘alll'na. ,
~ 8amoa. He was a Scoltish m poet, and |
0 you that are so strong and cold, i 4 and . hooksu;f;,mmm ﬁ
= O blower, are you young or old? ofthe.

~ Are you a beast of field and tree,
""' ; Or just a stronger child than me?
D wind, a-blowing all day long,
O wind, that sings so loud a snng!ﬁ

,r\/~

&

Post-reading,

after recitation of the poem.

\\\/ (\ C

“( Discuss Y\;L\Vf ideas what you have imagined ‘ q

~0 o

rt Lo Stevenson

I/i(//'\ \
\ \ "@’C
\/

e feel? Name them.




Unit 3

| Theme )

The centrql]\tnémé Uf ""his poem descnbes the power of the winds. It deals with the
sounds of the windy nights. It describes the characteristics of the wind which could

be heard but couldn't be seen.

_Summary )

| In Robert Louis Stevenson's poem "The Wind,"” the speaker discusses the power and\
enigma of nature's invisible force, the wind. Throughout the poem, the wind is
personified as a dynamic and unpredictable entity. The speaker observes how the wind
affects the world—tossing kites, rustling grass, and creating sounds that mimic singing.
Despite witnessing these effects, the speaker is actually unable to see the wind itself.
The poem captures a sense of childlike wonder and u::t.lrmsmty,r ramlplscentmf 'observing
the mysteries of the natural world in chlldhaam ‘S édie[isgn s\fvérse reflects the
transient and ever-changmg a/spactsrﬁ' lffE ar@emphasnzes the enduring fascination
with the forces of nat Ca L s

\ \ .(\- ,yﬁ.,y \ ‘. '.I"\ -v‘<<_\

"') \".,,.y«‘ I R 7 ) )
Given below are the difficult words from the unit. Look at their meanings and give
ynanyrns of eachin the gwen column. The first one is done for ynu

"

wkn“

toss ; to thmw or prnpel snmethmg mt the am ﬂihg, sway

kites . objects flown in the sky, often made of paper
and attached to strings.

ladies’ skirts  cultural and historical context. It refers to| the
idea that the wind can- fustle the' grass m a Wéy
that resembles the mnvement 0P women's/skirts.

invisibility a playful cmhage by\tk poet combining "a"
N ]?1] amng “in-astate of") and "nebulous”
W \[[\\\{meaning hazy or unclear) to describe the wind.

a-bebulous A large cemetery, especially one of elaborate
construction belonging to an ancient city

imbrifacient  seems to suggest something that produces rain
or moisture,

s o e A :
T e Ml o e B bt e mametp Bl i Ha e eyl e it s ™




= £~
(I~ L\

e Wind(Poeim) Rdbert Lous Stevenson

a) Answer these questions.

1. No one can see the wind. Discuss how can we feel its presence?
2. What does blow all the day?
3. What does “you” refer to in the poem?
4. Discuss the main idea of the poem “The Wind" by Robert Louis Stevenson.
5. Analyze the meaning of the lines “Are you a beast of field and tree/ Or just a
stronger child than me™? PN
6. Explore the meaning of “I saw you toss {tl,)e kites mgh';— (;iv
7. What does the wind ymboiizéﬁmiszéz ﬁpgmfélsowalat?eﬁ:s ;spi‘ritual
meaning. A\ CAN L e
8. Argqgjﬁ\tj}&ﬂg\g@ﬁhcﬂt&l “‘réﬁi}'é%entation of “The Wind"?
b) Choose the best answer.
i. The central theme of this poem describes :
a) the power of the winds b) spirituality
c) mystery d) emotions
ii. The poet of this poem is:
a) William Wordsworth b) Robert Louis Stevenson
c) John Keats d) William Blake

iii. The wind is personified as a:
a) dynamic and unpredictable entity  b) never-ch nging aspects of life
¢) hardships of life Y (@ae="

| \ "™

N\
¢ )\ \

c) Figures of«fpﬁeph
Figures 6f{,i§5é3i‘:h such as metaphors, similes, and personification go beyond the
literal meanings of the words to give readers new insights. On the other hand,
alliterations, imageries are figurative devices that appeal to the senses of the

L readers. J
PR TS T TR 28 |




,m

p/'!'he Wmd &Pﬁmﬁ?ﬁnhert' Luuis Stevenson

a) Simile

Asimile r?s hﬁéj}é of speech in which two essentially dissimilar objects or concepts
are expressly compared with one another through the use of “like” or “as. "It creates

an explicit comparison between two things that are different enough from each
| other.

For example:
« Strong as an ox
« Sweet as sugar
* raining like cats and dogs
b) Metaphor
A metaphor is a comparison between two unlike things. It creates implicit

comparisons without the express use of “like” or “as. "It asserts that twegthlngs are

identical in comparison rather than smnlar or usnlg qﬁc hna’iesgbtﬂhcepts to
state abstract truths. Forexample: /A '\Iq\ T\ \ § %

+ Timeismoney,,\ - \\‘\ f’&‘\ SR AL

+ Thereisa WEIght bﬂ ﬂ;!)f Md

ﬁﬁg |Fﬂ:ua-*;'.t medicine.

c) PerMiﬁcatmn
Personification is a figure of speech in which a thing - an idea or an animal - is given
human attributes. The non-human objects are portrayed in such a way that we feel
they have the ability to act like human beings. For example:

+ The sky weeps.

« The wind is whispering outside.

*+ My heart danced when i won the contest.
d) Apostrophe '
In the context of literature and poetry, an “apostrophe” is a figure of speech in which a
speaker addresses an absent or non-human entity as if it were a person. This
rhetorical device allows the speaker to convey deep emntmns, thpughts, or ideas by
directly speaking to something that cannot respond: in the,  way- a-human would.

Apostrophes are often used to .add dramamc or emnt,mnal impact to a work of
literature. For exampte: ' | N\

» William w rdswurths Y'L1 nes Compnsed a Few Miles Above Tintern Abbey"
NIN Jlﬁmn]m&un s “Paradise Lost"
e}AIliteratiun

Alliteration is a literary device or stylistic technique in which a series of words in a
sentence or phrase have the same beginning consonant sound. This repetitiort of J

\.




initial consonant seylnds,::an add emphams, rhythm, and musicality to a piece of
writing. It} ig often used for poetic effect or to create memorable and pleasing
(anguage patterns. For example:

- Peter Piper picked a peck of pickled peppers.

« She sells seashells by the seashore.
f)Anaphora
Itis repetition of a word or expression at the beginning of successive phrases, clauses,
sentences, or verses especially for rhetorical or poetic effect. For example:

+ Martin Luther King Jr.'s | Have a Dream” speech:

» "l have a dream that one day this nation will rise up and live out the true

meaning of its creed: We hold these truths to be self-evident...

+ In this famous speech, King uses the phrase "l have a dream’ t&begm \several
sentences, reinforcing the central therne of Mpean§a$9t£atlom\

+ Charles Dickens's A\Tele of tho Cttres'(”‘ \ ) |
“It was the best of t1mes> t was ”he WQ}St ef f imes, it was the age of wisdom, it was |
the age of feehs .' B
Dickens e{nﬁléﬁs\anaphnra to set the tone and contrast the dualities of the novel's
setting.

g) Refrain
A refrain is a repeated line, phrase, or group of lines in a poem, song, or piece of
literature. It serves several purposes in literature and music.For example:

- In the song "Hey Jude" by The Beatles, the line "Hey Jude, don't make it

bad" is a refrain that is repeated throughout the song.

+ In William Blake's poem “The Tyger," the refrain “Tyger Tyger, burning bright"
is repeated at the beginning and end of each stanza, emphasizing the awe
and mystery of the tiger.

g) Symbolism

Symbolism refers to the use of representational tmagery the writer émpluys an
image with a deeper, non-literal meaning, for the purpase o{ cenvéwng complex
ideas. In literature, symbolism 1ethe use\of a concrete image to represent an
abstract idea. For example the heart\s often employed as a symbol of love. For

example: N} \[] .

An dliUe Eranch is used to symbolize a truce.
Black is the symbol of death. .

The dove is used to symbolize peace. ...

T 30 N



m _The Win cl mmmn ‘Louls Stevenson
y- o TR T W A*.\mtwr‘ﬁ—lkm A S TR DT S

Y

g) Hyperbole

Hyperboleﬁs a ﬁgdre of SpEECh that involves the use of exaggeration for emphasis or
effect. It'is a rhetorical device where statements are intentionally exaggerated to
emphasize a point or to create a particular effect, often for humorous or dramatic
impact. Hyperbole should not be taken literally; it's an exaggeration that is not meant
to beinterpreted as a factual statement. For example:

« "I've told you a million times to clean your room.”

« "This suitcase weighs a ton!"

g) Imagery
| Imagery, in a literary or poetic sense, is the author's use of description and vivid
language, deepening the reader's understanding of the work, by appealing to the
senses. Imagery: Elements of a poem that invoke any of the five senses to create a set
of mental images. Specifically, using vivid or figurative language to l;epfeéeht ideas,
objects, or actions.Imagery is the use of figurative lang ge l;ég'&p(eseﬂt the objects,
ideas, and actions in such a way- thatlheappeals to |:ﬂ1ysical senses. Imagery
makes the use of FlgU@theJmagery uies deschptwe language that means something
different than or oes | bE}'Gnd \the' literal definition of the words, often through
exaggera\lt\ pa’ri’snn or symbolism. (like similes, metaphors, and
personﬂi ation) ta appeal to all of your senses. When imagery is written well, the
reader can see, hear, taste, touch, and feel the text.For Example:

+ His words felt like a dagger in my heart.

« My head is pounding like a drum.

« The kitten's fur is milky.
h) Irony
Irony is a situation that subverts a readefs expectations. For example:

» Our brain gives us knowledge, but we have so little knowledge about the

brain.”

« Saying “Oh great” as a response to a negative situation.

1) Antithesis

It is a literary technique that places opposite things-or- 1qeas nexf t;r l‘me another
in order to draw out their contrast. For example \ \ \N |

+ “It was the best of| tlmes, lt wag the warsf of tlmes " —Charles Dickens,
A Tale of Two Cftie \Rels
1) Onomatppqdla‘l NJo
Onumamboena is a word that sounds like what it means. For example:
+ Buzz-The bee buzzed in my ear.
+ Boom-The boom of the fireworks scared the baby.
+ Meow-The cat meowed for some milk.

r—' Rl ™ o' ¥ =" S - AT St S e e m T 31 A ] __ﬂ:»w_ ST T



- The- Winql {Paem} Roberttoufs Stevenson
jromt S et i b el * ;4 \ \\ JW ‘.,‘\

,«f’\/f:».
— N0
(I
/} l'\; /l' ) v
AN

wwNvW'

—
-

Research the background. - 2 Read the poem aloud.

L2

"ihaly;e the title. - 4. Define the meter.

5. Break the structure down. -, 6. Determine the poetic form.

A~
~ W\ \J [

I\ :__.\Gunmder the tune & mond

7. Analyze the imagery.

. “\yfiéu'ilize‘the setting. - 10. Determine the theme.

w

i R ' 32 , i 2



- (The winkw (Paem} Hobert Loufs Stevenson

\\.-XJ-\.A-\JA—} }..J__ | e S R R S R TS

Meter is the ba?ic rhythmic structure af a line within a work of poetry. Meter
consists of two omponents

+ The number of syllables
« A pattern of emphasis on those syllables

A line of poetry can be broken into “feet,” which are individual units within a line
of poetry. A foot of poetry has a specific number of syllables and a specific pattern
of emphasis.

Rhyme .

When we talk about a rhyme, we are referring to the repetition of a final syllable
in different words, most often at the ends of lines at certain intervals. An;( given
poem may fit a rhyme scheme: a rhyme scheme dg:icﬂbs? the’ patf‘e@_j of rhyming
sounds within a poem. o A\ T\ € \

For example : Q \ \ A
Shakespeare's prg ponnet 18 )

Shall | éﬂhﬁ\ﬁe ‘thee to a summer’s day?
Thou art more lovely and more temperate.
Rough winds do shake the darling buds of May,
And summer's lease hath all too short a date.
A

B

A

| B |
If you look at the final words in each line, you may notice that lines 1| aﬂd 3 rhyme

perfectly - ‘day’ and May'. The other pair of words in {inas 2 anﬂ 4 rtemperate and
'date’- on the other hand do not appear to rhymﬁ atall.

Task: Discyﬁ_mé%ﬁrﬁe Scheme of the poem “The Wind”.



] C

The W'Hd' [Poemi Rnbert Luuis Stevenson

Intonatinn Pattern 1

- Intonation, in phonetics, the melodic pattern of an utterance. In intonation,
stress and rhythm are involved. The three main patterns of intonation in English
. are: falling intonation, rising intonation and fall-rise intonation.
+ Recite the poem "The Wind" following intonation pattern.
« Demonstrate attentive listening' skills while listening both poems in groups and
summarize the salient points of each poem and then take turn&tcv spieak about
! your views with standard prnnunuatlun. L ArA \' [0\

-

\ ‘. [ N
L - j
\ | J
L

[ ransitional Device W

The transitional devices are the words that show the flow of ideas to help the readers
-\ along through the text.

I'IeANSITIC I WO IS IR RO 1L 1S H

A Emphazsis Addation Contrast Order
L el e s by T e ey v n - Fallowing

Unquesticnably Apart Trom this Hevearihmless Al thie Hma
Obwviously Morscver . On the other hand Praviously
Particularly / In particular Furthasrmors Honsthesioas First/ firatly
Easpecially T Alno Dosplts / in aplte of Becond/ ssoondly
Claarly Too In gonirast (1o} Third/ vhirdly
importsntly An well an that Contrary Lo Finsily
Abaolutely Desidas Wharsas am-qn-nur
Oafinitaly I schclilon Alternatlvely 7 (
without & doubi Hot only —but sisc l:-n\u-t-qivk N V-
Indsed n mddition 1o this - _Even ag |
1t should ba noted Addilonally / an .qumqn-l nnu.-nn.q. dw-., )
Result O pInarison

in aonoclusian

Thus

Hemnd s Sunt a8 To swmrnadl &6
Consegquenily \ \ \ -3 JuEt 1w Alogethar
Far this w- j A i Compars to To sum up
] ‘ R Hamaly Same aw In mummany

Concossion

ﬂl_r_u:n

wWith this bn vl o Adl ithe sama For the moal gert
im Teoit In ones up to = palnt In genrerall Oenesranlly
In order (o Unisss Even S Y On tihe wihols
Duea 1o In sphta of ovarall
Although/Even though In most casés

Even If L

| oeua




v\ \v [ o \oo~

\ Thewl‘nd \{Péemj Robert Louis Stevenson

['(‘1.. —\'\\\) e e T T T IR S

Activity ] j‘ “ AL
R } \

a) Undt:.»rllmaL the correct transition word in the following sentences.

e

. (Because, Before) it was raining, | didn't walk my dog this evening.

2. llove chocolate, (although, so) | eat chocolate candy whenever | can.

3. Thetestwasreally hard. (Therefore, Then), only five students passed it.

4. First, you have to answer the questions. (Next, So), you hand in your paper.

5. Bilal needs to go to bed early. (Although, Otherwise), he will be late for school.

o~ m\

6. Youwill see a big tree; (further on, however) you willsee a forkqn mmm

'/// .\\\“A\\/

7. Hereally loves reading. {Desplte, in fé&]fﬁe rEa;fIs ﬂlma\; aﬁ the time.
‘]ﬂ o~ v \ \) NN

8. Thatwould not be smart_ mespite Ino ther words), that would be idiotic.

9. (Over, )Qiﬁ&ﬂb\the trees of the forest, the deer ran gracefully.

10. You are always late. (On the other hand, Like), you can be trusted.

Phrasal Verbs

b. Use the following phrasal verbs in sentences.

call back _

call off

calm down____ ' BEPPRLY

care for

check in

check out V-

R 35 I TR



The Winﬁ (Fpem)itoﬁe ' nuis Stevenson

« Discuss the main idea or theme of the poem " The Wind”.

. Summarize the poem “The Wind”. Use of transitional devices will enhance the
beauty of your work.

« Recall the paraphrasing skills and paraphrase the second and third stanza of the
poem “The Wind”. Also use transitional devices to make it more effective.

Formal Letter

_/\/ \

Formal Letters, refer to as commercial enterprise Lett ¢ﬁprufesgwnal Letters which
are written in a strict and precwe l@yahtfarmat Lette lcan be written for some of
reasons which include, Q S\A e

« Toexpre 15:1 mWnssues at the same tlme asoperatingina professmnal setup
NNV

. Tobfbwde reliable facts across your workspace

« Toorderitems, to use for employment, and so forth.

. To the Editor of a newspaper addressing the problems confronted by using diverse
groups of human beings in distinct areas, and so forth.

Structure of a formal Letter

Formal letters are concerned on their structure of the letter adjustments relying on the
type of letter. Each sentence should be nicely noted out and laid down in a manner that
the message you need to convey should be particular and clean to the reader.

Types of Formal Letters
There are different types of formal letters, as discussed Kand they can "generally be

_.cher's Point o - .
IEncPu&qgt g.LLﬂL‘\ts Lo identify and correctly use patterns of word changes that indicate different meanings or
H N| N\ pa.rt.l of speech (e.g., analyze, analysls, analytical; advocate, advocacy). h

Encdurage students Lo apply skimming and scanning strategles for relevant information and main points in texts
to identify the writer's purpose, and intended audience. Infer the theme/main idea of the text, distinguishing
between fact and opinion where necessary.

+ Ask them to summaries complex concepts, processes, or information by paraphracing them Ling correct language
structure, transitional devices, own words and relevant punctuation marks.

- e T ———T - i ekt TSR

[ in Fo fo im0 R N L L 1} i Mot MR e st - A



| T IR

+ Business Lette;sj,, k
YN ININESE
+ Applcation
» LetterstoNewspapers
Business Letters '
Business letters should be clear and to the point. There is no room for any kind of stories
in a business letter. Before you start to write a business letter, there are a few things you
should keep in mind.

« Use simple and everyday language to convey the message clearly instead of using
flamboyant and overemphatic vocabulary.

« Avoid using abbrevi ations.

R

« The modes of address vary according to the type of le_;l*.\qngﬁ,;hp;r@aﬁjﬁf@hb
AP A NJICAL
+ When replying to a business l\e\ttgf;:}_{la)fyia}{ﬁs".“‘qug:gtila"@_ﬁg date of the letter you are

responding to and itsreferenc en@{bersﬂfanw -
Formal/Business l,e;taﬁ mn:lude‘lettersfrom an employer to the employees and vice
_ =\ VN o\ - " .
versa, let Wté{&ﬁe? and replace goods, letters of serious concern to an officer of higher
rank, letters of complaint, etc.

Applications

Applications usually consist of letters applying for employment. Before and after you
write a letter of application, make sure you check for the following:

« Always start with a short introduction stating whether the applicant is writing in
response to a reference from an advertisement found online or in the newspaper.

+ Provide the employer with a genuine expression of the applicant’s earnestness in
taking up the job in the respective company.

» Also, furnish references so that the employer can gather an idea of the kind of

=g -~ \ (r

employee.you would be. e

Always address these letterstnTheEdrtbrandend with Yours faithfully’. Letters to the
Editor are letter F‘hgtexpressconcems that should be addressed to the higher
authoritiegﬂfﬁé?éhéttéré should be professional and authentic.

Writing a Formal Letter - Parts of a Formal Letter

Letters to Newspapers

When writing a formal letter, always be respectful and conscious of your language, no

37



~\

o

J/Robért_ ert Louis Stevenson

,‘\ \

matter what the subjectufthé(letter \Eht be. To write a formal letter, there are some
ints to be remerbered. -~

Teacher's Point

Always start with the sender's address
This is followed by the date.

The receiver's address comes next. The receiver can be the name of the firm or the
one who represents the firm.

The subject of the letter is very important. It is a statement of the purpose of the
letter. It should be written in a single line.

The salutation can be Dear Sir/Ma'am. If it is a person you know well, you can
address them by their name, 'Dear Sara khan'.

The body of the letter canbewrittenin 3 paragraphs. = o0

s [~ 0\ | \\JA\&_// JAR R
The first paragraph should be aimed at i @ﬁ{p@gu;‘i‘f@-\yb@ﬂ&nﬂ\sfating the purpose
Df YCILIF lEttEI". . \ \'\,‘ r7 )\ .’/ 2B\RY! \\ i-, \ [

The second pa rgﬁrqph should:

\,
\ |/
‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ - L

\ \ 1,\ U 3 \ -

)

\ \\ Tt \ YN _ .
, F}\\ﬁh all the information about the matter.

~ANN| oW
TheQWfﬂﬁ%é\gra”ph can be a concluding paragraph where you lay out your
expectations regarding the matter.

To close the letter, you can
use a complimentary closing
like Yours faithfully’, "Yours
sincerely’ etc.

Unlike informal letters, the
signature should include
your name (in block letters)
and designation below your

signature. N SRR T
 How to write'a formal letter? -

+ Encou }hﬁmtDWdtefoi‘mallenm and emails to people in extended academic (professional)
i;j\‘l"é\ii yirohi ents for various purposes.
« “Ask them to write in application or a letter to newspaper editor for practice.

« They can use transitional devices to enhance the effectiveness of their letter.




_ ~The Wind IPnem):Rﬁbe Lauis Stevemun

Ali Ahmed I J
House#23:B, St#é
F-10/2, Istamabad 44000

8th September, 2023

The Editor
The News
Islamabad.

| Subject: Repair of the road in Rawalpindi

\
. R =y | /i "', \ oA
s“.' = N\ :;“¢~\‘I \".\\\' In' ( C/‘/\ A\ o~
\ 4 '\ \ \\ | -

I would like to bring to your natfce\thagl\t\h Epﬁeple in and around Rawalpindi have been
facing difficulties in n ravellmg back and forth because of the bad condition of the roads
there. We- Q?\\(ﬁ\\a led to the Municipality, but there has not been any response on
thei ISSI.IE

As our appeals to their office have had no effect, we believe that perhaps a mention in
the media would be of great help. Since the beginning of the last month, the roads in
Rawalpindi have been almost impassable. The surface is badly broken up by the heavy
 rains, and on a dark night, it is positively dangerous for vehicles to pass that way. |
Moreover, there are heaps of road metal on both sides of the road, which leave very
little room in the middle. The residents of the area have been inconvenienced in this
way for weeks.

The situation is becoming worse. There have been multiple accidents happening due to
this condition. | request you to highlight the seriousness of the matl;er in your

newspaper so that the road may be properly repai red mthouta‘urtherﬂelay, )
Thanking You \ LS

Yours sincerely, B
A\ 1“\”“
AliAhmed

Write a letter to newspaper editor and highlight the issue of street crimes in your city.

=139

L WL L



= Dy

I I1Y

-

- 4 (
Q.

3
T EEA

F i

e ————————e——— =

BUTTERFLIES choeson

(Roger Dean Kiser)

After completing this lesson, students will be able to:

analyze how an author’s choices concerning how to structure specific parts of a text (e.g., the
choice of where to begin or end a story, the choice to provide a comedic or tragic resolution)
contribute to its overall structure and meaning as well as its aesthetic impact.

provide an objective summary of a range of texts including fiction, non-fiction and other types of
text add new words in glossary

evaluate the particular elements of a story or drama (e.g., how the setting shapes the characters

or plot). Evaluate stages of plot development in a fictional text.(exposition, settmg, climax,
character development, resolution)

speak confidently and fluently in a wide range of contexts, For example (6on{l(u:t remtuuon panel
discussion, role-play, dialogue, etc. ) to fu{ﬁl difﬁerent purpasés {éxpdmtinn “argumentation etc.).

demonstrate knowledge and apphcatmn o paru‘ f ipeech in afal and written communication in
varying degrees of cm'lplexfty |

comprehencﬁ and tﬁe cuntempnrary Idmms and proverbs in the different texts and in their speech.
appm %e techntques of writing the first draft with sufficient details; proofreading and editing
details to suit the purpose and audience.

write a descriptive composition (giving physical description and characteristics/traits of a
person/object/place moving from general to specific), using correct punctuation and spelling, Dy
using the process approach - brainstorming, mind mapping, and writing a first draft.




U WY
N

Pre-Reading \
* Do you know & what/ Qh orphanage is?
- How can- beople show love and care to orphans?

Reading

There was a time in my life when beauty meant something special to me. | guess
that would have been when | was about six or seven years old, just several weeks or
maybe a month before the orphanage turned me into an old man.

| would get up every morning at the orphanage, make my bed just like the little
soldier that | had become. Then | would get into one of the two straight lines and march to
breakfast with the other twenty or thirty boys who also lived in mytdormitary

v \ \\' { / O ‘I". /‘\;\_ A\

After breakfast one saturday mnrmng 100
returned to the dunmtnq -and saw. theﬁoﬂf»e master
chasing the beautiful monarcrf butt‘_' lies that lived Why was the house master
by the hundrecl? qn\hhél azalea bushes strewn around chasing the butterflies?
the orphana

| carefully watched as he caught these beautiful creatures, one after the other,
and then took them from the net and then stuck straight pins through their head and
wings, pinning them onto a heavy cardboard sheet.

How cruel it was to kill something of such beauty. | had walked many times out into
the bushes, all by myself, just so the butterflies could land on my head, face and hands so
| could look at them up close.

When the telephone
rang the house parent laid
the large cardboard paper
down on the back cement
step and went inside to
answer the phone. | walk.ed
up the cardboard and looked |
at the butterﬂy whoh fhe_had"
just pmnetll’td ‘the large
paper. It was still moving
about so | reached down and
touched it on the wing




— 7

Unit 4 i — .~ |/> \ Butterflies (Short story)
‘ o T v Vam ¥ __L.\_Q.KL.L_\.L:L.'S.Z\"J,lu&_/:"_.' I L

causing one of the pins 'to) fall |

out. It stggtgﬁ\:{lpgﬁ_ﬁgﬁfnﬂﬁd"aihd

around trﬁiﬁg- to get away but it
was still pinned by the one wing
with the other straight pin.
Finally its wing broke off and the
butterfly fell to the ground and

just quivered.

| picked up the torn wing |
and the butterfly and | spat on its
wing and tried to get it to stick |
back on so it could fly away and |
be free before the house parent |
came back. But it would not stay
on him.

\_ AL

i} —~
= \ \

The next thipg\l,kr\,ew th%hpumparent came walking back out of the back door by
the garhag?\{mrmgﬁb\‘ arted yelling at me. | told him that | did not do anything but he did
not believe me. He picked up the cardboard paper and started hitting me on the top of
the head. There were all kinds of butterfly pieces going everywhere. He threw the
cardboard down on the ground and told me to pick it up and put it in the garbage inside

the back room of the dormitory and then he left.

| sat there in the dirt, by that big old tree, for the longest time trying to fit all the
butterfly pieces back together so | could bury them whole, but it was too hard to do. So |
prayed for them and then | put them in an old torn up shoe box and buried them in the
bottom of the fort that | had built in the ground, out by the large bamboos, near the
blackberry bushes.

Every year when the butterflies would return to the orphanage and{j;q,\;u land on
me | would try and shoo them away because they did not know that the @ﬁﬁah”age was a
bad place tolive and a very bad place to die. N\ CANY [ (o=

Post-reading )

Why did the writer shoo the butterflies away in the next season? )




-:‘xr?lﬁ"ffé'rﬁié)suis.hnrt story)
A A mARIESa T T AT o )

Aboutthewriter: ||\ ('

| Roger Qﬁﬂmmﬁbr"#asbnrn in Haywood, California. As a

toddler, Kiser was abandoned by his parents and
grandparents; he lived in an orphanage in Jacksonville,
Florida. He attended school in Jacksonville but only finished
up through his sixth-grade year. Kiser dropped out of seventh
grade two weeks into the school year. Despite this, he later
attended nursing school and worked as both an EMT and LPN
in Georgia, then as a medic in the U.S. Army for three years.
After working as a nurse for many years, Kiser shifted his
work and became an ammunition inspector in California before moving back to
Georgia.

)

Kiser's work is inspired by his life in Jacksonville and the abuse\hé'suffered in both
the Children's Home Society Orphanage’and te Florida Industrial School for Boys at
Marianna. He startedyﬁtingbecau;e\themrrﬁwand pain he felt due to the abuse
he suffered as acpﬂdwasstill such a major part of his life. Writing was difficult
b&ausQ\JﬁiM@ﬁwha\d"a sixth-grade education, but his storytelling ability shone
through. Kiser has written over 900 short stories during his career, many of which
| have been published in various Chicken Soup for the Soul volumes. He has said his
favorite of his own stories is "A'D' Minus," while the hardest to write was “The Horrors
in the White House."

www. https://study.com/learn/lesson/roger-dean-kiser-biography-works. html

Theme: This story is about Kiser as a boy in his orphanage that there were butterflies
there. This story is about the world through a child's eyes and how beautiful things
look when you are a kid. Everything is clearer and prettjer and éverything means
| more. One thing that means morewhenyouarea kidlstautyHe is traumatized by
some experiences he has livedmsxde\theurphanage (no love, living like a little
soldier). His uplg\\thPVi\‘p"@gﬁjg;iﬁénﬂih‘g time with the butterflies. He does not like the
way hishouselpa rent acts.




Butterﬂ:es (Shnrt story)

“. ‘ ...*._._...._.4.._.»._,_ e mosn- T

Glossary

Given below are the difficult words from the unit. Look at their meanings and give
synonyms of each in the given column. The first one is done for you.

Words
bamboo
dormitory
fort
monarch
orphanage
quivered
strewn
azalea N

Meanings ' ’ymnyms

cane
a bedroom for number of people in an instititiOR
castle

king, queen, emperor

Where Ofphans are IUOkEd after NS \: \\\;A_}&;‘?}“ s 2 She
shake or vibrate Shghtl%' A~ A\
scatter. spfﬁwkfe no?e\p

a) Answer these questions.

N WA wN =

]‘ 1 “ J\

Discuss the theme of the story in your own words.

Atwhat age, did the writer go to an orphanage?

How did the orphanage turn him into an old man?

Why was the house parent chasing the beautiful butterﬂles? O\
Describe his feelings on catching butterﬂles fij \.2";;1,- \ el
What happened when the huuse parentwent xu attend the call?

Why was the wntef' puttmg butteﬁﬂy pieces back together?

b) Chonse the best answer.
i. Thewriterwas ______ years old when he entered in the orphanage:

a) six or seven years old  b) three to four years old ~ c) eight to nine years old




m - NI2EC Butterﬂies (short story)
- = m_mﬁmpm P et e

ii. The orphanage tl-"'i]t?.'d him -‘i"td\'.,:féﬂr, \

a) serious marp‘ WAL by ybung man c) old man

iii. The: qrbhémége was a place to live and a very bad place to die.
a) bad b) cold c) dirty

iv. The writer the butterflies away in the next season.
a) shoo b) sent c) passed

FICTION

c) Objective summary of a range of texts ensus
including fiction, non-fiction NON-FICTION

Fiction refers to plot, settings, and characters ‘ L._!J
created from the imagination, while non-fiction

refers to factual stories focused on actual events [
and people. Creating an objective summary of a
range of texts, including fiction and non- fiction, [
requires condensing the-key pointsr and themes.
while avoiding persunalﬁmmans ar! inte}pretatmns
There are some. ﬂseﬁgqs in'thisregard:

NN

« Identify the Texts: Begin by listing the titles and authors of the texts you want to
summarize.

¢ Summarize Each Text Individually:

a) Fiction: For fiction, briefly outline the plot, main characters, setting, and central
conflict or theme. Mention any notable stylistic elements, such as the author's
writing style or narrative structure.

b) Non-Fiction: For non-fiction, highlight the main topic or subject matter, the author's
main argument or thesis, supporting evidence or examples, and any key ideas or
conclusions.

« Common Themes or Patterns: If there are common themes,, moﬂfs \or patterns
across the texts, mention them. Thls oould mcludesharedthemes fike love, survival,
identity, or societal i issues. (| 7\ - \ )

+ Differences: Nota any‘ dlstmctwé\featares or dlfferencas between the fiction and
non-fiction texts, 'such as'the use of imagination and creativity in fiction versus

factya] information in non-fiction.

. Ovamll Impression: Avoid personal judgments or interpretations, but you can
provide a neutral statement about the overall impression or significance of the texts.
For instance, if the texts collectively shed light on a particular historical period or
offer diverse perspectives on a specific topic, mention this.

QRIS s e 45



C) Elements of Short Story I!IJ

a)

W [ (O, \ Butterfiies (Short story)
E i g

Bl f o AR

N[
\ J \“ J‘\
Provide aH ab]ectwe summary of the story “ Butterflies”.

9 Elementy
oy

7N\ @ \ Short Story / o =

Basic elements of a story

There are 5 elements of a story that are typically taught first in elementary school. These
story elements are:

1.

Setting: Where and when is the story happening? Setting represents both the physical
location but also the time (i.e. past, present, future) and the social and cultural
conditions in which the characters exist. It can be used to create atmosphere and
mood and to influence character behavior and plot development.

. Character: A person or animal or really anything personified. There canbe ‘one main

character or many, and they may have a backgruund thaf has shaped and molded
them. Secondary characters are also lmportant Charactem can be described in terms
of their physical appearance/per*sqn\ality, backgmund ‘and motivations. They can
also be dynamu: cthgmg orstatlc (unchanging) throughout the story.

Conflict; Evé?y sitgry must have a conflict, i.e. a challenge or problem around which
the plut is based. Without conflict, the story will have no purpose. Conflict can take
many forms, such as person vs. person, person vs. nature, person vs. society, and
person vs. self. The conflict should be well-developed and add tension and drama to
the story.

46 ey 4|



4. Plot: The plot consmts of T.he events\thatlhappen in the story In a plot you typically
findan 1ntroth1ct]Pn, nsmg actmn aclimax, the falling action, and a resolution. Plot is
often re[dﬁeééntéd as an arc. The plot is the backbone of the story and provides
structure and direction for the narrative.

L

5. Theme: |dea, belief, moral, lesson or insight. It's the central argument that the
author is trying to make the reader understand. The theme is the “why" of the story.
Themes can be universal (applicable to all) or specific to a certain culture or time
period. They should be explored through the events of the story and can offer insights
into human behavior or the human condition.

Advanced story elements
There are 3 advanced elements of a story that are typically taught in htgh school These
story elements are: 5 x//w \u\ O\ 1\

1. Point-of-view: “Who" is telling %& ;{stéry? First\aeréoﬁ (I} or third person
(*he/shefit"). Limited (on&chagégter’s Aoéfspectwe) “multiple (many characters'
perspectlves} mmmscnem {all knowing narrator). Second person (“you”) is not

n\ﬁt\l ﬂtmg stories. The choice of point-of-view can greatly impact the
raa s experience of the story, and can affect how they relate to the characters and
events.

2. Tone: This is the overall emotional “tone” or meaning of the story. Is it happy, funny,
sad, or depressed? There are multiple ways to portray tone including through word
and grammar choices, choice of theme, imagery and description, symbolism, and
the sounds of the words in combination (i.e. rhyme, rhythm, and musicality). The
tone should be consistent throughout the story and should match the mood and
atmosphere created by the setting, plot, and characters.

3. Style: This is how things are said. Word choices, sentence structure, dialogue,
metaphor, simile, and hyperbole are all aspects of style. Style contributes
significantly to tone. Style can be used to create unique and memorable prose and
can help to differentiate one wntar’s wmkfrom anethe(' 5/ 11 ;an alsncontnbute tothe
tone andoverallfeelnfthestory f N

Elements Jﬂst]w:smﬂt have‘been lntroduced to you.Now you have to discuss the following
aspects of t s short story “ Butterflies™:

a) Writer's point of view

b) Toneandstyle

c) Settingand plot

d) Conflict




SO autterm (short story)

VX o (St s s
) »

« Make groups of students within the class and ask them to collect information on the
life cycle of a butterfly. Each group may collect information in the form of pictures
and declarative sentences.

« Speak confidently and fluently in a wide range of contexts about the conflict
resolution in a panel discussion, role-play or dialogue about the story “Butterflies”
for argumentation which you observed in the story.

Modal verbs: An auxiliary verb like can, may, must, etc, which modifies the main verb
and expresses possibility, probability, etc.

Modal verbs are as follows:
can, must, might, ought to, would, may, should, shall, will, could

Example: (i). She can read a book. (ii)We shall go to Lahore.iii). Students may
work hard.

a) Choose the correct modal verb for each of these sentences.

. you go already? You only arrived an hour agol B
(a) must (b) shuuld . tf \ (C) can

» Whenhewasyoung, he _. SWim) ‘ery we&l .He won'medals and championsmp!

(a)hadto - , (c)could
« The coml:iﬁny N[ \ NN NE go bankrupt if they don't find a lot of money quickly!
(a) should (b) shouldn't (c) might
« You look very confused by the home work. Ali__ I help you?
(a) must (b) will (c)can
e 4B Ry

=
e sl N el e ]



| left my purse at home Latla \ f’{;b"i‘i\l"éﬁdvme tén dollars?

(a) may “ ” N AR ) {b) cuuld (c) shouldn't
o t's wet&n& »)snndy outslde today.You___________gooutwithout an umbrella.
(a) shouldn't (b) won't (c) don't have to
- | think that sign means we enter the building. Look there's security
guard too. :
(a) won't (b) have to (c) mustn't
' : ) ] ™

Verb: Averb is a word used to describe an action, state or occurrence. They can also
be used to describe a state of being, that's feeling something. For example:

Read, jump. a0

’ lk/“ \'\ //—

Kinds of verbs P ANJICAE (CS

Regular Verbs: Those verbs that' fﬂrm fheii* pagtjgamﬁ  with 'd or ‘ed" are regular
verbs. These verbs (dn not uhdergﬁ mbfantlal changes while changing forms

between te '\ g., SHaTe!shared scare/scared, want/wanted, kill/killed,
shoutfsvhdlh 3‘

Irregular Verbs: Those verbs that under-go substantial changes when changing
forms between tenses are irregular verbs. The changed forms of these verbs are
often different from the originals. e. g. , go/went/gone.

Linking Verb
A verb that acts as a link between two words is called linking verb. It connects or
links a subject to a noun or an adjective in the predicate. The most common linking

verbs are forms of the verb 'to be: am, is, are, was, were, being, been. For
example:-

+ Hassan is excited about his promotion.

* Dreamscometruewhenweworkhard. [\ (C\LUL"

L * Allthe kittens were playfut;;‘x.:‘ Q

1_1'. ) P \/,

b) Fili m the Plapks wnth the past partn:lple of the verb in parenthesis.

NINN

‘ve you (see) my keys? | can't find them anywhere.
« |havenever_____ (be)toKashmir.
« Wehadn't (grow) tomatoes before last summer.




m . Etut(erﬂle&" (Shnrt story)
i ———— “,_,.E_J,L:.f;x..;ﬂc){_-% \n}.iv-«'—.:fmrﬂm—u

« Hasshe

+ The hgvyempu
. A

(speak] inyears.

(sell) his car yet?

c)  Fillinthe blanks with the linking verbs.
~ You very foolish to believe her.

+ They _ be happy ever after.
+ He putty in his hands.

+ The police department getting tough on crime.

Idioms and proverbs A\

115 a'fixed ‘roverp 15 a short

on that ell-known saying

contains an

figurative ;
IVICH

meaning
H

i
II-I-.I.IIlIIIIIﬂII‘hl!i.l‘lllll.llllli‘-i-

Proverbs contain
ral or an ady
ed on the enara

truth
i EEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEETNE RN EERE SR EEE

Idigms are phra

HIrovi I'l:": Cadln |
inderstood
iu are hi

the tnrst

R e 50 B S e Py e ey
ik A Y [ S, i
b ] PR R T AR L T P R
.

English-11 Federal ISB Sig4 SideB Process Blaghk©4/P8/2022028-24-38:59



Idioms

A RN
NININAVA
\ ,\{;]' [NNIA

Heénlng

Idioms <\ Usagé 7

|A blessing in disguise (a good thing that seemed bad at as part of a sentence
first

Beat around the bush |avoid saying what you mean, usually |as part of a sentence
because it is uncomfortable

Better late than never

better to arrive late than not to
come at all

by itself

Callitaday stop working on something as part of a sentence
|Get out of hand — get out of control as part of a sentence
Hang in there don't give up ! by itself as part of a

- [sentence0) 1

Make a long story short

tell something Iﬁﬁeﬂj’k RN

—

as part of a sentence

[Pull someone's leg

m jqkmm so‘meme»‘ *

as part of a sentence

Time flies wheQ W@l yﬂu ‘don't notice how long something by itself
having fun [N\ llasts when it's fun

Proverbs

Proverbs Meanings

Actions speak louder than words

|what you do is more important than what you say

A jodmey ofa thc;;usand miles begins
with asingle step

you must begin something if you hope to finish it;
something that takes a long time to finish begins
with one step

All good things must come toan end

everything ends; good times don't last forever

Apictureiswortha thousand words

animagecantella story better than words

Beggars can't be choosers

v

..J"ElPYDU. you have make whatever they give you
_|and shoufdn*task for more

Beauty is in the eye of thg bahbider |

what is “beautiful” is different for each person

Birdsof a (qaghenﬂoék 1iﬁgethar

people who are similar spend time together

Cleanliness is next to godliness

it's good to be clean. God is clean, and you should

be too.

Don't bite the hand that feeds you

don't make someone angry or hurt someone who is
helping you or paying for you

= 5q =

il



\ o\ Batterfiies (Short story)

QN 1\;‘\-\1"‘,‘-\.;7_\
Use the given idioms and proverbs in your sentences .You can use them in your
daily routine writing or in discussion as well.

d) Phrasal Verbs

Use the:following phrasal verbs in sentences.
cleanup

come across

come apart

come from

cut down e\ (CIONVY
cut off

A descriptive essoy is one which Is used In order to describe something. These essays
WHATI A can describe anything from a person or place to an item or idea. The ideo of the
' s descriptive essoy Is to give the author a chance to hone their writing skills by woy of
Dmnlm description. On top of this, the descriptive essay is a great chance for the author to
use their creative skills - the more vivid the description; the more the reader con
ESSAY? picture clearly what Is being talked about. This means that the writer should employ

oll their skilis to paint on image for the audience.

Ideas for Descriptive Essay Topics

The hardest part of descriptive essays rsx:ammg uP with a tqpu: Just remember that you
can quite literally describe anythmg Klung as your yourself find it interesting enough to
write about. That m1ght \nclude* %)

. Alqng nqtbré‘ h#ke thruugh beautiful surroundings
. Ynur favorite sport or a specific game/match that was memorable:
« Your most recent birthday and all the things that have shaped you in the past

r 1
; -

IEwallakh 44 Eadasal 160 Qlnd Cldal Drnnnse Elank @brarara OR-0-D%-97



» Acountry or city, bmkgquﬂlwn into geography, climate, politics, religion, and
CUltu,rq’\ J'\]} J‘\ o\

« A histnncal event, including its causes, ramifications, and consequences

« A news story that includes context about the people involved, information about
where it occurred, and insight into other events it links to

General Format and Structure of a Descriptive Essay

There isn't a set format for delscriptive essays. You describe your own approach that how

do you experience things, and it turns out that we all experience and see things
differently?

Agood outline structure that you can start with might look like this. A m( \
Introduction WY o e . ~\ \I I&// :j\ \U\

\ \ \

« Write aclue that hSLps yourreade rel@ﬁ?; mj:he\ 5ensesyou re tapping into.
+ Provide some general bénkgmund about the thing you're describing.

. Forqm ,mg&kﬁtitement that makes a claim (but may not necessarily include
an éllgument or opinion). .

Body paragraph: Physical Description
~ « Provide a topic sentence introducing the subject.
+ Give an in-depth physical description of the subject.
Body paragraph: Contextual Description

* Describe your subject within its given context, like its physical surroundings or
temporal environment.

Body paragraph: Emotional Description

+ Describe, ,how the subject emotionally or mentally aﬁected those wlm
interacted or experienced it. RN

Conclusion LN
» Restate your tmsis abaut the subjects description.

Activity: \ U\J’ N

Describe the character sketch of the writer in the story ‘Butterflies’.




B _ o~ K;IL?-';L'; Butterﬂfes (Short story)

( \ o N
W\ v y ~

Proof rea_ding\a\ teaftmews "Qﬁiiiﬁﬁf errors from the text and making it error-free.
Prnof-reagq‘(jjg‘\l‘mﬁy\édnsist of capitalizing letters, adding a period, adding a question
mark, add a comma, taking a word out, spelling correctly, indenting, ,/ lower case
letter, " add symbols and apostrophe ().

Proof Read

Proof read the given text carefully and rewrite it in the given space.
spaghetti dinner

Last night my father made us Spaghetti dinner. He makes the best meat balls in the world!
| ate a lot of spaghetti, My brother spill sauces on his white shir}‘whgg)gﬂ; tﬁu@hed | love

it when my dad make spaghetti. A\ o (‘“§i§.‘<—§' [(2 o™

\

\
\
\

—\ —~\ VvV /)
O\ \ Q-V"\I\?«.ﬂ' 1 3

NN R

NN

-;g.@dqhﬁfﬂé\-Jsmdents to write a descriptive composition (giving physical description and

\"characteristics/traits of a person/object/place moving from general to specific), using correct

punctuation and spelling, by using the process approach - brainstorming, mind mapping, and writing a
first draft.

+ Ask them apply the techniques of writing the first draft with sufficient details suchas proofreading and
editing details to suit the purpose and audience.

3

LT 4



—F"'; = -r

BLLe.

Clean water and Sanitation

After completing this lesson, students will be able to:

« respond to texts for different purposes (including arguments and discussions).
+ use complex questions for a range of audiences increase vocabulary.
« analyze organizational patternsin a text:
a. list/ sequence of ideas/ events comparison-contrast
b. cause-effect
c. prablem-solution
d. reasons/ assumptions-conclusion ~0a0\
+ engage in extended discussions and crit1que taking 1ntam:&wnt otl;cer m&ﬁ“ers” vlewpomts and
presenting one's own with c!arlty A \

+ identify and correctly usg&Pattems o\f\@mtbahges that indicate different meanings or parts
of spEech (e. g analyze, aﬂalysiS. -analytical; advocate, advocacy).

+ distin he f the connotative and denotative meanings of words, both similar and
disiiimlar denotations and their appropriate use in a variety of writing and texts.

- develop précis writing skills. Write précis effectively.

+ write multiple paragraphs essays/stories; multi-stanza poems or playscript using mechanics of
correct writing.

« write formal letters and emails to people in extended academic (professional) environments

for yarious purposes




Pre-Reading e
- Why is acceﬁ ;old&aﬁ water and samtatmn important?

+ Discuss thé main challenges in achieving clean water and sanitation
worldwide

Reading

Ensure access to water and sanitation for all

Access to safe water, sanitation and hygiene is the most basic human need for health and
well-being. Billions of people will lack access to these basic services in 2030 unless
progress quadruples. Demand for water is rising owing to rapid population growth,
urbanization and increasing water needs from agriculture, industry, and energy sectors.

The demand for water has outpaced population growth, and half the wurld’&mu’tatmn is
already experiencing severe water scarcity at least nne/man\h yyear ‘i‘@aﬁer stan:lty is
projected to increase with the rise of gtobaLlemperahures as\'éshlfof climate change.

Investments in mfrastrucmre mqﬁanl(a{\on Tﬁclhties, pratectmn and restoration of
water- related ecosgs\r.'ms* and hygiene education are among the steps necessary to
ensure un&rg{]w,\\ét\dé\sé 1o safe and affordable drinking water for all by 2030, and
improving water-use efficiency is one key to reducing water stress.

There has been positive progress. Between 2015 and 2022, the proportion of the world's

population with access to safely managed drinking water increased from 69 per cent to 73
per cent.

Why?
Access to water, sanitation and hygiene is a human right. To get back on track, key
strategies include increasing sector-wide investment and capacity-building, promoting
innovation and evidence-based action, enhancing cross-sectoral coordination and
cooperation among all stakeholders, and adopting a more integrated and holistic
approach to water management.

Water is essential not only to health, but also to poverty
reduction, food security, peace and human nghts
ecosystems and education. 0 LY '
Nevertheless, countries farce grom"ng chaﬂenges hnked to What do you mean by
water scarcity, water, pollution; 'degraded water-related \ S2nitation and hygiene?

ecosystems, ,adeH eration over transboundary water
basins.

What are the challenges?

In 2022, 2.2 billion people still lacked safely managed drinking water, including 703




~

— A N\
/-——\\ = ’/"A\ \ il'y \ \ \\ )

—~ [\ (C\UJuv -
it 2>\ (Y
—\ —~ \\ | g LA\ M
m___ o T\ T\ L (tean water and Sanitation
= - E—— —_— - ‘v/\‘. > VAT ,_»,q " :‘t:: L S B Bt 1o X+ F 3 B B e e |

\ \ / ~ )y
1\ \\/ N
N v \ AN MR
\ \ b AN A
lt ) \ \ (T N\ \\, \ N—

million without a bq?c water \service; 3.5 billion people lacked safely managed

sanitatinn{\ijrg\gm\ﬂﬁ"ﬁﬁ‘]:‘iifl"i'aﬁ' without basic sanitation services; and 2 billion lacked a
basic hand washing facility, including 653 million with no hand washing facility at all.

By managing our water sustainably, we are also able to better manage our production of
food and energy and contribute to decent work and economic growth. Moreover, we can
preserve our water ecosystems, their biodiversity, and take action on climate change.

Are water and climate change inter-linked?

Water availability is becoming less predictable in many places. In some regions, droughts
are exacerbating water scarcity and thereby negatively impacting people's health and
productivity and threatening sustainable development and biodiversity worldwide.
Ensuring that everyone has access to sustainable water and sanitation services,is a critical
climate change mitigation strategy for the years ahead. VoVe\

g g gy y @\\ﬁ\»‘

AN\
Without better infrastructure and managem rﬁgﬁ\\\; ,’@Eo@
\ \ = [
a,

e
millions of people will continue to die e;&ym@

water-related diseases sug 1@@%}5@@,\(3 €a,
and there will be hé?r\ ﬁ\&g&e&,\i IOEiVEFSity and Give your suggestions on

fu
ecosyste \NW“@%@ @ndermining prosperity and improving the drinking
efforts towards a more sustainable water quality for everyone. |

What can we do?

Civil society organizations should work to keep governments accountable, invest in water
research and development, and promote the inclusion of women, youth and indigenous
communities in water resources governance.

Generating awareness of these roles and turn- ing them into action will lead to win-win
results and increased sustainability and integrity for both human and ecological systems.

You can also get involved in the World Water Day campaign that aims to provide
| information and inspiration to take action on hygiene issues.

Post-reading

Who can invest in water \ L)W
research and_,wgrﬁu Rﬂ ABIE b

developmﬁhw NI

© L.} ouetosevere
lNTl-!E}NﬂJe?LDAREIN INDIA

1R : bumoswgns
nsgpmm5 DIARFRHEA

T e = 3 3 -]
Mg S s e e s S oLt % ek




Ve \C‘_gléihfn"wa'ter and Sanitation

Factsandfigures. -1 |||

\[T\ JI“

Goal 6 Target

. Desp'nte great progress, billions of
people still lack access to safe
drinking water, sanitation and
hygiene. Achieving universal
coverage by 2030 will require a
substantial increase in current
global rates of progress: sixfold
for drinking water, fivefold for
sanitation and threefold for
hygiene.

+ Water use efficiency has risen by 9
per cent, but water stress and
water scarcity remain a ccnuem m
many parts of tﬁé woﬂgf n 292&,
2.4 billion ple \lived in water-
Stress gssed '&J ntries. The challenges
are compounded by conflicts and
climate change.

« Key strategies to get Goal 6 back
on track include increasing sector-
wide investment and capacity-
building, promoting innovation
and evidence- based action,
enhancing cross-sectoral
coordination and cooperation
among all stakeholders, and
adopting a more integrated and
holistic approach to water

- Earth is use ’e and available
. frqshwatﬁr ' Wake up to the
loomi water crisi
Wor rologi
Organization
+ Limiting global warming to 1.5°C

6.1 By 2030, achieve universal and

'proportion of untreated wastewater and

| supply of freshwater to address water
| scarcity and substantially reduce the

5 [16.6.By 2020, ﬁrutect and restore  water-
management. A QA

« Only 0.5 per cent of water nn..\ \

i related ecosystems, including
'mountains, forests, wetlands, rivers,

equitable access to safe and affordable
drinking water for all

6.2 By 2030, achieve access to
adequate and equitable sanitation and
hygiene for all and end open
defecation, paying special attention tc
the needs of women and girls and those
in vulnerable situations

6.3 By 2030, improve water ﬂuallty by
reducing pollutien; elumﬁatmg ‘dumping
and minlmkhhg fefeaseof hazardous
chgnncals 'and materials, halving the

substantially increasing recycling and
safe reuse globally
6.4 By 2030, substantially increase

water-use efficiency across all sectors
and ensure sustainable withdrawals and

number of people suffering from water
scarcity

6.5 By 2030, implement integrated
water resources management at all
levels, including through transboundary
caoperatmn as appropnate

aquifers and lakes

6.A By 2030, expand international
cooperation and capacity-building
support to developing countries in

water- and sanitation-related activities

o e e Bl et il TR

L e e e e s - ———— _‘3
e s i b i e 8| s e e e o



| (©Cleanwater and Sanitation
et - e = = S Y

compareq to, 3' C wuuld
apprdmhate‘y halve the
proportion of the world population
expected to suffer water scarcity,
although there is considerable
variability between
regions.Chapter 8: Water Cycle
Changes (p. 1063)

« The global urban population facing
water scarcity is projected to
double from 930 million in 2016 to
1.7-2.4 billion people in 2050.

| water

. Despi@ " s‘.s, 2‘.}."" bullton
pé}}b still lacked safely managed |
drinking water services, 3.5 billion
lacked safely managed sanitation
services, and 2.0 billion lacked
basic hygierie services in 2022

+ Surface water bodies, such as
lakes, rivers, and reservoirs, are
undergoing rapid global changes,
with one in five river basins
showing high fluctuations in
surface water levels in the past 5
years

« Water pollution poses a mgmﬁcant R\

challenge to human health an ’
the enwronmentm m&ny

countnesw j‘ /A
N } \ug

Source:

— \ LU o
\ . | | 1\ O
{ \ -\ ~ \ ( C \ O

\ \\ )\ [\~

\ \ \

\\ \ TERRE |
AN O R LR
\ \ \ \ (2

\

and programmes, including water
harvesting, desalination, water
efficiency, wastewater treatment,
recycling and reuse technologies

6.B Support and strengthen the
participation of local communities in
improving water and sanitation
management

A
’ 'lk/“ \




QN Kcleanwatér and Sanitation

Given below are the difficult words from the unit. Look at their meanings and give
synonyms of each in the given column. The first one is done for you.

Words Meanings R R
scarcity lack, shortness of supply dearth
sanitation the process of keeping places free

from dirt, infection, disease, etc., by
removing waste, trash and garbage, by
cleaning streets, etc.

infrastructure  he system of public works of a country,

state, or region. e
predictable capable of being predicted. T 1 k//" (;iv 1\
sustainable the ability to maintain or ;,uppm-t a \ [ (G0~
process>cant1nuously r tlme\ oA L /
resilience the process|and autcome of

sssfully 'adapting to difficult or
\ l\J N N 1engmg life experiences,
espec»ally through mental, emotional,
and behavioral flexibility and
adjustment to external and internal

demands.
quadruple consisting of four parts or elements.
control, a nation, a person, an activity, one’s
administration  desires, etc.; direction, rule;
regulation.

a) Answer these questions. o A\l
1. Discussthe effe::twfdﬁnk,mg un i‘eanw.ater and bad samtatwn on communities.
2. Why is demand for clean wat&r nsmg day by day?
3. How ﬁgn mlrW‘water be punﬁed? Describe in detail the procedure to purify
dlrty water.
4. Describe the adverse affects of unclean water and bad sanitation on
communities and regions?

5. What role does water play in sustainable development and environmental
conservation?




. Howdoes chmaté?;hange nnpa*:{\&ccia-sﬂe clean water and sanitation?
7. What are t| er»\@f:onomm implications of investing in clean water and sanitation

lnfrqsww et

8. How can technology and innovation play a role in improving access to clean water
and sanitation?

9. Explore the way of purifying the contaminated water.
10. Identify the health issues caused by drinking unclean water.

b) Complete the blanks with suitable words.
i. Access to safe water, sanitation and hygiene is the most

human need for health-and
ii. Demand for water is risingowingto ________ population growth,
urbanization and increasing water needs from - 8 mdhstry, and
S —~ I \ \ / v
energy sectors. \ S\ (c i
\ \r‘\ ‘ (‘\ -

i, Water is nat only @h Qalth\\but ‘also to poverty reduction,
food security, Q\ ““C\ a :ﬁmmanﬁghts ecosystems and education.

iv. Wecan __ o] | \ \\\ ﬁur water ecosystems, their , , and
tal@%&fhrﬁsﬁ climate change.

v. Civil society should work to keep governments
accountable, in water research and development, and promote
the of women, youth and indigenous communities in water
resources governance.

- c) Patterns of organization in a paragraph

Patterns of organization refer to the different structures or frameworks that writers use
to organize information within a paragraph or text. These patterns help readers
understand the relationships between ideas and follow the author's argument or
narrative. — ~

| Chronological
E5 Order .1

1
"

WA




,.\,»;'\,<§j‘»,_,’"':'725;,?'7;.é\leﬁﬁfﬂﬂéf and Sanitation
s T St o g ta (’\\\\ \ . \\.\ TR Y i B AT 2 T
Activity SR

Make a mqndméb of the text according to the organizational pattern given above and
summarize the article ‘Clean water & sanitation'.

Oral Communication

Extended Discussions

Extended discussions refer to in-depth conversations or dialogues that explore a specific
topic, issue, or subject matter in detail. These discussions often involve the exchange of
ideas, arguments, and information among individuals or groups.

[ Activity RS\

O \ \e |\ \ \\ |\~ T
() o |

=~

Make some groups in the class engageé in extended discussions and critique taking into
account other speakers! \viewpoints'and presenting one's own with clarity on basic
priorities of \s,pg”;lir@g a healthy life. Each group may discuss the given topics and note
the impﬁtﬁiﬁﬁﬁbﬂiﬁts. The presentation of peers may be in front of the class. Effective
speaking style may be followed to present on health issues.

Vocabulary and Grammar

Kinds of verb:

Transitive Verb: A transitive verb always has a noun that receives the action of the
verb, For example: ‘ -

Ali gave Osama the pencil.

Laiba raises her hand.
Intransitive Verb: An intransitive verb never has a direct<or indiréct object. For
example: A T\ WY/ (EL0

The girls sleep. :
Hediedinan E‘_“‘?j?"?ﬂ‘i"—- ALY
Finite Verby\ [\ /- -

Finite verbs mean those verbs which can change their form in accordance with the
subject. It defines the time (past or present) and the subject. For example:

| eat rice. / He eats rice. / They eat rice.

lam astudent. / He is a student. / They are students.

A

= oy =Ty el 3 04 B e i e W = R Y T e e -
R ot | B2 L R S R e earille i . |

et P bl il bl i



and Sanitation

Infinite Verb

An :nﬁmﬁd ls\b %rﬁ whlch has “to” before it. It shows infinite action when it is used
at the beginning of the sentence. For example:

Toseeis tobelieve,

To be weak is miserable.

a) Decide whether the verbs in bold are transitive or intransitive
The girl was crying all day long.
We showed her the photo album.

It was raining at that time. v )
Mother gave a cookie to the child. ==\ i\
The doctor advised me to exercise regularly 3 ‘ \' [(2)o
6. | ate the cherries .0 A V7N m) WS- T
b) Choose which verb is ﬂnite or 1nﬂnite.

1. Myﬂ;&[é\lﬁﬁ h@r ‘Wants' to be an actor.

oA W

a- finite b- infinite
2. She worked hard 'to pass’ the test.
a- finite b- infinite
3. | couldn't solve the problem.
a- finite b- infinite
4. To error is human.
a- finite b- infinite

c) Denotation and Connotation

Denotation ~ =0

Denotation refers to the literal, dlctmnam deﬁmtmn of a\ warc( Ifc 1s'fhe expllmt,
objective meaning that a word carn&s. s the mﬁﬁt basic and straightforward
meaning of a word, devmd of| any emnﬁ&al or cultural associations.

For examp{eﬁ ]Fhe; ﬂeﬁbtﬁﬁon of the word “snake" is a long, legless reptile.
Cunnotation.

Connotation, on the other hand, involves the emotional, cultural, or social
associations and implications that a word carries beyond its literal definition.

£ T RSy




o

—7

m 0\ [ /Cledri water and Sanitation
TrusT o SRR TSR ]

W, = W\ \\ O\ ) \ N |
V4 WAV WAL )

Connotations can be pdsitwe,négatwﬂ}or nedtral, and they often depend on
individual or sot\:mﬁl@xpenences and perceptions.

~ A\ I\ NIRN
For exad‘ﬂjl@,’ ﬁln r word "snake” may have connotations of deceit or danger due to
cultural and symbolic associations.

Examples:
"Home"

- Denotation: Aplace where one lives; a residence.

« Connotation: Warmth, comfort, safety, and a sense of belonging. It often carries
positive emotions and attachments.

ll‘snakeﬂ
+ Denotation: Along, legless reptile that slithers and often hasav fCI\lite.

. o~ >\ .
» Connotation: Negative connotations are q&gﬂ;m&}:ﬂ@tﬁ@%ﬁ%ke" due toits use
-~ as a metaphor for decei wﬂ@w@t{ﬂﬁeﬁe},msﬁ e cultures, snakes may also
symbolize healing{t%r transformation.

\JN‘WNNM o) Y= W

hctivty

For each word or phrase, identify its denotation (literal meaning) and then provide
its connotation (emotional, cultural, or subjective associations). Use the context
and your own understanding to determine the connotation.

Word/Phrase: Denotation Connotation
patn’ni;f

curious B
storm _‘ o @ =
old ' ‘

innocent

Aggressive e ‘-\|"1’\]“§;\J’|' 3
skinny [\
house
smile




.HB — .~ /tiean water and Sanitation

e) Use the fulluwing phrasal verbs in se\qtences

ol |

dress up
drop back
drop off

drop out fv
end up

Précis writing O 0. :

rPrecis wntin$ is ayal Lpabte skill that 1nvolves summarizing a longer text while retaining
its essential' 'méamng and main points. It requires concise and precise writing,

eliminating unnecessary details and maintaining clarity. Here are some steps and tips

for improving your precis writing skills:

1. Read Actively: Carefully read the original text, paying close attention to its main

ideas, arguments, and supporting details.

2. Understand the Text: Ensure that you have a thorough understanding of the text's
central message and key points.

3. Highlight Key Points: Identify the most important ideas, arguments, examples, and
evidence presented in the text. These will form the basis of your precis.

4. Create an Outline: Organize your thoughts by creating a brief outline. This outline
should include the main headings or topics that you plan to cover in your pFéas

5. Write a Thesis Statement: Craft a clear and, t:onme thasls statement that
summarizes the main message or argument ofthe text This statement will guide your
précis. s\ \ paI-

6. Start Writing: ngln writing ynur precis by paraphrasing the thesis statement in
your own Wllds ’Thsvnll serve as your opening sentence.

7. Focus on Clarity: Write clearly and concisely, using your own words to convey the

text's main ideas. Avoid jargon or overly complex language.
\ ' 7

65 . !



N
A~
el

¢\ Cleah(water and Sanitation

8. Eliminate Unnecesgaryﬂefailf Qmit any mmnr or less relevant details that do not

contribute to the cqre message of the text.
9. Mamtaim #‘rﬂper Structure: Follow a logical structure, typically starting with an

introductory sentence, followed by the main points, and concluding with a summary of
the text's conclusion or final thoughts.

10. Check for Accuracy: Ensure that your précis accurately represents the original |
text's meaning and intent.

11. Edit and Revise: Review your précis for clarity, grammar, and punctuation errors.
Make any necessary revisions to improve its overall quality.

12. Keep it Within the Word Limit: If there is a specified word limit for your precis,
ensure that you stay within that limit while still conveying the text's key information.
13. Practice Regularly: Like any skill, précis writing improves with pract an\ Regularly
practlce summarizing different types of textsto sharperL au(/siklll%

14 Seek Feedback Share youc pref:i_'s Mth otheris f&i féedback and constructive

\ L
“““

15, Cornpare witt\ﬁhe Bﬁgihal‘ 'Fext. After writing your précis, compare it with the
angma\l\’:emny ré that you have captured its essence accurately.

\. J
Example:

Text Précis

“Technology has revolutionized the way we Technology has transformed

communicate. In the past, people relied on letters |communication, replacing

~ |and face-to-face conversations as the primary means |traditional methods with digital
of interaction. However, the advent of the internet |means like emails and video
and smart phones has changed everything. Now, we |calls. While this offers

can instantly connect with anyone, anywhere in the |convenience, it lacks the

world, through emails, social media, and video calls. |personal touch of face-to-face
This transformation has made our lives more interactions( téamrg to
convenient and efficient, but it also comesWwith mlsunderstancﬁngs Furthermore,
challenges. Digital communication I.acks the persanal constant connectivity poses

touch of in-person cumwemat;nns lead{ng to- mental health challenges. In
misunderstandings and mmmt&rpretatmns Moreover, |summary, while tech advances
the cnnsta t gonnqc]&wity can be overwhelming, enhance communication, we

affecting ol r'mental well- -being. In conclusion, while |must address its drawbacks.
technology has brought incredible advancements in
communication, we must also be mindful of its
drawbacks.”

SHETEATHFTITLY (1 o gert fegte
Ete il LA R B TR,

|English-11 Federal ISB Sig5 SideB Process Blank 04/20/2022)28:05:28:22



\\ O\ | “="Clean water and Sanitation

NN
Précis the given passage effectively using précis writing skill,

In a rapidly changing world, adaptability has become a crucial skill. Whether in one's
career, personal life, or even survival, the ability to adapt to new circumstances and
challenges is paramount. Adaptable individuals are not just resilient; they thrive in
uncertainty. They can adjust their strategies, learn new skills, and embrace change with
enthusiasm.

Adaptability is not about mere survival; it's about growth. Those who embrace change as
an opportunity to learn and improve are the ones who succeed in the long,mn They are
like bamboo, bending with the wind but never breaklng TAANGOMN

' | / o \oo~
In essence, adaptability is the key: to u‘tﬁnvatu)n gnd pm éss 1t fosters creativity and
encourages explnratmndt alluwSus takbgeakf?ee from the constraints of the familiar and
discover new honzaqsi In. a wor[d that is constantly evolving, adaptability is the secret to
staying relp@f\m%ﬁd ‘Ech'lew ng lasting success.

Writing Mechanics

In writing, mechanics and conventions are rules and systems for how things should
be written down in order to ensure that what ends up on the page is what one means
to express. Areas that are governed by mechanics and conventions include grammar,
punctuation, spelling, and capitalization. )

Write an essay using mechanics of
correct writing on “Global Warming ‘
and its effects on Earth” PR

“\J‘ “ B\BL T omt | Tewmsgmeand
H Mk, gty sc) | | colacting e, it s

Teacher's P&‘nl
+ Fororal activity give topics to the students for discussion. Help them in preparation, .
+ Encourage students to distinguish between the connotative and denotative meanings of words, both
similar and dissimilar denotations and their appropriate use in a variety of writing and texts.
* Motivate them to develop precis writing skills and to write précis effectively.

* Ask them to write multiple paragraphs essays/storles; multi-stanza poems or play script using mechanics
of correct writing. Encourage them to use transitional devices as well to enhance the topic’s details.

O , S
67

Sh A



N { //:\\\\ \ \\’ | (/'/1 \o \ =
\ |\ | \Clean water and Sanitation

Email Writing

Writing profefsiqhal%aﬂs in the workplace
What is emah communication?

Electronic mail (e-mail) is a computer-based application for the exchange of messages
between users. A worldwide e-mail network allows people to exchange e-mail messages
very quickly.

Essential email components

Subject line

The subject line of your email should offer your reader the purpose of the email, but it

should also be brief. If your subject line is vague, people may ignore your email, or it may
be sent to the junk/spam folder.

— V (\
— /‘
s ~ N\ /20 ‘,
I&/ﬁ .\
Greeting o /] /O . \u\

Choosing a greeting may appear tobean, gh%y/task, but ydu ha é toselect the appropriate
level of formality. Emaﬂmg a cqwﬁrﬁer '.m,h ‘whom you are friends to ask a brief question

is different from er%Tiﬂlg y@ursupemsor with a work-related request. Below are some
greetings Rhﬁ Bihac'l o different levels of formality:

More formal:

- Dear [Name],

Hello [Name],

Good morning/afternoon [Name],
Less formal:

Hi[Name],

Hey [Name],

Body

Depending on how your audience will react to the mfarmatmn in, yourfema\il, \you will
need to decide whether to structure your ernaﬂ bedy Gsiny ng the dii‘ect or indirect method
of communication. Either way, paragra"hs m an emml wheh there is more than one,
should be clear and concmea They ‘are ge "F.'r::ullyr much shorter than paragraphs in an
academic eaﬁayq mf\exﬁmple

Closing parﬁgraph - summary, action items, polite closing
Sign-off

As with the greeting, you need to choose an appropriate sign-off for your audience:




and Sanitation

Moreformal: ., \ ||\ .
Sncarely, | e
+ Thanks/Thank you, P
+ Best, Opmios  ———| -
« Allthebest, O p—
+ Bestregards, ‘

+ Kind regards

l.‘.hﬂnnlm—b' "EIE

Less formal: T I
: Signoll ———p
+ Cheers, R
' A\ (ONBY
+ Seeyou, ~[12)\ (GO
% “T“\\,\\\\f\ :
+ The Direct Method of Commum;:. \RSR\SR s
Q\ ‘\ ‘\ \\ \\ 7
( V (1 \I\ '\\ \ \ )
W‘NJ\J '\J To:
Subject
_____,_.-—-" j
Subject Line p "

Hi, John, ; ——  letrodyction

Thank you for being our loyal custemer for over five years. We at
{Company Name) really appraciate your commitment to our product,
——%| soto celebrate this, we've granted you a 70% discount on your yearly

Emall Body Premium subscription.
. Use code JOHNDOE at checkout. 4———( _  Closing
Emall o L {Company Name) team @ @ @ J

Write an email to ynur bank manager\and inform him that your cheque book's
leaves have ﬁﬁ:flshed You have to request him to issue your 50 leaves
cheque bagﬂ mediately

Teacher's Point

» Encourage them to write formal letters and emails to people in extended academic (professional)
environments for various purposes.

A R R ELURTE s A S S R N




The Darkling Thrush (Poem)

Thomas Hardy

After completing this lesson, students will be able to:

« ask and answer higher-order questions to guide/assess reading(e.g., Why is the author saying
this right now? Why did the author choose this word? How is this different from what | read
somewhere else?

» use pre-reading and while-reading strategies to analyse and explore different layers of meaning
within texts including biases and opinions.

+ evaluate the particular elements of a story or drama (e.g., how the setting shapes the
characters or plot). o A\

+ Identify rhyme schemes and figurative language in poems

+ evaluate two or more central ideas of a text an-d analyze their dewe{opment over the course of
the text, including how they unteratt anﬁ build nn \one-another to provide a complex analysis.

+ demonstrate attentwe llstenrng sklkls whﬂe wnrkmg in groups and taking turns to speak with
standard pro ncmiun

. curnprgﬂenﬂ and use conternporary Idioms and proverbs in the different texts and in their
speech.

« identify and use adjectival, prepositional and adverbial phrases in reading and writing tasks.

+ use paraphrasing skills to paraphrase a poem.

+ wise summary skills to write an objective summary of the given text and poems




Pre-Reading

O\ Crve Darkling Thrush (Poem)
3 T e T

* Guess theme' oft {hé‘poem after reading the poem?
- Name anyother poem of Thomas Hardy that you have read.

Reading

| leant upon a coppice gate
When Frost was spectre-grey,

And Winter's dregs made desolate
The weakening eye of day.

The tangled bine-stems scored the sky
Like strings of broken lyres,

And all mankind that haunted nigh
Had sought their household fires.

The land's sharp features seemed- ta
The Century's corpse Uut léant
His crypt the cloudy( bnapy,
The mq )hfgq &ear:h lament.
The ancient pulse of germ and birth
Was shrunken hard and dry,
And every spirit upon earth
Seemed fervourless as I.

At once a voice arose among
The bleak twigs overhead
In a full-hearted evensong
Of joy illimited;
An aged thrush, frail, gaunt, and small,
In blast-beruffled plume,
Had chosen thus to fling his soul
Upon the growing gloom.

So little cause for carolings'
Of such ecstatic sound,| W\ L W

Was written on. te[resthal tl'nngs
Afar or\nigh-around,

That | could think there trembled through
His happy good-night air

Some blessed Hope, whereof he knew
And | was unaware.

* What seemed good-night favorite
like him?

Thomas Hardy He was a novelist
and poet, born on 2 June 1840,
and died on 11 January 1928. He
was a Victorian realist, following in
the footsteps of George Eliot. In
his novels and poetry, he was a
strong advocate of Romanticism,
particularly William Wordsworth's
poetry. He was strongly criticai of
much of Victorian society,

| particulary. tha degradat:on of
“"‘..,"'{Bntains rural people, particularly
1 'thase from his home county of
South West England.

Post-reading

+ Discuss the ideas you
imagined after reciting

this poem.

* What did tremble through air?




Theme: The. Tnaml ;topu: ‘ of “The Darkhng Thrush' is the hopelessness of modern
temperarﬁent In the poem, Hardy describes the death of an old world in a lyrical and
descriptive way, but he cannot replace it with a new one. Something is finished,
everything has changed, civilization is gone, and he does not know what is going to
replace it. At first glance, the poem seems to be about change, the passage of time,
and seeing things from a different point of view. In The Darkling Thrush’, Thomas
Hardy portrays nature as uninterested in the existence of humanity and it is
sufferings. The tragedy of the nineteenth century is the loss of hope due to the lack of
faith in any other positive force.

Summary: The ‘Darkling Thrush' is a poem written by Thomas Hardy onDecember
31st, 1900, the final day of the nineteenth century, Thepqem%s ab@u;\f.he despalr and
hopelessness of the final days of the nineteénth Centufy and the uncertainty of the
twenty-first centum’The spe&ker desgribéﬁaﬁeak winter landscape, with cold and
frost, and the bar{? ne55 of! the tand. The speaker mourns the cruelness of this season
and tW\empﬂh\e&s of the world. In the midst of this bleak landscape, the speaker
hears the singing of a thrush perched on a twisted tree. It is a strange and unexpected
sound to hear in such a bleak environment, but the thrush's song is filled with joy and
vitality. The speaker is touched by the bird's resilience and the hope it brings to the
world, even in the darkest of times. In the last line of the poem, the speaker ponders
what the thrush's song means to him. He understands that the bird's song is a sign of
hope. It is a sign of life's resilience, a sign of hope in a world that is so dark and
uncertain. The poem concludes with the speaker recognizing that the thrush is a
symbol of hope and optimism.

Given below are the d‘ fﬁcult words *Trﬁ‘n"‘ the unit. Look at their meanings and give
synonyms ?f ?ac;hnﬁ'the given column.

rm’t:prds Meanings Synonyms
bine-stems shoots from a climbing plant.

blast-beruffled feathers which have been made to stand
plume up(been ruffled)by the wind (blast)

o ———— e PELE = w o

AR AT ;:r - - 3] % LA - T
¥L‘.~.A:'-;".;£f1‘€-h'_ wlltes | - 72 _— ;Lhkiu-n— P e A — b MM



O\ A TheDadcling“l’hmsh (Poem)
\ ~M Wﬁm

carolling ‘ s?unds,a ,\in’gin‘g songs.
coppice, | ]r ] “an area of densely growing small trees.
death-lament  sorrowful sounds(such as the willing that
takes place when somebody dies )
desolate dismal and gloomy
dregs the last remaining and least attractive
part of something (here ,the Winter and
the Century )
fervourless without any intensity of emotion or
belief; cold
gaunt thin and bony -
illimited unlimited ,without timits \'-«5{\ \ CONWE
lyre a stringed musical ilistmmmt Y A
nigh neaf in ptac@ ar time
outlean ARR N Dread-out
spectre N a ghostly presence

terrestrial of the earth (not the air)

Answer these questions.

1

B e L M

= |

How does the poet describe the winter?

How is the séng of the thrush described?

Which old-fashioned words are used in the poem? (ONLY
Do you find the poem glmmy? Is) there a nnte of hppe mﬂ:? Discuss

Find out the symbuhcs}gmﬁtan\ce of the- bird in Thomas Hardy's "The
Darkling Thrush.”\ \\ |\ |

thl; ayé eﬁa‘mples of lmagéry used in "The Darkling Thrush”?

How does the speaker feel about the season in “The Darkling Thrush™?
How does the thrush change the mood of the poem?

Discuss the tone of the poem.

10. Which words does the poet use to depict the bird’s strength in third

stenza?

— Ny L o e
?3 . _u-._._:ﬂi_.- +lady -s~" d




r-’

— —
(~
1<

X\ maamg’rhrush (Poem)

b) Choose the best answer( 0 B
i. The central thﬁmg@f tl'ns poem descrlbes
a) sp’mﬁmﬁh@ b) hopelessness of modern temperament
c) bird's life d) pessimism
ii. The poet of this poem is :
a) Thomas Hardy b) Robert Louis Stevenson
c) William Blake d) John Keats
iii. The tragedy of the nineteenth century is the _ __due to the lack of
faith in any other positive force.: _
a) loss of strength b) loss of hope c) loss of emotions

Intonation: Intonation is a variation of spoken pitch in linguistics that isn't used to
distinguish words. Instead, it's used to indicate the speaker’s attitude and emotions, to
tell the difference between statement and question, and to diﬁérer@@e \between
different types of question, to focus atten /wn an’ lmpohq mjafts of the spoken
message, and to regulate cunvegsa;idn”’Thig. Iiln‘ﬁontrast o tone, which in some
languages uses p'itch vané%\on to gl\s\;ingﬁ‘ jords, either word-by-word or sentence-
by-sentence (y ;J:mn, request for repetition, greeting, etc.). In this example,
the main b‘ the sentence is still at the tone of the Tonic, but this time, the
voice desn:ends on the Tonic, then rises. You use this pattern to ask questions that
require an answer of "Yes" or "No".

| bought some food. Did you buy some food?
| saw a burglar. Did you see a burglar?
Practice these dialogues.

Yes/No questions

Areyoualone?

Canlcomein?

May | sit down?

Are you sure? = AR
Greetings 1) WY
A: Hello, Faiza! )

B: Good morning, Dutthr *
Requests for repeﬁit]ﬁqm,

What didybtushyz

When did all this happen?
Which pills did you take?
How did you getin?




Search any otf
intonation pattern.

c) In unit 3,figurative language is discussed in detail.Now find the figures of speech

\ “The Darkling Thrush (Poem)

r ﬁoem of Thomas Hardy and recite it in the class following the

in the poem The Darkling Thrush'.

XN\ | /5 \oo=
d) Elements of. y-
Elemeny ROy

MoOoD SYMBOLIIM METER RHYME
Reader’s feelings |When something |The rhythmor Words have the

TONE represents or beat established |[sameending

Author's feefings | stands for by a poem sound
toward poemn subject something eke

FiG. LANG. |CONNOTATION| REPETITION |ALLITERATION
Simile, metaphor, | (word association) | Authorrepeatsa |Words have the
hyperbole, idiom, | DENOTATION |word, line, or same beginning
pensonification (dictionary | phrase for sound

meaning) - |emphasis R
IMACERY IRONY VOICE or P.M ~ ASSONANCE

Author useswords The difference - [Whoisthe - ' | {Words havethe
that appealto betunmthcwuy namator? What same middie
senses (sight, somethinig \| "\ |dowe know vowelsound
touch,smel, dppnm‘mndwht about them?
mundltq;tg.l NN s actually true .

FORM | STANZA WORD ORDER | ONOMOTOPEOIA
Cinquain, free Divsionoflines |Authorvaries Words formed by |
verse, halku, into groups wordorderfor | imitatingthe
ballad, limerick, meaning and sound they make
sonnet, ode, etc. effect.

v .
O T i b bt s
- A ISR LT




Activity: Discuss theJ tane‘ bfthe WL
\M 11\ oV

|\\ JI
‘!

Find the rhyme scheme and meter in the poem.

Active Listening Skills

When you are listening to someone, it is important to pay attention to what they are
saying. Intonation is a way of changing the pitch of a speech, but it is not used to tell the
difference between words. It is used to show the speaker’s attitude and emotions, which
helps people understand each other better. If you listen carefully, you will be able to get a
better understanding of what the speaker is trying to say and how to respond. You can
show that you are paying attention by making eye contact, shaking your head or leaning
forward. '

1A\ (| ‘ﬁ'"

AL
— | ,.-~‘ oL ) L
—\ \ | ; / a X \N \

Activity: You can practiceyour listeningandspeaking skillk through these activities:

» Have a casual c@nver;atian wfttg someone (this could be a friend, classmate,
family member, etc. )
Llﬁgptphﬁbdta:t {you could also take notes while listening)
Prﬂmce speaking in a mirror - it may seem strange to talk to yourself, but it can
help prepare you for conversations with other people or presentations
Read aloud - this will help you to pace yourself and speak clearly

Listen to famous speeches to examine changes in tone, pitch, and intonation

-




R YT N P R R T
II AL '

"‘f‘*lﬂ'ﬂ' T

tineiddonadlas) Lo el _“..d:mmmw_-,m Bk s e S il Lo
Spill the beans togive away a secretr
Under the weather | tofeelill
The ballis in your court it'sup toyou
Pull someone's leg to play a practical joke
Through thick and thin to be loyal no matter what
| Once in a blue moon rarely ,m D /ﬁ@ y\@
Take it with a pinch of salt _ hqmq@t\@7 Fiously
“Ivegotitinthebag” o\ X\ VY\ \ [ secured success
Cold feet \J” \\ W 0 '7\ | becoming nervous
N _
Proverbs WN’N\

Dnnt count yuur chlckens befare
they hatch.

dont expect a positive result heforeyou
actually see it

Don't judge a book by its cover

don't judge someone or something by
appearance alone

All good things must come to anend

everything ends; good times don't last forever

Don't put all of your eggs in one
basket

don't put all of your hopes and resources into
one goal or dream

Don't put off until tomorrow what you
cando today

if you can do something today, do:it Don't
wait until tamamm, don't proctastinate

' Easy come, easy go

M‘ieﬁydu tnake mo?i&}‘ quickly, it's very easy
\\ | to lose'it quickly as well

Fortune favors the T\ A
AN
N \ll\

ABA people who are brave and who take risks are

more successful than people who are do
things safely all the time

God helps those who help themselves

don't just wait for good things to happen to
you. Work hard to make them happen.

Hope for the best, brepare for the
worst

iln any situation, be optimistic about the result,

but always be ready for the worst outcome

e haad -— e e . FTERT )




~~\\ |  The Darkiing Thrush (Poem)

SN | .
drh‘s‘ an

Use thegﬂerifl d proverbs in your sentences . You can use them in your daily
routine writing or in discussion as well.

b) Prepositional Phrase; A prepositional phrase is a group of words consisting of a
preposition, its object, and any words that modify the object. Most of the time, a |
prepositional phrase modifies a verb or a noun. These two kinds of prepositional
phrases are called adverbial phrases and adjectival phrases, respectively.

a) Adjective Phrase; An adjective phrase is a phrase that contains an adjective,
but there's more to it than that—as a whole, an adjective phraseisa p[\rase that
acts as an adjective by describing a noun. Forexample: — -~ i;

N\ [75 \ oo~ -

¥ We experienced the decadesmu;tdestméﬁve e ©
v They saw un%shgbrig!)t,éé{s@k[s through-their telescope.

b) AdverQi%}anseMadverbial phrase (or adverb phrase) is a group of words
that a@;&.’%’ an adverb to modify the main clause of a sentence. Adverbial phrases
can be made up of two adverbs. These are typically formed by adding a qualifier or
intensifier (e.g., “incredibly,” “rather,” “very,” “somewhat”) before another

~ adverb. -

Activity .
Read the following sentences and identify whether the underlined phrases are
adjectival, prepositional, or adverbial.

1.The cat with the fluffy tail is my neighbor's pet.

Type of Phrase: ________ /H ﬁ UL
2. She walked along the sandy beach at sunset. | |\ | | W/
tHetop shelf is my favorite.

4. The car drove quickly through the narrow tunnel.
Type of Phrase:




(17 \nf g s e

5. The students in the { | -‘.' 0 lwtemattmtively

o rtended‘ with a spectacular fireworks display.

Type of Phrase: ______

7. She answered the questions with confidence.
Type of Phrase:

8. The children played happily in the park all day.
Type of Phrase: _______

9. The house with the red door is for sale.
Type of Phrase:

! // \ o\~

¢) Use the following phrasal verbs in sen;ences O \ (CAL

~ T\ _—\ V ', -y\ l'\__.v \ LV‘ )
end up OIMPZAANIS -

fall out

figure out
fill in _

Points to understand a poem. (' , W)
These key points can help 1n tha underﬁtandmg and appreciatmn of poetry.
a) Theme: whaﬁ ls§des andideas does a poem deal with?

b) Persoﬂs' Who is telling the story of the poem? Through whose eyes do we see the
characters and the events of the story?

c) Mood: What is the governing mood or emotion of the poem?




o\
— /*\'* 0\

e~ G wmmgﬁmsh (Poem)

e) Rhythm: Is the rhythm (movement of the poem) slow, steady, and fast?

Activity:

« Keeping in mind above mentioned points and discuss the theme and mood of the
poem.

« Use paraphrasing skills to paraphrase the first and third stanza of the poem.
+ Summarize the poem “The Darkling Thrush”. ~0 A\

cO\Y
Y
r/\’\ ( k) \\/ \ J
| . o~
i \1\\7( \\\ r\K\ \ OA
A\ \ |
— /\]\J, Q\,l\ )
WWNJ\J\J
Teacher's Point ) y
Encourage mdennﬁs&me t‘gﬂt:hum!‘tis(!eriiﬂrﬂ'slt:lllswl'.il.-. working in groups and -
m mw““"standaxﬂpmmaﬁon

{éﬂl‘ﬂ]' ﬁl?&ﬁlﬂbﬂﬂ and use contemporary Idioms and proverbs in the different texts and in their

* Help them to identify and use adjectival, prepositional and adverbial phrases in reading and writing
tasks.

+  Askthem to use paraphrasing skills to paraphrase a poem.
= Motivate them to use summary skills to write an objective summary of the given text and poems.




: 1 ---u{w"ﬂ"?_{;' ;C“‘

O

Pakistan

A . TF S TR TR = . —ﬂ‘

e -

'\J“ ‘\H\”

\\”\\

After completing this lesson, students will be able to:

read with accurate pronunciation, appropriate pltch and voice variation suitable for fictional and
nonfictional texts

use pre-reading and while-reading strategies to analyse and explore different layers of meaning
within texts including biases and opinions.

ask and answer higher-order questions to guide/assess reading

apply skimming and scanning strategies for relevant information and main points in texts to

identify the writer's purpose, and intended audience. Infer the theme/main idea of the text,
distinguishing between fact and opinion where necessary

give an informed personal and analytical response to a text and provide some supportmg textual
reference \

cite strong and thorough textual ewdence to support analysis uf what the text says exphmtly as
well as inferences drawn from the text. g ‘ \
demonstrate knowledge'and- appucat n of pam\ﬁf speech (Pronouns] in oral and written
communication in vary'lng degrees of complexity.

produce. Leglhle: ﬂdrk that ‘Shows the correct spelling of the conventions of punctuation and
capﬂia{ zation.

comprehend and use contemporary Idioms and proverbs in the different texts and in their speech.
write informative/explanatory texts to examine and convey complex ideas, concepts, and
information clearly and accurately through the effective selection, organization, and analysis of
content.




Pre-Reading o) TN
* Have you ever visit gfl ur heard about any famous historical or cultural sites in
Pakistan?. N \Iy 11\ ol

* Why do be think some sites are designated as World Heritage Sites by UNESCO?

* What do you already know about Pakistan's World Heritage Sites?

World Heritage Sites in Pakistan

It is said that the world has become a global village and we, as the global citizens, need to protect
our common cultural and natural heritage irrespective of where these are. The United Nations
Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organization'(UNESCOJ World Heritage Sites are places of
outstanding cultural or natural importance to all humanity. UNESCO has designated six sites in
Pakistan as World Heritage Sites and twenty-six sites are on the tentative list. They are:
Archaeological Ruins of Moenjodaro, Ancient Monuments at Makli, Thatta , Taxila, Byddhlst Ruins
of Takht-i-Bahi and Remains at Sahr-i-Bahlol, Lahore Fort & Shalamgrﬁard,enﬁn mmre and the
U
Rohtas Fort. Let's see what made these SltE'Sﬁq impm‘l.ant. “’( \ \\\' TCALS

The Ruins of Mohenjo-Dag)u \\ 7\

/
«/“/\”

The ancient civilization of Mﬂnjo—Dam tes back to 268C. In
fact, it is beli m\ﬁe {the-oldest physical evidence of urban
QR

plannlng.\r_}&& ll-planned streets to baked brick structures
and a sophisticated drainage system, the layout of this historic &
settlement proves the occupants of Indus Valley were not only *
expert planners but were also well-versed in complex civil |
engineering.

After being abandoned some 3,000 years ago, MohenjoDaro remained buried under layers of dust
and sand for several centuries. Archaeologists re-discovered it in 1920 in what is now the modern-
day district of Larkana in Sindh. The opulence of the lost city became quite apparent after
historians found valuable gold, ivory and lapis lazuli artefacts among other precious metals and
stones. This historical site was added to the list of UNESCO World
Heritage Sites in 1980.

How to get there: If you are staying at Sukkur, you can make a day tn‘p

~ th[nkme city of
to Mohenjo-Daro. It will take you about two hours to. reagh\ yau;. HWE“?W

C Daro was des
destination A\ ‘ Mahenjo-Daro was destroyed?

Makli Necropolis O, R ki

Makli Hill is one of the rgast tummunal bunal sites in the world
dating back 10 J;Hé \ith°century. UNESCO declared it a World
Heritage 51{’9 in 1981. The massive funerary site is home to the
tombs and mausoleums of several emperors, queens, governors, §
saints, philosophers, scholars and other significant people from
different eras. In fact, historians believe around 5 hundred |

R T R

—— SRR, =5 % LR S = S St

enqlish-11 Federal |SB Sia6 SideB Process Blak f4/ARI2N2TE NS DR- 22



G| World Heritage Sites in Pakistan
thousand to 1 million people were-buried on the hill between the 14th and 18th century. The
intricate stone carving d\ri*n,.‘t,tr‘){gftaiveéités in the 'City of Dead' display Hindu, Islamic, Persian,
Mughal, Gﬁr}qﬁtﬁhd‘ ddle Eastern-style artwork. It indicates the necropolis was used by more
thanone ﬁei‘igioﬁ or civilization. The sprawling necropolis covers an area of 10 kilometres.

HOW TO GET THERE: If you're staying at Karachi, you can make a day trip to Makli and Thatta. It'll
take you about two hours to reach your destination

The Archaeological Complex of Taxila

Taxila includes a Mesolithic cave and the archaeological 2 : :
remains of four early settlement sites, Buddhist monasteries, =i fi‘:‘.‘,},‘;ﬂf‘l L7
and a Muslim mosque and madrassa. Situated near the Silk % v U g

Road that linked China to the West, Taxila reached its zenith  SEbRvg

between the 1st and 5th centuries. It is now one of the most iy 5

important archaeological sites in Asia. One of the sites, the SN
Bihr mound, is associated with the historic event of the

triumphant entry of Alexander the Great into Taxila, The .

\ \
\

archaeological sites of Saraikala, Bhir, Sirkap, and Sirsukh are. |t
collectively of unique@ﬁpefgajqce ‘i(f\i\l/tj'its'tﬁa\ﬁnﬁwthe :
evolution of urban settlement on the indian subcontinent.
The Taxi fgﬁ[@iéﬁio ircludes Khanpur cave from where
microlith J\tooﬂ of the Mesolithic period were found.
Buddhist monuments erected throughout the Taxila valley
transformed it into a famous religious destination for pilgrims from Central Asia and China. This
historical site was added to the list of UNESCO World Heritage Sites in 1980.

HOW TO GET THERE: If you are staying at Islamabad/ Rawalpindi, you can make a day trip to
Taxila. It will take you about one hour to reach your destination.

Buddhist Ruins of Takht-i-Bahi and Sahr-i-Bahlol

-~
>

the most well-preserved Buddhist complexes from
that time period. Due to its location in the
mountainous range of what is now the modern-day
city of Mardan in Khyber Pakhtunkhwa, this stone £
monastery remained largely unaffected (ff;onffi."l

invaders and aggressors./_A;ghagp}ugiﬁ;fs,fﬁéﬁ' Ve E
inscriptions found in Takht:iBah, Which-titerally _ g
means 'thronl_:pfﬁw?\g}ffgféﬁ\té Gondophares |, the g

founder &{K{ﬂ@é%@iéﬂt\‘lnda-Parthian Kingdom. After

being abandoned in 7 AD, the sites sustained some damage. However, it was re-discovered in the
early 1900s. The excavations began in 1907, leading archaeologists to unearth the large complex
along with other important artefacts and statues. Both Takht-i-Bahi and Sahr-i-Bahlol were listed
as UNESCO World Heritage Sites in1980.




Unit 7 . Wmltfﬂenﬁigaéitej i Pakistan

HOW TO GET THERE: If you are stawng at lslamabad "youtan makea' i
day trip to Takht e Bahi. It wm take yDu abaﬂmne and half hours to

reach your destmatlon ﬂmm Peshawarit takes around one and half [ -
hour. ] ' \[} IN N\ l | What does the word

“inscription” mean?

Lahore Fort and Shalamar Gardens

These are two masterpieces from the time of the brilliant Mughal dynasty, which reached its
height during the reign of the Emperor Shah Jahan. The fort contains marble palaces and mosques
decorated with mosaics and gilt. The area includes two

distinct royal complexes, the Lahore Fort and the Shalimar '

Gardens, both located in the City of Lahore, at a distance of 7
km. from each other. Both sites are outstanding examples of !
Mughal artistic expression at it is height, as it evolved during
the16th 'and 17th centuries. There are 21 monuments
preserved within the boundaries of Lahore Fort from the reign
of Akbar (1542-1605) through the reign of Shah Jahan (1627-
58). Equally the Shalimar Gardens, laid out by Shah Jahan in
1641-2 embodies Mughal garden design. Both complexes- tqg\e\zhep nmy\bﬁuundefstood to
constitute a masterpiece of human creatwe gemua These t\vo historicat’s sites were added to the
list of UNESCO World Heﬂtaggﬁlte;wﬁm \ W\ ;, -

HOW TO GET THERE: Bo of these iitﬁare located with the territory of Lahare City. It will take
you about hal(Jan@Nt Jone-hour to reach your destinations depending on the location of your
place of stay. ]\

Rohtas Fort

Pashtun King Sher Shah Suri, the founder of short-lived Suri
dynasty, built the Rohtas Fort in the 16th century. It is located
near the city of Jhelum. UNESCO described it as an
‘exceptional example of the Muslim military architecture of
Central and South Asia.' The remarkably intact Rohtas Fort
was added to the list of UNESCO World Heritage Site in
Pakistan in 1997, This incredible fortress was built in 7 years.
The rationale behind it is construction was to stop the forces of Mughal Emperor Humayun from
invading the region following his defeat in the Battle of Chausa. The Rohtas Fort sits on an
elevated hill on the Pothohar Plateau. The sprawling fortress is surrounded by four kilometers of
fortified walls reinforced with 68 bastion towers and twelve gates. Thist historicat site'in Pakistan
used to hold a force of up to 30,000 personnel That makes 1t an 1ncred1hty difficult military
stronghold to attack. [ \

HOW TO GET THERE: If ynu)ar& &taymg at 1slamabad yuu can n'lake a day trip to Rohtas Fort. It
will take you about Lwa ppurs to\ reachyour destination. From Lahore it takes around three and
half hours.c, [\ N NN

(The above fext has been taken from a travel brochure of Pakistan Tourism Devetc:—ment
corporation’s website, https://tourism.gov.pk/ptdc.html) -

Pust -reading

[+ Name the Heritage site you like the best?w

R n-wm‘-ﬂ A



Sites in Pakistan

Given below are the difficult words from the unit. Look at their meanings and give
synonyms of each in the given column, The first one is done for you.

Words Meanings
irrespective without regard to something specific

———

communal relating to or used by a community "

funerary relating to or associated with funeral rites

carvings designs or figures that are carved intao a mrfaoe

necrapolis a large cemetery of an ancient c1ty .

zenith the highest point or peak o r\m Z

mesolithic relating to the middle parl: of th& Stone Age, |
characteﬁzeW the us&qf mlmal\ths (small stone
tools)_ \\

bastion N N &Wkﬁng part uf le[s built at an angle
a set of reasons or a logical basis

. NN
rationale - '

a. Read the unit carefully and answer the following questions.
1. Which site is described as "the oldest physical evidence of urban planning™?
2. What is the significance of the Makli Necropolis?

3. What does the inclusion of multiple styles of artwork in Makli Necropohs
suggest about it is history and usage? .

4, What historical events and figures are. assoclated with the Taxrla archaeological
complex, and why is it signiﬁcant‘?’ \ \

5. In what ways do thes&-ﬁentagesr{es reflect the‘nch and diverse history of
Pakistan? !

6. Do. You| mpﬁk\ﬁs impnrtant for the government to invest in the preservatmn and
mamtenance of such heritage sites? Why or why not?

7. Imagine you had the opportunity to visit one of these sites. Which one would
you choose, and what aspects of its history and culture would you be most
interested in exploring?

8. Do you believe that it's the responsibility of all global citizens to protect and preserve
cultural and natural heritage? Why or why not?

P T 85 e e =~




b. Answer the gwen shqri qu&sﬁ\ns by chansmg the correct answer:.
i.  Why qu IMERiJ Necmpulls declared a World Heritage Site by UNESCQ?
a] it 1S h famous religious destination for pilgrims.
b) It is the oldest physical evidence of urban planning. :
c) It is a massive funerary site with tombs from different civilizations.
d) It is associated with the triumphant entry of Alexander the Great.
ii.  Which historical event is associated with the Bihr mound in Taxila?
a) The Battle of Chausa
b) The founding of the Indo-Parthian Kingdom
c) The triumphant entry of Alexander the Great
d) The evolution of urban settlement on the Indian subcontinent
iii. What was the primary purpose behind the construction of Rohtas Fort?
a) To showcase Mughal artistic expression AR\
b) To serve as a Buddhist pilgrimage site >\ €© DL
c). To stop the forces of Mugha J;m/peror Hwﬁ y@q'ff@i@aﬂmg the region

D. To act as a c%mmunal buna’t{txe f@r‘ \@mus civilizations.
\ \

Geographical Information System and Tourism |fg

Geographic information systems (GIS) are
essential for developing the tourism sector. It |-
makes it possible to create applications and
interactive maps that provide visitors latest
details about places to go, attractions to see,
and services available in those areas. GIS aids
travellers in route planning, hotel choices, and
locating sites. By examining tourist information, [ ..
traffic patterns, and weather updates, it also |-, "
helps with sustainable tourism management. | -
Additionally, GIS supports risk assessment and =
catastrophe management for safer t[aveta‘.
including landslide and flashflood warnings. |\ \ \) )
Globally, GIS enables the tourism- mdustgr to pro“ﬂe more custom1sed effective, and
responsible services, improvmg thec travel xpenence for visitors.

N
Activity| W‘\ No

(‘The teacher will assign each student group a tourist site in Pakistan and, pmvide them with a map. W
Students will mark their assigned site on the map and use GIS tools to calculate distances, locate |
airports, train stations, bus terminals, hotels, and resorts. Eachgmupwill thenpresenttheirvmualtcur
itinerary to the class, covering site details, travel routes, transportation options, and accommodations.

The class will engage in discussions, questions, and comparisons of different sites, exploring the
| advaritages and challenges of visiting each location.




”’?‘ W 6)
-\ ‘\\_.A\\_’Z‘/
Worid“ Heritage Sites in Pakistan

RS e o e

~\
| '«.\

rldioms and Proverbs:w

rldiorns and proverbs enrich language by providing colorful expressions, conveying cultural
values, assisting efficient communication, and adding depth and variety to conversation.
They are an integral part of language and culture worldwide. Some proverbs and idioms
related to travelling are shared below with meanings:

Idioms:

Hit the road: To begina journey or start traveling.
We should hit the road early tomorrow to avoid traffic.

Travel light: To pack only the essentfals
too much luggage.

O ’\ % '
When backpacking. its P\ \;\ !:d Mw.y ight for |
I:unvenlenc{NN\( N ‘

Catch a red-eye flight: To take an overnight flight. -
I'l catch a red-eye flight so | can arrive in the 'S GO TRAVEL
morning.

Proverbs:

Home is where the heart is: No matter how far you travel, your true home is where you feel
the most comfortable and loved.

The journey of a thousand miles begins with a single step: To achfeye a stggtﬂgaht goaI you
must start with a small, manageable action. szl ‘,3\,&;.:-\;

Travel broadens the mindl“‘ﬁavﬂfng umﬂ‘@énentmg d:ﬂ’erent cultures can expand your
perspective and knowl AL
NN '
When in Rome, do as the Romans do: Adapt to the customs and behaviors of the place
you are visiting.
C f .

Use the above mentioned proverbs and idioms in your own senetnces.

=




PR
A0
/H\ \ I'

, “ a \ \' '\(,md fftage Sites in Pakistan

Pronoun:- (B
"As studieq{ dﬂéﬂ ‘ﬁrades, a pmnaun is a word that is used instead of a noun or noun

phrase. Pré}ouns refer to either a noun that has already been mentioned or to a noun that
does not need to be named specifically.

Types of Pronouns.

Usein a Sentence
He is a lucky man
We are heading towards the
hills.

Possessive ' Demonstrates Mine, yours, his, | This bag is mine.
Pronoun ownership or hers, theirs, ours ' Yours is on that table.
pussession !
Reflexive Pronoun | Reflects the subject lMyself yourself, ESh(e has\ba@d\@(ﬂike
| and object bemg him \f h Jhe
the same perso u \L /ﬁ manages to do his work

o 7 himself.
Demonstrative @\ ) This, that, | don't like these. Can | take

Pronc-unQ QH\J\J M\Tz or thlngs these, those those?

A _

Definition ;
Replaces specific | I, you, he, she,
people or things it, we they

Pronoun Type
|| Personal Pronoun

Examples

\// :

Interrogative Used to ask Who, whom, Who is responsible for this?
Pronoun | questions whose, which, | Which one do you like the
| what | most?
Indefinite Pronoun | Doesn't specify who | Somebody, Everyone thought that
or what is referred | someone, ‘someone will do it and at the |
to | nobody, no one,  end no one did it. l
 everybody '
'Relative Pronoun | Introducesa | Who, whom, The cyclist who won the race |
dependent clause | whose, which, | trained hard. i
that Where did you buy the dress
{ that you wore last week
| Reciprocal Indicates a mutual | Each other, one  We all. must | rg{-péct one |
Pronoun action or -~ \--\\\a\npl}[gr @\ |
relatmnship f.,"“v\ A0\ / \§
'Emphatic Pronoun Emﬁﬁaﬂzés imoun\ ysetf; ;o’ﬁ}self Aline. herself is responsible
N R a pruﬂbun V2 Thimself, herself, |for her failure.

NN’\\”\\“ N itself, ourselves |Ali, himself asked for a raise.
Distributive | Refers to members | Each, either, Each year thousands of people
Pronouns of a group | neither, none, go for Hajj.

individually any | Neither of them goes to the |
l [ gym. I
R IR AU b ]




a)Encircle the demon:ﬁrati\"e-;ﬁl‘c\mbun in each sentence given below.
- Thisis iy NAVONEE teddy bear.
+ Would you like some of these?
+ Those years at the lake were the best times of my life.

b) Add an interrogative pronoun in the following sentences.

. one of the books is your favorite?

. ___is the title of the poem that you liked?
« __ should | address the letter?

. was the package sent?

y“/\\ /r*\\

\\S

. “%—\\ \\/V
\ < \O
c) Fill in the blanks with appropriate@pe; hf Pi-onnup\

Yesterday, @eﬁuqﬁ peﬂg‘qnd\ﬁék‘up with some friends. had brought
their adurable th 3__\\ L and was a bundle of energy. _____ played
fetch W\Jﬁde, and then | decided to take a walk by to enjoy the peaceful

surroundings. As | strolled, beautiful flowers caught my eye, and | couldn't resist

asked me about the flowers, and | happily shared the story

picking a few. Later,

of my solo adventure.

d) Punctuate the given lines.
encouraging travel also boosts consumer and business confidence it supports two way trade
and creates export income for the poor countries with few similar alternatives

TR T g T

-8y



7\ World Heritage Sites in Pakistan

Writing

Ecotourism has gained popularity as a responsible and sustainable way to explore natural
environments while minimizing negative impacts. We all must protect and preserve the areas we
visit during our holidays. The goal of ecotourism may include educating tourists about clean
environment, raising money for environmental preservation, safeguarding the animals and plants
of the area and fostering respect for various cultures.

Keeping the above in mind, write an essay on “How can we become responsible Tourists?”

A
IYaRB R

QA \JN\\‘\‘ | 'Respansrble travel Local culture
Memorable experience Climate

: hange
Environmental protection SHRIES

Economic benefits
oi £ CO-towrism

E Economy %:

W Ty

Social development

\
’ Responsible =%
(/—; E.-.'g sox. 0N \:-\ \‘-,\\\-\ "1

Traditions

Ecofriendly gestures

Teacher's Point -
ofd Jhl.m:lmﬂ:.« to engnge in extended discussions and critique taking into account other speakers’
sand presenting one’s own with clarity.
. In wriuni, help the students by Introducing a topic; organizing complex ideas, concepts, and information so that
each new element builds on that which precedes it to create a unified whole; include formatting (e.g., headings),
graphics {e.g., figures, tables), and multimedia when useful to alding comprehension.

«  In classroom discussions, a variety of linguistic exponents may be used, such as inquires, persuasion, arguments,
comparisons, evaluations in a wide range of context throughout the oral communication skills practice session.

B 90 TR




Social Media:
A Blessing or a Curse?

After completing this lesson, students will be able to:

+ read with accurate pronunciation, appropriate pitch and voice variation suitable for fictional

and nonfictional texts
K + use pre-reading and while-reading strategies to analyse and explore different layers of meaning

within texts including biases and opinions

+ ask and answer higher-order questions to guide/assess reading

« apply skimming and scanning strategies for relevant information and main points in texts to
identify the writer's purpose, and intended audience. Infer the theme!mam 1dea of the text,
distinguishing between fact and opinion where necessary S\ (C \\U

« apply knowledge of parts of speech, tenses, seritence; stnfctum and other features uf grammar
and vocabulary to understand how language functwns jin, difterent’ contexts, make effective
choices for meaning ou,tyle white raad:ngg hstemng and writing

- speak confidently arrd ﬂuently in.a wide range of contexts, For example, (conflict resolution,
panel dlﬁx‘:ue‘ﬁlén,lm “play, dialogue, etc.) to fulfil different purposes (exposition,
argumentation etc.)

« evaluate the particular elements of a story or drama (e.g., how the setting shapes the
characters or plot)

= write and critique (self/peer checking) the final draft after complete editing and proofreading

» ensure each paragraph develops the main idea of the essay/piece of writing and the topic
sentence of each paragraph




‘ I CeEn T

Pre-Reading N R\R\RIE A
« Can you\:.giq‘l.}l,*qffﬁér‘éhé ways of getting the latest information ?
. Which social media platform do you like the most and why? -

You are not Alone!

Adeel entered the home and rushed to his room. Mrs. Imran got a little worried as
he hadn't spoken more than few words on their drive back from school. He was usually full
of stories and tidbits about what happened in the class and the little mischiefs that his
friends were involved in. He was a bright and cheerful boy, always enthusiastic about
school, friends, and life in general. What could be the cause? She thought worriedly.

It all started innocently enough when Adeel’s class fellows at;gdvenﬂﬁgot their
hands on some embarrassing photos of him froma scheol f2 Weﬂ/p;arty‘l%u was just being
a young man having fun. Instead pfkeepﬁlgfm&qtgth\emsewes, they decided to share
them without his conseﬁfSuﬁ?eoﬁéh&kedhis”pmﬁle and uploaded the photos. Those
images sprsa\?gﬁmﬁﬁréﬁﬁbiﬁbﬁial media, followed by cruel and hurtful comments.

Ad;\éjl\vbas' Eevastated. The once-vibrant boy
now felt like a shadow of his former self. He stopped

enjoying school, lost interest in football, and

Lo How did Adeel's silence about his
withdrew from his friends. Every day was a struggle, suffering affect the situation?

as he faced not only the online harassment but also -
the ridicule and jeering of his classmates in person. Going to school become the most
difficult thing for him to do.

Things took a darker turn when an elder group of boys at school began to blackmail
Adeel, threatening to share even more embarrassing content if he did not comply with
their demands. They were asking his lunch, his watch and then money. The weight of it all
was crushing, and Adeel sank into a deep depression, fee/-Lj_n gutterlyhetptéss !

\ . W\ N [ 7o \Aa\Z

Mrs. Imran kept asking him the reason for this change but Adeel always told her
that everything was fineCMrs. Imran decided to-take help from her brother, Muzammil, a
wise and caring n\'nanjfﬂuzammﬂ took Adeel out for a walk to the nearby park and told him
that he got@eﬁﬂﬁ%*venng support, no matter what the problem was. He assured Adeel
that he had the support of the whole family with him. At last, Adeel shared his

heartbreaking story, and his uncle listened attentively. After a moment of thought, his
uncle offered some guidance.

e TR I e ek A e R R




"Adeel," he said, 'fwnderf‘stand th@txt!ﬁs is a dlfﬂcult time for you, but you must not
suffer in silence. N hg\r& officiat authorities that can help you deal with online bullying
and harassmémtj“?

Muzammil explained that the Federal Investigation Agency (FIA) in Pakistan had a
dedicated cybercrime division. They were responsible for investigating cases related to
online harassment, identity theft, fraud and more. Adeel's eyes widened with hope as he
listened to his uncle's advice. '

“First, we need to document everything," his uncle continued. "Take screenshots of
the harassing messages, comments, and any proof related to the identity theft. Keep
records of dates and times as well. This will be vital when we report the incident to the
FIA."

Adeel nodded, finally feeling like he had a plan. His uncle also r;lkadf@his parents
and the school administration about the situation. it ‘:\essén;iat\tﬁ\Tnvolve them in
resolving the issue. They took steps to- ensﬁre Adeel's | -

safetyandwell-being. 2\ \ X\ ,\\ O

With M 'S guidance and support, Adeel
took the\h@c ssary steps. They reported the | what do you think would have
cyberbullying to the FIA, providing all the evidence | happened if Uncle Muzammil had
Adeel had collected. The authorities took the matter | not supported Adeel?
seriously, and investigations began immediately.

Over time, as the investigations unfolded, those responsiﬁle for the cyberbullying
faced the consequences of their actions. Adeel's courage in standing up against his bullies
~ not only helped him regain his self-esteem but also sent a powerful message about the
consequences of cyberbullying.

Adeel came to see the importance of getting help while dealing with online
harassment as his life gradually returned to normal. During those difficult times, his
uncle's wisdom and guidance had been his lifeline. He. a{go;ame ‘olit'of the ordeal
stronger and more resilient than ever before all becaUSe tu the’ support of his family,
friends, and the FIA. Heis\ nowrummit\ted to spread awareness about the perils of
cyberbullying and help thnse whu are struggling with similar issues,

aNINY “
W NN (Written by: Sadia Malik)

Post-reading
* Why is it important to share your problems with your familga




Glossary

Given below are the difficult words from the unit. Look at their meanings and give
synonyms of each in the given column. The first one is done for you. Also use these words
in your own sentences.

Words Meanings | Synonyms
jeering making fun of or mocking someone | taunting
unwavering firmandsteady
resilience the ability to recover from difficult

situations
perils dangers _ ‘ mﬁ\.
unfolded opened, explained _ e\ \ (CON
lifeline support O~ \(\\W\\WMY/ -
identity theft @ﬁnwamwr( w&enmwn

~ ankine plgtmrmsf i

devastated. [\ upset
vibrant\'\) 7 [ very lively

- Reading and Critical Thinking

a. Read the unit carefully and answer the following questions.
1. What happened toAdeel?
2. Whatimpression do you get of him after reading the story?
3. Whydid his mother feel that there was something bothering Adeel?
4

What was Adeel’s initial response to the cyberbullwng he expene.nced and how
did it affect his daily life? 12\ ([COV

- "/ \ \"// \“

5. What were the demands made by the e[der groupbf bb}‘s who were blackmailing
Adeel, and how did h:fee;t as a r%ulto)‘ this? -

6. How did T ,. 'ﬂ aMw Adeel to deal with the cyberbullying, and why were

ﬂ]mﬁgbs"‘ nportant?

7. In your opinion, why is it crucial to involve official authorities like the Federal
Investigation Agency (FIA) in cases of cyberbullying and harassment? What impact

do you think this had on Adeel’s situation?

8. Read some online journals/blogs/articles to find out what other problems are
faced by users of social media.

T T L e et T I T N T T S T R
Beis, : -— e T S S S S P




b. Answer the glVen short quesl;mns by chonsmg the correct answer:
i. Adeels class. f?l[om got their hands on embarrassing photos from a school

far EW* bah‘y leading to _spread across social media.
a} uplifting comments b) encouraging messages
c) cruel and hurtful comments d) supportive remarks
ii. Adeel's withdrawal from school and loss of interest in football were direct
consequences of both online harassment and from his
classmates.
a) encouragement b) support
c) ridicule d) empathy
fii. Adeel took the necessary steps by reporting the cyberbullying to the FIA and
providing ___ , leading to investigations and consequences for the
perpetrators.
a) irrelevant information b) fabricated m‘dence
c) all the evidence he had collected d) unspedﬂc r:hztaail;~

. wjy Oral Communication

Connec_t»Sa\felg,N] )

= Reliable? |

|Check information

The internet is both a blessing and a curse. Teenagers are vowing up with smart phones in

activities like keeping in touch with friends on'social media,

their hands, tablets, and laptops in their homes. ﬂteytlsedigkaﬂedmoghsfare'myday
relaxing and doing school work.
ullyonline and how to avoid online risks.

Teenagers need to know how to behave respé

How To Contact FIA?

it it in front of the class in an oral presentation or
mamngannnﬂﬁyaphk Call helpline; 1991

Email:helpdesk@nric.gov.pk

- Share one practical tip or strategy that you believe is crucial for PR 1T
staying safe while using the intemet and social media platforms?
Explain why you think this tip is important and how it can help
protect your online security and privacy.

051-9106690
0519106691




m or a Curse?

1. Clauses:
A clause is “a group of words containing a subject and predicate and functioning as
a member of a complex or compound sentence.

" - Merriam-Webster

Example:

I went to Lahore last year. (One clause sentence/ simple sentence)

I came here and | saw my fri end. (Two clause sentence/compound sentence)

When | came here, | saw my friend, and he greeted me. ,('Hafee clause

' I&/ﬁ .\

| sentence/ compound-camptexsentence} A e /( \| '/,, \ \\u\/ -
| There are two main typesofclauses 70\( (“). \ IR\B=
~ \ \ V \ \ \
+ |ndependent CQUSE O\ “ e

. Dep r@@wam =

 Independent Clause

It functions on its own to make a meaningful sentence and looks much like a regular
sentence with a subject+verb+object (SVO) structure.

In a sentence two independent clauses can be connected by the coordinators: and,
but, so, or, nor, for, yet.

Examples:
+ He is a wise man.
+ | like him.
« Canyoudoit? P
« Dot please. (Subject you is hlddgn) PR e AN / O
« |read the whule nnvel \ W)

claustq J.\J‘ VA
o London and visited the Lords. (Subject of the second clause is 'he,’
SO “he visited the Lords” is an independent clause.)

« Alina smiles whenever she sees her son, (One independent clause)

i P . S ot M W " ' % 1wl AT Ry 14, BT M
T 96 T s e i




<\ $dcial Medj_a.‘iﬁlessing or a Curse?
= T -

Dependent Clause | \\ LA
It cannot. fun;:ﬂlpm&h its own because it leaves an idea or thought unfinished. It is
also caliéc‘ a subordr’nate clause. These help the independent clauses complete the
sentence. Alone, it cannot form a complete sentence.
Example:

» When | was returning home, | had an accident.

« | know the man who stole the watch.

» He bought a car which was too expensive.

+ | know that he cannot do it.

+ He does not know where he was born.

« If you don't eat, | won't go.
The subordinators do the work of connecting the dependent clause t0)2 \énuﬂ'ter
clause to complete the sentence. In %qch of the débgm{éri(éjausbs” the first word is
a subordinator. Subordmatorg}ndlud mﬁg;vqprnnduns 'subordinating conjunctions,
and noun clause marke
Dependen gwttome i thre?e types
noun c\ﬁ , relative clauses, and adverb clauses.
(Noun clauses replace other nouns in a sentence, but relative and adverb clauses
modify words already in the sentence rather than removing and replacing them.)
Let's look at relative Clauses in detail.
Relative Clauses
As can be seen from the examples of dependent clauses above, complex sentences
or sentences with one or more dependent clauses are formed principally by means
of relative pronouns. Relative clauses give us information about the person or thing

mentioned. The basic relative pronouns are who, which, and that (who also has the
derived forms whom and whose).

a)  Underline the relative chuse inﬁth ,sentance:Encﬁ';:le the relative pronoun
that 1ntroducn the clluu 771 SRR

. Thebookthat| got frmn}ke-tibrary T Iep——

i, Wi M}{ Mﬂér. whom I respect, congratulatedme ona job well done.
1 NAS Thestore no longer sold the computer that | wanted.

iv.  Thechild to whom you have spoken is my sister.

V. The tallest man who came to the show is my Uncle Abid.

vi. My first novel, which was published last year, was about my family.

97




b) Fillin the blanks with apprapriate Relative pronouins to make Relative clauses.
i. Thisisthe town:[l_\ |\ I spent my childhood.

i, Thléiw;eﬁme__l was bornin..

iii. Isagave herapencil_____ sheputinherbagatonce.

iv. ThisisAli __youmet last year.

v. Thepeople live next door are not very friendly.

vi. The only thing matters is to find our way home.

vii. She was respected by the peoplewith ______ she worked.

2. Adjective:

An adjective describes or modifies noun/s and pronoun/s in a sentence. It normally
indicates quality, size, shape, duration, feelings, contents, agd/mgre/;}bg%a\iﬁpun or
pronoun. Adjectives usually provide relg\g\aﬂtf[}[@m@@q@\iﬁ?ﬁ?ﬂ%ﬁnﬂﬁﬂﬁmouns

they modify/describe. W (GRS
O\ _—~2\\ VLV WP AN
Example: CART AR f\& ==

, istanicrickeb tear has fast bowlers. (What kind?
Thgﬁgjli‘l\s\ﬁwpgt'@%te m has fast bowlers. (What kind?)

+ He have ten candies in his pocket. (How many?)

+ |lovedthat red car. (Which one?)

+ | earn more money than he does. (How much?)

Types of adjectives
! Type of adjectives | Definition | examples | Used in a sentence
t — |- | S I S I
. Descriptive l describes nouns and | Fast/slow, : Ihave a fast car.
Adjectives/ | pronouns - easy/tough, ' The hungry cats are
| Qualitative ‘ Long/short ~ Crying. |
Adjectives | | |
| Quantitative refers to the ﬂgmhers - \,tyive Zﬁrﬁpmsin my
Adjectives quantity of the () !shuvnng ',waﬁet: (How much)
nouns/pronaun) / /| J quantity |\ — [/They have three
OV AN s - children. (How many)
Proper Aﬁ{eﬁw'eﬁmjil’ the adjective form ' England, | The English language
NN of proper nouns Karachi, China, | The Chinese Cuisine
| Chiniot | The Chinioti Furniture

TE 98 DR T

znalish-11 Federal ISB Sia7 SideB Process Blankf4MA2PA1PE-05-00-27



Cumpuun ], J H ” I:cnmpruunnzl Once-lively ' You have a broken-
Ad]ectives' nouns/combined broken-down | down sofa,

\ words modify other = two-week He saw a six-foot-long

| nouns often separated | snake.

| | by a hyphen

Demonstrative refers to something  this, that, This car is mine.

1 Adjective or someone these, those.
' Possessive Adjectives | indicates possession  my, his, her, My car is parked

| or ownership our, their, your. = outside.

His cat is very cute,

\ i
Interrngatfve asks a question. which, what, Which phon&dﬁvﬂu
' Adjectives must be followed by whose N EOMN

“/ ;\ N\ Wﬁose car is thls?

a noun or a prpnom)‘

| (1 0\ .'/ ,/ H’ M
Indefinite Adjectives déscrihes AN few many, ' Sana gave some candy
] modjﬂes anoun much, most, to her.

N \] N N N unspeciﬁcally - | all, any, each, | Noor wants a few
every, either, moments alone.
nobody,
several, some,
etc.

a) ldentify different types of adjectives from the given sentences.
i. Thecoffee was made from fresh, ground Colombian coffee beans.
ii. Whose child s this?
iii. The fourth boy became first in the final exam. P
iv. There is enough juice for my breakfast /@
v. lamreadinga collection of Greek myths
vi. Thisboyis paintlng a great picture,”
vii. Most; genple Lcirver poor in this world.
viii. My fatherwasa university professor.
ix. Therecord-breaking snow storm has finally passed.
X. Many scholars are attending the research conference.

99



Unit 8

/ \ \ ) 3 S
\ \ ) \
\ O\ A
-

b) Write a short descr ptive paragr;phde cribing an object/place or person using
differagﬁ;y@#}ﬁf‘\ ‘éihj‘éfﬁves given above.
¢) Punctuate the given lines.
news broadcast through different media helps us know about the day to day events in
the world news tele films and documentaries revolving around social issues increase

social awareness in children and develop their concern towards society and
strengthen the relationship between the media and common man

~ ~~\

3. Use the given phrasal verbs in sentences. _ <\ /2 |/
\ \ N\ A~

i. givein

ii. giveout _{ QAL AN
i, giveupu NN o~
" R e—

iv. g\u after
V. g0 against

vi. go ahead _

Writing

Internet is a double edged sword. It has its pros and
cons. Pros of the internet include access to vast
information, online courses (MOOCs), fnreducar{ﬂn_'
effective digital marketing f_q,l;.swa}t}ﬁﬂgjnf@g'ﬁefrg;}._'a'nd a
plethora of entertainmentoptionsﬁ@ever, it has cons -
like privacy -q@@éfnﬁ,ﬁ \misinformation, addiction to | MOOC stands for Massive Open
WNININASY : - Online Courses that you can
enterthphﬁ%eﬂt, and potential online fraud. Balancing its y

. . register yourself into and get
benefits and drawbacks is crucial. self-paced, free instruction to

improve your skills.

List the pros and cons of Internet in the table below.




Now write an J{ ptmi\re ‘essay of 250 350 words about “Positive and Negative
Effects of m:dﬁﬁd Don't forget to use transitional devices of comparison like “but,
even so, conversely, differently, however, in contrast, in spite of, in the same way,
nevertheless, on the contrary, on the other hand”

Teacher's Point AWV AULY )
m- Encourage the studerits| tomgage fn W1WMEM and critique taking into account other

speakers' \dwpoilntsandpreuntinnme with clarity,
. E:plaln grﬂnmf;lfll:al concepts in context and help students use these concepts in different writing
M

o n aruumntatwe writing, help the students by Introducing a topic; organizing complex ideas,
concepts, and information so that each new element builds on that which precedes it to create a
unified whole; include formatting (e.g., headings), graphics (e.g., figures, tables), and multimedia
when useful to aiding comprehension.




_rSunshine After Rain
. (Brenda Winders)

After completing this lesson, students will be able to:

« read with accurate pronunciation, appropriate pitch and voice variation suitable for fictional

and nonfictional texts

ask and answer higher-order questions to guide/assess reading

evaluate how authors use language, including figurative language, considering the impact on the
reader

provide an objective summary of a range of texts including fiction, non-fiction and other types
of text

evaluate two or more central ideas of a text and analyze their development over the course of
the text N :_/;\ffﬁ\':;' I

analyze multiple interpretations of a stery, drama, nrpﬁem\' CA S

identify rhyme sche/r_rpgs.,,andﬁﬁgu_rfa,‘l:“ip.;é}lSﬁgﬁ@éﬁni‘ﬁn&n\s F‘éaéif"ﬁew and analyse a variety of
reading grade-appr'qﬁﬁé;’i?’%ﬁdfhiﬁh-_‘inﬁréﬁt‘hﬁiks and texts from print and non-print sources:
a. Poetry (free verse, Tarrative and rhythmic poems)

\ |\ b

wﬂgﬁf;ﬁh]‘oht“t%?explanamry texts to examine and convey complex ideas, concepts, and
information clearly and accurately through the effective selection, organization, and analysis of
content

use summary skills to write an objective summary of the given text and poems

demonstrate knowledge and application of parts of speech in oral and written communication in
varying degrees of complexity



Pre-Reading . \\|\\\\V -

- How dqgs.\.jffg;-iikifl ‘'education translate into interaction with strangers,
making“*ﬁenﬁs and handling emergency?

+ Name some situations in which you should say 'No' to your friends or

acquaintances.

Sunshine After Rain

One day when | was young, | heard a knock at my door.
It sounded familiar, like | had heard it before.

| opened the door, and to my surprise, :
There stood a young lady with blond hair and brown eyes.

"\ . AT ;\\\A\\
She said, "I have the answers; are yaureadggtaplay?“ \

\
\

\ - |

|

So | grabbed my money,and | said gkay\;\/

There wqgﬁﬁ,ﬁgﬁ%ﬁthatl had always sought.
Liquids, pills; and powders, and | bought and bought.

Then one day, my friend suddenly changed.

Her face became ugly, calloused, and deranged. Why did her loved ones “could
only watch and frown"?

She grabbed my hand and we tore through the town.
My loved ones and friends could only watch and frown.

She kept whispering something | could only guess.
It sounded like she was repeating, "Yes, Yes, Yes."

| thought of my family, oh what a mess,
But all | heard was screaming, ""I’ES‘,,:I’EQ,jes.fﬂ"

I had to find help; | y'\fa_s;}?; \my
| had lost rfw“cl'p’ﬂmw family, and my friends.

| said, "God are you there? Can you help me, please?"
A sudden peace cam® over me and | fell to my knees.




; e\ — ﬂm/_:\\z\‘:\ \\\l ‘r’ ‘/’E') "". {»»;‘\',\:.'7\"/
Unit 9 0 A\ T QLN /"=~ Sunshine After Rain
g e A T e s iy sy - g v .3 L e R s et gl B B oy TRy 8 ~

| said, "God, \i]minﬁk%rth It,y I feel hke a jerk."
He said, ‘Suit up and show up; it's time to go to work."

So | am here to tell you in this little rhyme.
Life keeps getting better one day at a time.

So when you think you are going insane.
There's always sunshine after the rain

Citation:
Brenda Winders. “Sunshme After Rain.” Family Fnend Poems August 201

\/'7

Inspirational Poem Abo@t‘Aﬂcﬁttioﬁ

\B\Ehe

From th \Ji%iii Eiaem was written when | went to treatment in 2002. | loved
drugs an emg high | was a good person doing bad things. | lost my family, and my
heart breaks every day. But | pray that | will continue to find that sunshine. I finally
learned the diﬁerence between needing recovery and wanting it.”

| Theme of the Poem:

The main theme of the poem is the journey of a person from despair to hope,
emphasizing personal transformation and recovery. It explores the consequences of
drug addiction, making destructive choices, the loss of relationships, and the ultimate
realization of the need for change. The theme highlights the idea that no matter how

terrible the situation may seem, there is always a possibility for, rgcavery and a

brighter future 6 N\an q \‘\\v | (_3\_3 S

\ L\’ yl

* What does the poet mean by "life keeps getting better one day at a time™?
* How does life get better?




Given below are the difficult words from the unit. Look at their meanings and give

synonyms of each in the given column. The first one is done for you. Also use these
words in your own sentences.

Words Meanings | Synonyms
calloused insensitive ' unkind, uncaring
deranged - | mentally disturbed
frown showing disapproval or o

) displeasure A
wits mental faculties or B AYEOWN

intelligence - * Qth) N[ ()0

jerk an obnoxious person’ () \\ VP - U
insane beﬁng qul@h nﬂﬁ*atlonal

. (\J
- \

NNNP

g Reading and Critical Thinking

a. Read the peom carefully and answer the following questions:

1.

Consider the poem’s title, “Sunshine After the Rain.” How does this title
encapsulate the central message of the poem?

. Skim the poem and identify the key themes.
. What do you infer about the narrator's initial response to the young lady who

came to their door?
What might the poet be refering to in "liquids, pills, and powder&'?

. What were the consequences of the narrator's cheice| to take dwgs’

Explore the mgmﬁcance of the‘- re]‘-iéﬂted warﬁ *'Yes in/ the poem. What could it
symbolize? of\ra%

Pick out some fthe literary devices used in the poem. (Symbol, metaphor,
repetujm hd‘ ahlteratlun}

Do you agree with the idea that "life keeps getting better one day at a time™?
Why or why not?

How does the poem address the theme of redemption or second chances? Do
you know someone who turned a new leaf and changed his/her life?

ST SRR 105 DO AN




b. Answer the gwe*ﬁ shrm questions by chuosmg the correct answer:
. In the poe\r]w,\mgl spaakemmtually opens the door because:
a} Bh@ recogmzed the visitor's face.  b) she was expecting someone.

c) she heard a familiar knock, d) she wanted to play a game.
ii. The young lady in the poem offers the speaker:

a) friendship and companionship. b) answers and a chance to play.

¢) money and possessions. d} liquids, pills, and powders.

iii. The turning point in the poem occurs when:
a) the speaker's family becomes deranged.
b) the young lady's appearance changes.
c) the speaker loses all her possessions.
d) the speaker reaches out to God for help.

In Pakistan *ﬁ iumber of drug addicts as per a UN report is
7.6 mllhﬁ\(’&; JQkh}, 78% of whom are male, while the remalmng
22% are female, The number of these addicts is increasing at the
rate of 40,000 per year, making Pakistan one of the most drug
affected countries in the world. Drug education is of vital
importance in Pakistan, addressing a critical need to raise -
awareness about the physical, psychological, and social risks © 7%
associated with drug use. Physically, drugs can wreak havoconan **
individual's health, leading to addiction, overdose, and
debilitating diseases, even death. Psychologically, they can alter brain chemistry, impair
judgment, and induce mental health disorders. Socially, drug abuse breaks relationships,
disrupts communities, and lead to criminal activities. It's essential to emphasize that
while drugs can have legitimate medicinal uses, they can also be a source of recreation.

This dual nature highlights the importance of educating individuals especially young
people on making informed choices. The causes included magmty to-say | No to friends,
peer pressure, stress and anxiety and loneliness. Eqmppiﬂg\wr ;pquth*vhtﬁ strategies to
resist peer pressure and develop refush’e smlls \is \crucial. Drug education serves as a
protective shield against the harmful ifm| m af:t of substance abuse. It enables individuals to
make responsible dECISIﬂI‘T& for thelr well-being and the betterment of society.

j‘“
 Activity )

Divide the class in groups. Give each group a different topic from the above passage.

Number of drug addicts,
Reasons for drug addiction




*"Sun;hui.ne After Rain

J 1
-\ I~
; —~ [T\ (¢
. \ |\ il ~ \\ N J ( C/ \U)
= =

Problems caused by Drug add1ctmn -

Refusal skils (sayméi No) -

Ways to gét help

Ask them to look up more information on the given topics and then present it to the
class. They may make a small poster/ infographic and explain it to their class fellows.

Vocabulary and Grammar

1. a.Adverb:-
As we have studied in earlier grades, an adverb is a word or an expression that modifies
a verb, adjective, another adverb, determiner, clause, preposition, or sentence.
Example: AR

+ The bird sang melodiously. (How?) (172 -
He is very careless. (How much‘i’i - \ Y \
They are still playingﬁutside.\where?i
We are fnqm;Qf ahd we! often meet. (How frequently?)
We, p}@édib é\ant these trees in the morning. (When?)
Adverbs typlcally express manner, place, time, frequency, degree, level of
certainty, etc., answering questions such as how? in what way?, when?, where?,
and to what extent?. This is called the adverbial functinn, and may be performed by
single words (adverbs) or by multi-word adverbial phrases and adverbial clauses.

b. Types of Adverbs:

-

Types Adverbs | . Examples |
Sometimes, recently, 1 | used 10 go out for refreshments.
Adverbs during, always, soon, yet, | "¢ purchased a costly Diamond
usually, never, etc. 3. He caught eating his tffin during the lectures,
2 Everywhere, into 1 He tiver to m- a nm-qm
Adverbs of nowhere, here, there, i “%% . u
Place above, below, inside, etc.| ™ oy o EE ' Iu.hl:
Adverbs of | Dangerously, softly, 1. The barber trimemed
M . quickly, gently, nently e }'-,'w'f“‘"" "’ m‘
anner calm, etc. (_4 ,-.1 'mmmnuummmmnumm

Adverbs of ) | Entirely s b highiy | Toders cimas b xcemety bt
n.qm '-“m"!'. almnant&i\ubﬂ stc. i"’rmmhm I -
| .',‘ \

Cnnstanllr. always

L N |
occasionally, regularly 2 - % w:'nu-m |‘

periodically, etc.

next, now, undoubtedhr. . Goodby
Conjunctive | 0t additionally, 2 He woukd bt piey thas work:
Adverbs  |anyway, etc. SR

=4



N\

a ’\‘(\\.\

.\\ / /_\ .\\“\y
(1o \ (C

- Ce
O\ \ N './ o \o\—ﬁunshmeAfterRam

3('
[~

\\\J\/\'\\

e \ \\
\ \ \) \\/‘/>

(\ \\ \'..“\ o

« \

c. Positioning Adver
It is also

changing
Example:

eir

position might change the meaning.

%Wt Lﬁow where these adverbs are to be placed in a sentence as

(a)They immediately called off the plan to go on a strike.
(b) They called off the plan to immediately go on a strike.

In sentence (a), the plan was to go on strike but something happened and the plan
was immediately called off. (There will be no strike)

In sentence (b), on the other hand, it means that the plan originally was to go on
strike at once, but something happened and they delayed going to the strike at
once. (They might go later)

O
_|Expmples (C'0)

Adverb Positian
Adverb of | Sadly, well, 1% @\/\L\ | She/sang the song
manner carefull beautifully.
quickl TA dle for-ly He politely declined the
AN M adverbs) offer.
Adverb of - Away, here, After the verb or | He does not work here.
place there, nnwhere, the object | knew | have seen him
somewhere somewhere.
Adverb of Afterwards, soon, | Initial or end Recently, | met your
time recently, today, father.
lately, eventually They have moved to
America recently.
Middle He will soon be out of this
firm.
She will now make the
announcement.
Adverb of | Always, never, Middle | He/hasn @}é}'bd a
Frequency | rarely, . € 3_ \\ A\ Q@ @Jﬁb
| sometimes \f 70\( ¢ ,‘ \\\‘ I/,\‘-\
| usually, @’i&nﬁ“ \ \Q N
onal VU
W .
Initial or end There isn't much crowd at
(for-ly adverbs) the stop normally.
Usually, he wakes up very
early.




d. Sequence of dYFrb B
if there. QFB l;WB bf' more adverbs after the verb, adverb of manner comes first,
followed by adverbs of place and time. Verb

Ayesha performed brilliantly at the Youth g_g g ence last Saturday.

I. Underline the adverbs in the following sentences and state their kind.

1. | went to the market in the morning.

2. The dog sat lazily in the shade of the tree. _——
) o | '/._\\. / /:) ‘,7\:\\'. \\ \ y“ )
3. | often visit my grandparent. A e \j IARE S
ﬂ C< A\ \.\f \ \ \\I‘. \ \ \ }l N_A=
4. It is extremely hot today AWV WY )

A=A \ b\w s

5. She is standing outﬂd \ O\ \ M INS

ii. Rearr ;ﬁn éenténcés below to make meaningful sentences with correct
sequenéé\of adverbs.

i. always / the / Sunday / make / on / they f breakfast

ii. friends / plays / the / with / she / her / in / often / park

jii. bed / makes / he / his / never

iv. sometimes / on / play / we / Sunday / cricl-:et

v. hardly / the / watch / they / TV / afternaon/! gvar Y jn

NN\

vii. A / lunch / fish / seldom / for / we




"’4«/-7\ \ [~ Y\
~ [\ ([
\

G\ ek
Sunshine After Rain

(2O
I \_™

2. Pronoun hntecedeqt,. ‘

g VA "1\\\\,\1 \'\ J AR\ VW T |
’ pmnouniﬂﬂw‘ﬁ“& s a word that comes before a pronoun to which the pronoun
refers.

Example:
The man was asking about his son.

The woman said that her husband was not feeling well.

— T

The players were concerned about their performance.

The word “antecedent” means something that precedes somethigg,{glse. In
language, it is the word that a pronoun refers Egck t0“§1n\£e\'t{:m@rpr{@(njﬁblaces the
noun, it has to agree in number. So, if t'?@?ﬂ‘fﬁﬁﬂ?éﬁ& (\b{}gﬂ;“d{hﬂt” comes before, is
singular, then the pronoun that takes its b{@\é’ﬁ.\'\njq;ﬁal\sﬁﬁé singular.

It can be confusing if the,r‘q"—hf(\e:\\s‘(gf\{gi\al‘“v-ﬁo‘rdi between the pronoun and its antecedent.
These word %?Q%Rgﬁijwldvﬁﬁﬁ'beaﬁng on the words and they need to be ignored.
Following a>e|§ome special situations with examples of the correct way to have pronoun
antecedent agreement, .

a) Singular Indefinite Pronouns

The singular indefinite pronouns take a singular antecedent. They refer to a single

unspecified person or thing or to one collective group.

Examples:

Each of these gadgets has its own pros and cons.

Everybody came in his or her car.

b) Plural Indefinite Pronouns
The plural indefinite pronouns which include: several, few,both ,méﬁy,and others
are always plural in context, and would always f&ﬁ@@\ﬁ?’g’rﬁ[ﬁdﬁﬁﬂﬁé.
Examples: AT\ ZANESR\A

Several applica nts suhmu:*.Ed_ﬂﬁ

m gﬁﬁliéggion for the vacancy.
Feg.gfg;@ﬁ@b’gﬁ tacted our sponsors.
NN

c) Two nouns or Pronouns Joined by 'and’

When faced with an antecedent that consists of two nouns or pronouns joined
by the word and, the principle is to use a plural pronoun.




_araib an na said" l' ﬂ wﬂ.l go to the mall together.

{and I must study harder before the commencement of our exams.

d) Nouns Joined by Or or Nor
« When faced with two nouns that are both plural, the principle is to use a
‘plural pronoun.
« |f you come across two nouns that are both singular, use a singular pronoun.
« When the antecedent consists of one noun that is singular and another one
that is plural, make the pronoun agree with the nearest noun.

Examples:
Either the Lahore Qalanders or the Karachi Kings will be scheduled to play their
matches come next Tuesday. N\ P F\.‘\.‘ﬁ&\\l

N ,Kﬁ \ A
Neither Ali nor Saleem was ready to len%mexh,_; boqk’ \ (O \o=2
her urse nor my keys are Wh r& 1 e@t 9@9111,‘ J
= .\I \ \4

T—\/ \ \ rl\ \ »
A VLWV

\\ \ \'\
E) %‘%WNJQU V-
Most collective nouns including committee, family, group, and team have singular

form, but may take singular or plural pronouns. However, when the group acts as a
unit, use a singular pronoun.
Examples:
The committee submitted_its report on the missing fund today.
The jury reached its verdict earlier today.

1) Determine which pronoun best fits the pronoun-antecedent agreement rule:

i. Somebody dropped (their/his or her) wallet.

ii. Some of the girls sang (their/her) favorite song.

iii. Omer or Ali left (their/his) sunglasses on the table in the dining area.

-iv. Neither Hina nor Huma studied (their/his or her) spelling,words, TR0

v. Everybody must wash (their/his orher} hands ﬁe‘fare dmner S

vi. One of the burldmgs lost (thew? jts] elec”tnclty yesterday afternoon.
2) Punctuate the given lmes."v.‘ \\\ \--

i, if you an JFxllNh»&“l.mfc::rglmng minute
'\

\
\
\
\
\

ii. with sixty seconds worth of distance run

.--:.,n- 111 M-—f L .-



_unshine After Rain

iii, yours is the Eat‘th"-anck everytmhg thats in it'
iv. and ]wnm :a Hmre ynu L be a Man my son

3) Use the given phrasal verbs in sentences.

go back

go out

g0 over

grow apart

grow back A0

s lk/“ \ (C

gI'OW into = = ,( ) A\ , \ 1 (\A\‘-.,I |

~ARINNN ot
NN

a) Summarizing a poem:

Summarizing involves the ability of readers to pull together, or synthesize information
in a poem so as to explain in their own words what the poem is about. Summarizing is
an important strategy because it can enable readers to recall the poem quickly. It also
can make readers more aware of text organization, of what is important in a text and
of how ideas are related. Use the following steps while summannrg/a paalh

0 Readthepoem carefully Danr \:J [(2)o~=2"
0 Identtfy the poems nfaimdeas.,‘ AL Sy,
0 Idennfy the paems stru ture

A N Jldé*nflfythe poem’s imagery

v o Writeasummary of the poem
o Proofread and edit the summary

Now using the above knowledge, write a summary of the poem “Sunshine after Rain”.




Sunshine After Rain

b) Using the given mind mapr write an\expomtory essay cavering all the main points.
You can add more pajpts from yourself (i.e problems created due to drug addiction)

Td!ilk 0 Male
A0 MeECnE

female

relevant facts, extended definitions, concrete details, quotations, or other

m i-’iel\b students to develop the topic thoroughly by selecting the most significant and
information and examples appropriate to the audience's knowledge of the topic.



‘EMT 10

The Small Worv‘s:n:‘.

After completing this lesson, students will be able to:

L

read with accurate pronunciation, appropriate pitch and voice variation suitable for fictional and
nonfictional texts

ask and answer higher-order questions to guide/assess reading

evaluate how authors use language, including figurative language, considering the impact on the
reader

evaluate the particular elements of a story or drama (e.g., how the setting shapes the characters cr
plot)

read, view and analyse a variety of reading grade-appropriate and high- mteres s and texts

from print and non-print sources: (formal letter, bmgraphy, I@
gather relevant information from multiplea E’i\ﬂo ?ollumng research ethics
towrite and present their, assign @

engage effectively in ﬂéﬁ? scussions (one-on-one, in groups, and teacher-led)

w1thdwersep t r[s el topics, texts, and issues

idel pcmnd prepositions and prepositional phrases in writing

write formal letters and emails to pecple in extended academic (professional) environments for
various purposes

write a descriptive composition (giving phyfﬂcal description and characteristics/traits of a
person/object/place moving from general to specific), using correct punctuation and spelling, by
using the process approach - brainstorming, mind mapping, and writing a first draft

English-11 Federal ISB Sig8 SideB Process Blags /a2




Pre-Reading , A
 What do you lgnltbw‘algout Japan and China?
+ Can partrt:lpatory citizenship be beneficial for us?

The Small Woman:
The Heroic Story of Gladys Aylward

The Chinese Nationalist officer was
commanding the platoon. Scouting on the
wrong side of the river, he looked back at
the section of mep straggling along behind
him. '

His wandering thoughts suddenly jarred

to a standstill. A noise! An odd noisel A © SRR
far-off, high pitched sound w.wenng a@ O |

uncertain. A plane? H\l men thnught 50.

He watched\wem Jolling their eyes round the cloudless sky in an effort to locate it.
There had\geen an unusual air activity up and down the Yellow River for the past
week. Usually the Japanese planes patrolled and fired at anything that moved.

And yet this sounded almost high and momentous. He shook his head as though to
clearit. The river at this point was a mile wide; there might be children left in the village
on the other side of the river. Perhaps they were at school; but their voices carry this far.
He mounted a slight rise, crawling carefully on the top.
He raised himself to see better, and grunted in
astonishment. He reached for his binoculars and
focused. It was an astonishing sight. A great crowd of
children were assembled on the bank, all seated in a
circle and singing loudly. Some smaller ones were BAGRANED. * LAY
splashingand jumpingintheshallows. {0\ ZARE

He mentioned h1s men back WIth a hand signal “Wbit here" he said. “lt may be a
trick. Be alert”. AR\

The Japanes h.?d; ﬂny@n refugees befure them on many other occasions. And who were
these children? All refugees had left this area days ago. The river was officially closed. As
he walked along the bank, he could clearly see that they were Chinese children. They saw
him, the young ones, and raced towards him, gurgling and shouting with delight. They
screamed, “Here's a soldier. Asoldier!”.

What did the man in the platoon |
believe theoddnnigg\;g\be? |

115



[ K \J,

:ThEHerme Sto of Glad 5 Aylward

A young officer nnuced a smatt wemah\mttmg" on the ground She was thin and hungry-
looking. She gm: H;r hér feet as he approached, and with a shock of surprise, he
realized thak’ she-was a foreigner. .

‘Are you mad?' he said. 'Who are
you'? _

‘We are refugées trying to reach
Sian', she said simply.

Her Chinese was excellent.
Although, she was small like own
country- woman, and her hair
dark, he knew she was a
foreigner.

This will soon be a battlefield', he &
said wearily.

‘Are you in charge of tﬁe _. "\
children?, he ask J\ujs)

\ |
Yes, | armin&éme of them We were trying to cross the river', she said.

He looked at her directly. She was quite a young woman. Her dark hair were scrapped
back into a bun, her clothes old and soiled; there were dark circles under her eyes, and
her face had a swallow, unhealthy look.

'You are a foreigner?, he enquired.

'Yes, | am a foreigner’. While-reading

'For a foreigner-you chose a strange occupation’, he
said suspiciously.

‘Why did the officer think the
woman was a foreigner?

She looked steadily at him as he said, ' think | can get a
boat. It will need three journeys to take you all across, and it is dangerous If\a Japanese

=\

plane comes over when you are half way c:ross, there mllbe httle hopef J

| . /
| —

"We must cross the river’, she saidi

"You will probably mana.ge tu getfaudﬁuhe wllage. on the other side. The people do not
like to leave thehr hpmes evenwhen the Japanese come', the soldier said.

'l unders\émﬁ ghe sald 't was like that in Yang-cheng'.

He walked to the river edge, whistled loudly three times in peculiar, piercing manner.
From across the river came three answering whistles. Two little figures far away on the
other bank pushed a boat into the water and began to row it across.

1|Enn||n!| 14 Cadaral 100 Olafl CldaA Dranans Dl O L IOV IOR- VST - )



‘I cannot thank you enough. She sard"."a 'I %nught it'was the end of us when we could not
cross the I'"IVE'II"'.; J'\Ji j‘\J AR

The young ofﬁter noticed her sway a little as one of the children pushed against her. -

He looked at her cautiously. "You areill ', he said. "You should find a doctor. The Nationalist
troops on the other side of the river will have a doctor.’

1am alright ', she said. When we get to Sian, | shall be alright'. The soldiers ferried them
rapidly to the other side. They returned and more of the children piled it. On the third
journey the soldier helped the small woman into the boat with the last group of children.

His platoon ad gathered round to help. As the boat moved away from the bank, he
called his men to attend and salute the children. He called, 'Good luck, foreigner!'.

He turned to walk back along the bank to his platoon. As he walked, he looked into
the sky, and listened for the drone of Japanese planes. None came:, If tb@ad\ been close
to a large city or a settlement, he coulg have undefrsitotkbﬁt bt ‘wandering across a
battlefield escorting an army oﬁgggw c nes“ ::Mdrén, that'was , indeed , very curious
and satisfying Q-,. AL L %

The above is m gé{r { frbm the biﬁgraphy cal led “The Small Woman: The Heroic Story
of Gfadysﬂy by Alan Burgess (1957).

Alan Burgess (1% February 1915 - 10" April 1998) was an English Royal Air Force pilot
and author who wrote several biographical and non-fiction books between the 1950s
and the 1970s.

He wrote biography of Gladys Aylward, a British born Christian missionary, who
worked in China. Aylward became a national of the Republic of China in 1936 and
was a revered figure among the people, taking in orphans and adopting several
herself. In 1938, the region was invaded by Japanese forces, and Aylward led more
than 100 orphans to safety over the mountains, despite being wounded and sick,
personally caring for them. She moved to British-administered Hong K;Jﬂg, and
finally settled in Taiwan in 1958. There, she. faunded-the; Gladys Aylward
Orphanage,[9] where she warked untit her death ih 197&

Post-reading |

* Why did the platoon commander ask his soldiers to salute the children
at the end?

T 117 B




O : The t f Gladys Aylward
_ Wrﬂ*eé"?“‘?“m W_iagrmggw

Given below are the difficult words from the unit. Look at their meanings and give
synonyms of each in the given column. The first one is done for you. Also use these words

in your own sentences.
Words | Meanings ) Synonyms

binocular | an instrument that makes the objects seem nearer | field or opera glasses
and clearer

bun hair twisted into a round shape at the back of the
head

curious | astrong desire to know about something AR

ferried | tocarrypeopleorgoodsinaboat >\ (GO

gurgling | boat that carries peoplen /r WALWALY ”

jarred to have an ﬂnpleasaﬁt arad\arknaymg’eﬁ‘fect )

platoon |a grm{p]ﬁ( ,mldlemthat isapart of acompany

ragged /| \Gidand torn clothes

scraped | pulled hair tightly at the back; away from the face

scull small oars used to row a boat 7

straggling | the last or slowest person moving ina group

sway to move slowly from side to side

a. Read the story carefully ana answer the following questmns*
1. What is the officer's main responsibility and cnncern wm heencuunters the

children and the foreign woman by the river? -
2. What is the setting of the story?

[ ‘“;/\_) -

3. Describe the fnrmgn Wﬁmans aﬁ;earance and her reason for being with the

chlldrep' ]
4. Whidoes

1‘“

the ofﬁn:er consider it dangerous for the group to cross the river?

5. How does the officer's attitude towards the foreign woman change throughout
the passage, and why do you think it changes?

&

In your opinion, what might be the symbolic significance of this encounter

between the officer, the children, and the foreign woman during wartime?

18

s b im— el oves s B




O\

-
~ — \ \
— [~ )\ (¢ \\/UV
—~ [ -\ \\ A=/
ANV [ (0 o2
\ \ )\ | N

p '.'".\v‘ _k‘j:f«l, /- ‘i "lly\lr."j/q.y". I"" ",“ I“\ l"" .", \ II
Unit 10 | ~\\ 7\ Thé SmaltWoman: The Heroic Story of Gladys Aylward

b. Answer th '« mcfn " «bﬁfﬁ'ﬁéﬁtions by choosing the correct answer:

i, Thg@mé\\se ationalist officer became suspicious when he noticed a group of
children singing loudly on the other side of the river, especially because:
a)  the children were refugees fleeing from the Japanese.
b)  the river was officially closed, and all refugees had left the area.
c) the Japanese had driven refugees before them in similar situations.
d)  the officer recognized some of the children as his own.

ii. The foreign woman, in charge of the children, was attempting to cross the river
to reach Sian because:

a)  she was a foreign spy.

b) she was trying to escape from the Japanese.

c)  she believed there would be food in the village on the other side.
, d)  she wanted to join the Nationalist troops on %ith @‘?{@ safety.
iii. The soldier helped the foreign woman mg\m@éj crossthe river because:

a) he wanted to gatheiW' helforeign woman.

b) he was W/\ 0 their plight and offered assistance.

c) " 'r jond 0 do so by his superiors.

e planned to capture them once they reach the other side.

c. Read the story and fili the given table below eith the elements of
the story, “The Small Woman”

| Setting
Plot
Characters
Point of view |
Theme o
Conflict i
—~ AN
||| bl

\ )
\ A\ VN A
( c \ \ N

We are member o m@@g“c&mm{lh&m making this planet our home and all the people
living on i\ 1:)1 €0 ty. SDG stands for Sustainable Development Goals, which are a set
of 17 global- Bjectives adopted by all United Nations member states in 2015 as part of the
2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development. These goals serve as a universal call to action to
end poverty, protect the planet, and ensure prosperity for all by the year 2030. The 17 goals
can be seen in the psoter shared below. These goals are designed to address serious global

challenges and provide a charter for governments and common people to collaborate and
work towards a more sustainable and equitable future.

e ————

P ; —

1



The SDGs aim to prorp te 1onbr"ri"ié .
growth whilﬂ&&féguhrding the

enwronment and ensuring that no
one is left behind, leaving a lasting
impact on people and the planet for |
generations to come. |

« Discuss how the SDGs are interconnected. For example, how achieving Goal 1 (No
Poverty) can positively impact Goal 2 (Zero Hunger) and Goal 4 (Quality Education).

*+ Arrange a speech competition in your class. Divide the 17 SDGs mentloned in the
poster among students. Ask them to read and collect mformatmn eh;ha selected
SDG. Don’t forget to mention the role of young peo W(achi he SDGs. The
hold the speech competition, wher@\eacﬂ partu:rpaf\ \Wl ﬁavei? minutes to talk

about his selected SDG
Ol \

..
t“

el \'

—_—

l 1. Cataphoric reference: (Forward Reference)
| Cataphoric reference means that a word in a text refers to another later in the text
and you need to look forward to understand. It can be compared with anaphoric
reference, which means a word refers back to another word for its meaning.
| For example:
When he arrived, Ali noticed that the door was open. (he refers to Ali) ]
If you want them, there are cookies in the kitchen. (Them refers to cookies)
2. Anaphoric reference: (Backward Reference)
Anaphoric reference means that a word in a text refers back to other ideas in the
text for its meaning. It can be compared with cataphoric reference, thChA means a
word refers to ideas later in the text. A\ O\
' For example: Nt WY/ C /Q": o
Sana dropped the plate. It shattered loudly\ Ht refers back toplate)
The music stopped and‘that \upset evéryone. (that refers back to stopping of

muswc} J,
\; l
N J ]]

-_— e ——

1

1) Indicate enephorie and cataphoric references used in the sentences below:
i.  When he arrived home, Naseem went to sleep.
ii. | went out with Ayesha on Sunday. She looked beautiful.
iii. Samuel left because he was tired.
iv. |can't believe it. We won!




/-——\
- \

\ /(/

O esmalr.m-rﬁaﬁhm Hemic sm ¢ of Gla

v. Alarge grey cat wa ".:lmng on th}stalrs and | had to step over it. vi. If you
want aa g héfes -some strawberry ice-cream.

vii. Aft@r he had received his orders, the soldier left the building.

viii. If you want them, there are cookies in the kitchen.

2) Read the text of the story carefully and find cataphoric and anaphoric
references from it,

3.Preposition:

A preposition is a word or group of words used before a noun, pronoun, or noun

| phrase to show direction, time, place, location, spatial relationships, or to

introduce an object. Some examples of prepositions are: - "in”, "at”, “on”, “of" and |
“to". Prepositions in English are highly idiomatic. N w\@,

Types of Preposition ,'] 2@ C\ UL
Prepositions of Time: - Prepositions oCtlme Shbiv he\ \:ffn lp of time between
the nouns to the other w ncg \mfa\h’t in, from, to, for, since, ago,
before, till/until, by, ﬁ;@th m&u common preposition of time.

For Example \\Jl ARIS

He start@@\oﬁfng at 10 AM

She has been ill since Monday.

Prepositions of Place and Direction: - Prepositions of place show the relationship
of place between the nouns to the other parts of a sentence. On, at, in, by, from,
to, towards, up, down, across, between, among, though, in front of, hehind, above,
over, under, below, etc. are the most common prepositions of place/direction.

For Example:

The police broke into the house.

| live across the river.

Prepositions of Agents or Things: - Prepositions of agents or things indicate a

causal relationship between nouns and other parts of the sentence. Of, for, by,

with, about, etc. are the most used and common prepositions of agents cr things.
For example: XN\

| This article is about smartphones.

Most of the guests have already left. = \

Phrasal Prepositions: - A phrasal pre sitmrj is'not a preposttional phrase, but they
are a combination of two, or more words which functions as a preposition. Along

with, apart fr Qéntauseﬁ by means of, according to, in front of, contrary to, in
spite of\qﬁ ia!i.Eaunt of, in reference to, in addition to, in regard to, instead of, on
top of, out of, with regard to, etc. are the most common phrasal prepositions.

For example:

They along with their children went to Atlanta.

According to the new rules, you are not right.

N T T R R ]




— '\ \ 'y‘ \
A O
:

M\ —‘//\\\\,H\l [ /\ _I'. \\\’A\ = I -
m ThHermcSto ry of Gladys Aylward

Unit 10

a) Choose the corregpg]'eppéltmnfur time am:l place.

Them&iu}“t the fugitive the corner of the street. (in, on, at)
ii. Hewillwait ___ three o'clock; then he'll have to leave. (since, until, still)
iii. They are rarely home at lunch time. (up, towards, at)
iv. 'l be home 10 minutes. (before, by, until)

b) Identify preposition of agent and direction in the given sentences.

I. He was hit by a ball.

ii, Put it inside the house.

iii. His success results from careful planning.

iv. They drove through the tunnel

c) Underline phrasal preposition in
. In spite of his har a&@
i, Accordj W ors, smoking can cause cancer.
i, | am standing here on behalf of my colleagues.

d) Punctuate the given lines,

are you mad he said who are you?

we are refugees trying to reach sian she said simply

e) Use the following phrasal verbs in sentences.

grow up __
hand out g (,C?/i@ W\
hand over 0 U /h \ \ ; \ \ |~ -

hang in g \

rangon__ e pNIe

hang up




Letter of Complaint:

A complaint letter is written with the aim and hope of finding a suitable solution for a
problem that has not been resolved. There are various problems faced by people. Making
complaints to bring these problems to the attention of the higher authorities is the only
way to resolve the problems. |

Making complaints against someone is never easy, and doing it in writing is far more
challenging because everything would be recorded. In light of this, extreme caution
should be used while writinga cumplalnt letter Wau

‘I". \ y" ) ,j\‘/
Format of a complamt (t)ettem ) '\\\ -

Sendg pk\iﬂﬂe\lé\'

DD/MM/YY

Receiver's address

Subject:
Sir/Ma'am, (Salutation)
+ Body of the Letter explaining the reason tor your letter and the
complaint
+ State the issue and its causes

+ State the problems arising from the, issue "\ (
» Give some Suggestlon/recnmfnendaunns W
Thanking you. AN
Yours, f@ithfuﬂm |

XYZ - o

A sample complaint letter is shared below. Look at the different parts and also observe
the formal style and language used.

e o 123 00 T



5

';,.:- % =2 St
City, ABC,
17% January, 2016.

mtmalafﬂnm Chairm

YOU Bre WwiTing T0. Should be written "El“f c "?"13
in & box form. Designation + Name of nion Council-23,
the Office + city. Notice the ABC.

BunNCTuBTIoN Marks,
-Subject: Defective Drainage System.

mmmsmm L ]
snd underiine It 30 It becomes L-S1r,
Righlighted. I would like to bring into your notice the extremely

bad condition of the drainage system of my locality.
- H ' facts for your consideration:
Salutation: It should be sccording to ETC ST somc r’_’ ‘ . .
the rank and the writer's relation to * The underground drains along the smaller roads
him. Use Sir/Madam or Dear or street get chocked every second or third
Se/izaie, o1 Seapected Sk/Maden month ;with dirty water overflowing from the
manholes.

® The rainwater is not properly drained out with

\[

— — - the result that roads and streets get broken. Thg
can h." mrm m,:; flooded roads become a great problem f /or
depending on the subject. It can be The clothes of passersby nﬂ@d&d lﬁd\@eﬂr

Indented, starting after & small space
of three or four betters or in & BLOCK
STYLE, starting from the margin.
There has 10 be one-lne $pace
between Two paragraphs.
points can e wWiiTien in &
form.

mmmm becnmcinl | ' /,/ \ o2
A O A\0) \ |
: lt\n/rquggpzlﬁd t/t!ltprnenb drainage system be
cle : tﬁg\tﬁu and repaired completely. New

M
iould be duz where necessary.

_ 1 hope you will try to solve this grave problem at
W\hwm' your earliest.
be used according 10 the Waiting for a fayourablg response

and mm:nﬂn "1 Yours sincerely,
Comm aitar ( XYZ

| 1. Now keeping the above format in mind, write a letter to the Chairman FBISE about
\iurredinn of the spellings of your father's name in your Secondary School Certificate.

« Read on the life and achievements of Bilqees Edhi
and her contribution to the welfare of orphans in
Pakistan and write a tribute to pay homage to her.
One of the artlcles to read:

Teacher's Point
« Engage the students to participate in extended discussions and critique taking into accourt other speakers
‘ viewpoints and presenting one's own with clarity.
'+ Explain the format of formal letters and emails to people in extended academic (professional) envirenments for
various purposes
Help the students to search SDGs over the internet. Explain the 17 goals briefly.

Help students get a copy of the article to be used in the writing activity. Encourage pair work.




’;'W}\\‘N

r/\\

o\ﬁyﬁé lstoy

, \V\/ k ';'-' e

After cumpleting this lesson, students will be able to:

engage in extended discussions and take into account other speaker’s viewpoints and presenting
one's own with clarity identify the narrator and understand narrator’s point of view

add verbs in glossary

respond to questions on a range of communicative skills discuss characters and themes of the
specific story

give an informal personal and analytical response to a text and provide some supporting textual
reference comprehend the story and answer questions appended to the text

understand modal verbs and their use in a sentence

use precise words and phrases, telling details, and sensory language to convey a vivid picture of
the experiences, events, settings and/or characters understand identlbfcmiunctlms their
function and kinds v\ , ./ o, \ (=

use pre-reading and while- reamng sﬁategles tn analy'ze and e:cplure different layers of meaning
read and use mfgfpnte an&d&dlktt on to rgogmze 'implicit meaning.

punctuate a given tﬁxl Df & tmruampfex level.

quiﬁg&ﬁlent tetters, use punctuation marks correctly understand and use noun and its

\N 5.\Be familiar with more antonyms and their use in a sentence

consult general reference materials; dictionary, thesaurus for precise Meaning/information
understand and use phrasal verbs in sentences

interpret the use of transitional devices in writing write a paragraph coherently

write informative texts to convey complex ideas, concepts of the content narrate a typical
day/event of one's life



g_w :.3.' __ ThelT ';‘, desbmn‘s By Leo Tolstqy
T s A A e W S TR 3 . v 2 n- . a_ A »/ B

e e i

- What is the basmfuﬂctmm af a stury?
- Recap thg%léh\gﬁtg "of a story as done in the earlier lessons.
- Being cm{ with others is a vital part of our religion.

Give an example from Islamic history.

It once occurred to a certain king that if he always knew the
right time to begin everything; if he knew who were the
right people to listen to, and whom to avoid; and, above all,
if he always knew what was the most important thing to do,
he would never fail in anything he might undertake.

And this thought having occurred to him, he had it §g ,
proclaimed throughout his kingdom tha& hE\W ve, HeAR

great reward to anyone who wuuld %cﬁhm@vf@t) \&as th hght time for every action,
and who were the mast% Csxssqr?\p \an‘d how he might know what was the most
important thm ) J s

And learnéﬂww}ame to the king, but they all answered his questions differently.

In reply to the first question, some said that to know the right time for every action, one
must draw up in advance a table of days, months,

and years, and must live strictly according to it. Only

thus, said they, could everything be done at its

proper time, Others declared that it was impossible | Gliess the theme of the Story -
to decide beforehand the right time for every . Hasany question bothered

action, but that, not letting oneself be absorbed in student's mind for long?

idle pastimes, one should always attend to all that |+ Hasany of the students ever come
was going on, and then do what was most needful. into contact. with a hermit?
Others, again, said that however attentive the king N J
might be to what was going on, it was lmposs1ble for : ke
one man to decide correctly the right time f;}r every-\.,"‘
action, but that he shoulﬁ ﬁave&cgunc

time for everything. , \ |\
But then gwmqpﬂe\r&‘\séid there were some things which could not wait to be laid before a
council, buﬁ about which one had at once to decide whether to undertake them or not.
But in order to decide that, one must know beforehand what was going to happen. It is
only magicians who know that; and, therefore, in order to know the right time for every
action, one must consult magicians.

R T T 126 T



Equally various were theﬁnswgrétnme\gecqﬁdq\uestmn Some said the people the king

most needed werg\h\i?vc'iqqpi;fi@”n:s'x; \others, the priests; others, the doctors; while some
said the V@W ‘kﬁ\@\tﬂ.‘ﬂé{ﬁé‘ﬁ'{ost necessary.
, NN . : :
To the third question, as to what was the most important occupation, some replied that
the most important thing in the world was science. Others said it was skill in warfare; and
others, again, that it was religious worship.
.

T VRN .

All the answers being different, the king agreed with none of them, and gave the reward
to none. But still wishing to find the right answers to his questions, he dqgjggq{t:ﬁ*gﬂnsult a

1A\
'\

hermit, widely renowned for his wisdom. ﬂ_ﬂ/(:\-.;‘l—-\\, ,' ./25\,}[;;?\'»&9'\3" O+

The hermit lived in a wood which he Neverquitted, and | \ sy

he receivedhone but common folk. \Sojthe king put on -

simple clothes a_ndi\Rgfc!‘r‘féf‘-[}é‘ai‘:hi"ri'ﬁ“ the hermit’s cell, | Why did the king put on simple
is| £ \}‘\d \'W “hor i ' clothes?

dlsmounted,\lﬂ im’ his horse. Leaving his bodyguard

behind, he went on alone. . '

When the king approached, the hermit was digging the ground in front of his hut. Seeing
the king, he greeted him and went on digging. The hermit was frail and weak, and each

o
e

127



Unit 11

time hestuck his spade(ifto the ground and turneda little earth, he breathed heavily.

The king went uﬂtﬂhim and 'said: “I have come to you, wise hermit, to ask you to answer
three qﬁ@dﬂdﬁ%‘:‘ How can | learn to do the right thing at the right time? Who are the
people | most need, and to whom should |, therefore, pay more attention than to the rest?
And, what affairs are the most important and need my first attention?”

The hermit listened to the king, but answered nothing. He just spat on his hand and
recommenced digging.

“You are tired, " said the king, “let me take the spade and work awhile for you.”
“Thanks!” said the hermit, and, giving the spade to the king, he sat down on the ground.

When he had dug two beds, the king stopped and repeated his questions. The hermit
again gave no answer, but rose, stretched out his hand for the spade, and said:

“Now rest awhile - and let me work a bit.”

But the king did not give, h1m;h35pad\ /, 'and continued e ‘
to dig. One hour pas_g.edi“a:”nﬂ.:éﬁﬁfhé‘r?'l’ﬁé%un NTEIRCI While-reading
sink behindth tree ,cand the king at last stuck the
spade inte the ground, and said:“I came:to you, wise |
man, for an answer to my questions. If you can give me
none, tell me so, and | will return home,”

- L 7
What did the king say to the
wise man?

“Here comes someone running,” said the hermit. “Let us see who it is.”




‘Tr;e Three Questions: By Leo Tolstoy
The king turned round and saw a bearded man come running out of the wood. The man
held his hands | rpsséﬂ against his stomach, and blood was flowing from under them.
When he réached the king, he fell fainting on the ground, moaning feebly. The king and
the hermit unfastened the man's clothing. There was a large wound in his stomach. The
king washed it as best he could, and bandaged it with his handkerchief and with a towel
the hermit had. But the blood would not stop flowing, and the king again and again
removed the bandage soaked with warm bloed, and washed and re-bandaged the wound.
When at last the blood ceased flowing, the man revived and asked for something to drink.
The king brought fresh water and gave it to him. Meanwhile the sun had set, and it had
become cold. So the king, with the hermit's help, carried the wounded man into the hut
and laid him on the bed. Lying on the bed, the man closed his eyes and was quiet; but the
king was so tired from his walk and from the work he had done that he crouched down on
the threshold, and also fell asleep - so soundly that he slept all Lhrnugh the sﬁnrt summer
night. L O CAN \' [ (0 N\

s | , /\“
( /I

When he awoke in the mormng, ltwasiungi, befarehe could femember where he was, or

who was the strange bearded man ly\ng % the bed and gazing intently at him with shining
eyes. 1 RN J AR\

“Forgive mél” said the bearded man in a weak voice, when he saw that the king was
awake and was looking at him.

“I do not know you, and have nothing to forgive you for, " said the king.
“You do not know me, but | know you. | am that enemy of yours who swore to revenge



/,_;

himself.on you, becau.rre yuu executed R\rother and seized his property. 1 knew you had
gone alone tpmé}tﬁ hermlt "and | resolved to kill you on your way back. But the day
passed andyﬁu did not return. So | came out from my ambush to find you, and came upon
your bodyguard, and they recognized me, and wounded me. | escaped from them, but
should have bled to death had you not dressed my wound. | wished to kill you, and you
have saved my life. Now, if | live; and if you wish it, | will serve you as your most faithful

slave, and will bid my sons do the same. Forgive me!".

- The king was very glad to have made peace with his
enemy so easily, and to have gained him for a friend,
and he not only forgave him, but said he would send his
servants and his own physician to attend him, and
promised to restore his property.

While-reading

What made the king feel happy?

( \f‘\

Hawng taken leave nf the wounded man, the klng went,{\qt 1;!16\ tﬁ@parr:h)ahd looked

\\\\\

had been dug the day&efﬂorg \ \ AN

The king ag &&Qdﬁﬁm and said, “For the last time, | pray you to answer my questions,
wise man.

“You have already been answered!” said the hermit, still crouching on his thin legs, and
looking up at the king, who stood before him.

“How answered? What do you mean?” asked the king.

“Do you not see?” replied the hermit. “If you had not pitied my weakness yesterday, and
had not dug these beds for me, but had gone your way, that man would have attacked
you, and you would have repented for not having stayed with me. So the most important
time was when you were digging the beds; and | was the most important man; and to do
me good was your most important business. Afterwards, when that man ran to us, the
most important time was when you were attending to him, for if fyou hagj\et -bound up his
wounds he would have died without havmg made Ppeace’ witl'; yuu ﬁahe ‘was the most
important man, and what you did for hlrrrwas yuur most impu?tant business. Remember
then: there is only one time thatis nmpquant “now! Tt is the most important time because
it is the only time whﬁn we ha*ve any power. The most necessary person is the one with
whom you, @fie; f& nlo man knows whether he will ever have dealings with anyone else:

and the most important affair is to do that person good, because for that purpose alone

was man sent into this life.

Post-reading

+ What is the most important time in the life of a mana

e . ot 130 723




“ N “ '~ “About the Writer
Count Lev: Hhﬁolayevich Tolstoy (September 9, 1828- November 20, 1910) usually
referred to in English as Leo Tolstoy, was a Russian writer regarded as one of the
greatest authors of all time. He received nominations for the Nobel Prize in Literature
every year from 1902 to 1906 and for the Nobel Peace Prize in 1901, 1902, and 1909. His
fiction includes dozens of short stories such as"After the Ball" (1911), and several
novellas such as The Death of Ivan Ilyich (1886), Family Happiness (1859) and Hadji
Murad (1912). He also wrote plays and essays concerning philosophical, moral and
religious themes.

In writing a short story, the author chooses a character through whose eyes the reader
| sees the whole story. This character chosen by the writer is the narrator of the story and
it isinfact this narrator’s point of view that the author chooses to see and tell Lastory.
Narrator: The story is in a third-person narratwe told bya\q put;adefri{m incltided in
the story. L o A\ YA (2o

Theme: This story dea5 vntj;J;he the meu ﬂf wifdam kindness, acceptance, and
forgiveness. The story rs basad an thet me of knowledge because that is what the
| king was lnnkr{g (q(\ NJ ¢ ‘

Moral: Theiﬁisl mportant time is the present moment. No deed is better than helping
others.

 Summary: In the short story “Three Questions” Leo Tolstoy explores the theme of |
wisdom, acceptance, kindness, and forgiveness. The three questions were asked by the
| king to wise hermit. The message of this story is the true purpose of life is to help
others, The best time to live life is in the present time. Leo Tolstoy relates an
interesting story about a king who believes that if one knows the answers to three
| particular questions, one would never fail in life. He seeks answers to these questions.
'LThe story is about his journey toward finding solutions.

,‘ .‘ \ '.

&

Given below are the difficult, wards fqu the unit Look at their meanings and give
synonyms of each in the $iven mlumn The first one is done for you. Also use these words

in your ownquir‘eqdesﬂt

words Meanings Synonyms
prnclarmed announce officially or publicly. announced
magicians persons with magical powers
hermit a person living in solitude as a religious

discipline. |




~X \v /,

ﬂ,—«,:\
/‘ / \ -, W\ U

\n 'rhefm‘ree uestluns

' '\ |\
g L — AL )\ \
\ \ |\ 7 T\
\ ./ ) »4‘/.--‘
\ \
7\ \ - /¥
( \ \ \ '\ '\ \\

C )
dismauntgd ag_jtali ahnrse ‘Jmtycle or anything that one is
*‘\“\[|\\JI
spade a tool with a sharp-edged, metal blade and a
long handle, used for digging
approached | come near or nearer to ,contacted .
;Ec‘ommenc begin or cause to Bégin again.
straighten or exte-ug-d'ﬁes body al'.:r a part of
stretehed- | one'sbody toits fulllength
revived regain life, canscmusness, or strength
, =R
adopt a position where the mﬁ m@@
crouched Hhe upper body is Vzg( \ bﬁﬁ s
S 5 ot
threshold doorsta\@\ entraiice i
\J Oo%
intenﬂ@{ " H\ith earnest and eager attention.

Answer the following

Discuss the three questions the king wanted answers for?

Was the king happy with answers he got from people?

Describe the reason that led the king to the hermit?

Analyze what was the hermit doing when king agproached h*rm'-'
Who was the wounded man and-how wa;1'w.=\\.mbmded?L =

Explain why did the wnunded fﬁar\tgll the klng that he forgave him?
Evaluate I'low dl&f the nnhk deed of helping the hermit save the king's life.
\ N “ n@hﬁé haw di d the hermit provide answers to the three questions?

NJ

Does the story have inspiring undertone?

N, kWM

9.
10.

Are you inspired enough to follow the lesson of forgiveness, kindness and
ready acceptance of what comes in your way?




b) Choose the correct answer
i. What was the pruclanTatlnn by the kmg?
a) announ?émérﬁ of a great reward
b) announcement of a severe punishment
¢) announcement of his wedding
d) declaration of a war
ii. What kind of men came to the king for answers?
a) learned b) courtiers c) illiterate d) qualified

iii. Strike off the most important occupation not suggested as an answer to the third
question?

a) science b) warfare c) religious worship d) service
! — ' N\ R0 'ﬂ?\/i
T w i Oral Commumcatwn RO N\ITCAL

: t
Arrange thé\ﬁﬁﬁm gl‘ﬂups to dISCL.ISS the characters of the king and the hermit within
10 minutes by jotting down the comparison and contrast in both the characters.

Comment on the three questions that worry the King’s mind.

Class discussion

Each group leader relate thﬂf poims to the other groups thus fostering a healthy
class discussion.

e e R L = P =

il o s e e e i

Mudal Verbs Just as the King’s life was saved by helping the hern'ut simi laflmnnacted to
the idea are special kinds of helping verbs whlch are dlchSSed aé under

Mﬂda’. verbs O _\’/_ﬁv,.:.

The modal verbs are. lspecial kmds of helping verbs that
include can, ﬂ]psg} rnight will, would, should. They are
used with ﬁhe main verbs to express ability, obligation,
possibility, willingness thus signifying the mood of the
subject. Below is a list shawing the most useful modals and
their most common meanings:




—\
(o ~A\

e/fhreeduésﬁm By Leo Tolstoy

" Unit 11

Modal Meaning 1\ |77\ igi_;m}aple N
can to expfe]srwpﬁhty.z == 7 Icanspeaka little Russian,

can torequestpermission  Canlopenthe window?
|

may toexpress possibility | may come late.
may torequest permission May | sit down, please?
must toexpress obligation | must go now.

“Must toexpressstrongbelief ~ She must be really hungry by now.
should to give advice You should avoid argument.
would to request or offer Would you like a cup of tea?
would inif-sentences If | were you, | would say sorry.

Modal verbs are unlike other verbs. They do not change their form (spelling) and they
have no infinitive or participle (past/present). The modals must @I}d\ can need
substitute verbs to express obligation or ability in the dlfferenftense{

Future You'll bavedim wérkh;wd if ?obw,anttﬁ pass the exams.

Infinitive \ ‘Ldemwé@tqmmago

Past srmple AR\ couldn't/wasn't able to walk until | was 3 years old.
ehﬁ:}ér?&t " I haven't been able to solve this problem. Can you help?

Future I'm not sure if | will be able to come to your party.

Infinitive Iwould love to be able to play the piano.

Modals are auxiliary verbs. They do not need an additional auxiliary in negatives or
questions. For example: Must | come? (Do | must come?), or: He shouldn't smoke (He |
doesn't should smoke). This kind of use is wrong. i

a) Choose the correct answer fnr each blank

1-___ youspeak French? - Only a few words, but my English is pretty good.
a-Can b -Could c-May
2-You____ eatsomuchsweets. It's not good for you. -
a- don't have to b- mustn't __ (<& shouldn! t
3-I________talkalready before Iwast twpyears ald” W ICALEa
a- could o\ ~~3 b s@uld - - would
4-| jut ,yt "don twant to.
5\1 JN ~ b-could c - would
3 you open the window, please.
a-Can b - May c- would
6-If you continue to practice so hard, you beat me before too long!
a- can b - could ¢ - will be able to

0 NN 134 1Y CSNCGGe




| Conjunctions: Cun]unctiuns are bndg\mg words that link other words, phrases, or
| clause in q sgrhte‘ & making it completely understandable and coherent. ‘For
example Jﬁut and, yet, or, because, nor, although, since, unless, while, where etc.

- She bought a shirt and a book.

She went to doctor because she wasiill.

' She came but she was very late.

li He operated upon the patient in emergency since he was in an excessive pain.

' Using conjunctions helps form elegant and flowing prose while avoiding the
| incoherence of single idea sentences.

| Typesof Conjunctions ~*
- Coordinating Conjunctions

Coordinating conjunctions are words like "and,” "nor, * “ar smand 0
of asentence, be it words, phrases, urmdependentclauses, Farexamp[e

He was late for school, sghe took a shQKQ:ut SR\
Her favorite colors wﬁre pUrp[gand red.

! Overall l:h eﬁi\g\even coordinating words which can be easily memorized by a simple
mnemonic FANBOYS which are as follows

« For
- And
+ Nor
+ But
« Or
+ Yet
+ So
Examples:
« Iwantadrinkorajuicewithlunch. JUPNN A\
- Shirley writes short stories and n;wets ARAR\RRSD Y At
.+ |cangowithyou tﬁ theﬁoctor bl.it\nut tothe hair dresser
Subordinatinnt&n,}umctions :

Subnrdina‘ti“g éonjunctmns link a dependent clause to an independent clause words
such as "because", "since” and "after”, help to show the relationship between the
two clauses and emphasize the main idea of the freestanding/independent clause .
Some of the common subordinating conjunctions form another easy to

135




e

ONAWHITE BUS:

] remember fun mnemﬂn o
+ O=ongeonlyif

+ N =now that

+ A= as, although, after

« W = while, when, whereas, whenever, wherever, whether

» H=how

« | =if, in case, in order to, in the event that

+ T =though

« E=even if, even though

| « B'=because, before

« U =unless, until - AR\
. S=50, 50 that, since, supposing /| \/» Cf\

Examples of Subordinating Conjyﬁﬁ;iﬁﬁfﬁ frrpﬁe@tenca U

S
\ ""/—\//ﬂ \\ g

,L Below are a few examp%% of [)W\ﬁﬁ,«ﬁ@é"\éuﬁérdinating conjunction:

. qu.a{fﬁ”u\i,\&@'swrmy,we had to cancel our journey .

. My\tMains were all wet after leaving the window ajar last night.
- Unless|get over my fear of blood , | will never become a doctor.
Correlative Con junctions

Correlative conjunctions work in pairs to join together words or phrases that have
| equal importance within a sentence, like "either/or", "such/that" and "not only/but
| also". There is a relationship between the two elements of the pair signifying matching
. or contrasting ideas For example:

; You can have either chocolate or vanilla ice cream.

He not only plays the guitar but also the drums.

Here are some of the most commonly used pairs as conjunctions:
« Either/or 1<
« Neither/nor .
+ Not only/but alsg”)| \T 1\ 1\ |
+ Sof asl~~\,;~\.‘1‘:;,1'(\l\;}_j(‘\*itj_:‘ NS
. Whtgm’érl'ur
+ both/and




—a =S - P —

While using correlatwe mnjum:tinn place the currelatwe words immediately before
the words tl]at ]}éedl connect. For examples:

. You can either sell it or rent it.

+ Not only am | done cooking the meal, but | have also done cleaning my
kitchen.

+ Both my mother and brother are engineers.

b) Complete each sentence using the subordinating conjunction from the
parenthesis.
i. Ivisit the Badshahi Mosque | go to Lahore. (once, whenever, wherever)
ii. Thisisthe place we stayed last time we visited.{whew,when, how)

'K’ \

iii. ____ youwinfirst place you mll recewea ﬁnz (Mferevér lf unless)

iv. Youwon't pass the;est_ : : lu studm(whm iflnless)

c) Complgﬁg]éﬁ&ﬂ@&ﬁt&nce using the correct correlative conjunction pair from the
parenthesis. -

i. Iplantotake my vacation inJune in July.
(whether / or, either / or, as / if)

ii. ___ Imfeelinghappy_______sad, | try to keep a positive attitude.
(either / or, whether / or, when / I'm)

. flowers treesgrow ___ during warm weather.
(notonly / or, both / and, not / but)
iv. It's going to rain snow tonight.

(as / if, either / or, as / as) N @©

parenthesis.

i. Mycarhasa radh VWL Valed ﬁlayer; (but, or, and)

ii. Dogpu iﬁelé ) ‘clate ____vanilla ice cream better? (or, nor, and)
iiii. I have to gotoworkatsix, ____ I'mwaking up at four. (but, so, yet)

iv. Nadiadoesn'tliketodrive, ____she takes the bus everywhere. (but, yet, so0)



e) Punctuate the given Iﬁaes. N\
what does this cqar§e§ uok hke rn‘y husband asked laurie whats his other name

he s bigger ‘uhérH-ne laurie said and he doesnt have any rubbers and he doesnt
ever wear a jacket

_~ 1)\ (COUVBY
\ \r K\ yf‘ @\\jv\\:ﬁ
f) Give antonyms of the 8110751/3, N\ V< Q A\gv\\, U
casual Fe{h\\ \\ \ P\ %)

\\\/

)\

deprive N l \( N\quickly widened

i whlsper

g) Use the given phrasal verbs in sentences.

hold on

hold fast

keep on doing

keepout

kEEp on = n\/,:_\\ - — /1-;?\\‘(")

let down

letin

l\ll
let go \J,J]\J\“\!

let loose

=t
" T“ll-_jn L] . i B )



1<

— O\ el 7O ‘az Leo Tolstoy
: \ \ J‘\ ASro

Writing

» Write a coherent paragraph about something extraordinary you witnessed, such
as a match or an accident (road /rail).

+ How to write a story in 5 steps
1 Find inspiration. The first step in writing a story is coming up with an idea.
2 Brainstorm. Once you have an idea for a story, brainstorm. ...
3 Qutline, Next, create an outline for your story. ..
4 Write the first draft. It's time to write. ...
5Revise and edit yourstory. . [[2)

+ Write a story on your own using; tfan.ﬁtimal WUrds as ﬁrst next then, after
that, finally to é[escnbe the seﬂqenceof the events in the story. Also
mcorporate tlpe folmmng modal verbs in your sentences.

can\ NN outd may might will
would must shall should ought to

Fook report vs. Pook review

A book review and a . =
book report are two Book Report: : Buak Review:
different types of writing | simpie T

’ | 1dentical 1o book summary | Cortars athorouphanalyss and
that are often confused imiiainl ﬁ evak stonof e ook, Youuneedo:
With EECh othEr. = Eoamwe the book's oot

| Sums up the book plot and &

‘matﬂf themes — = = Lrehen i) B ot

- n.'ml‘rmrrmrn- WOl e bock

| 200-250 words ) (= LH 111lm,1mvm W
| Considered a K-12 revgl .. 3\ o e the book

nsslgnn'n,m ) 1\ |\ AT - ‘ulm.;-u.r vl oareon

T\ g —1 about e bock
' \ | 2501000 werdss or more

Rl [ —
W .

e N VA
R ! \ -
m Llelp students in arranging a role play of the story in the class. Ask them to follow the

intonation pattern understanding the correct pronunciation of the new vocabulary included
in the text.

* Help them in understanding and practicing the essential story building steps incorporating
modal verbs ,conjunctions and its kinds,

19 = ST




Unit 11

Book Review

Feature EWN*‘QWI M 7 Book Report
Purpose To evaluate and critique a book To summarize and inform about a book
Content S«umﬁ\ary. analysis, and opinion 7 Summary, main ideas, and factual information
Audience  |General readers Teaéhen, professors, or classmates
Tone Personal and subjective Objective and unbiased

|Length | Varies depending on the publication Typically 1-2 pages

A book review is a critical evaluation of a book. It should provide a summary of the plot,
characters, and themes, as well as an analysis of the author's writing style, s trengths and
weaknesses. The reviewer should also give their own opinion of the boukﬂﬂq wl;u(gt@@k t they

would recommend it to others. 0 \ ( (\ \;
Steps to write a book review: \/75) ( \
+ Startwithastrong intr@sﬁt\tm@&ab \héfeaéler 5 attention
» Providea bnef su
« Anal ntmg style and techniques.

Discuss book s strengths and weaknesses.
Give your own opinion of the book and whether or not you would recommend it to others.

Book Report

Abook report is a summary of a book. It should provide the basic information about the book, such
as the author, title, and plot, as well as the main ideas and arguments presented in the book. The
purpose of a book report is to inform the reader about the book, not to evaluate it.

Steps to write a book report:
» Start with the bibliographic information about the book, such as the author, title, and
publisher.
« Provide a brief overview of the plot. A
. Summarize the main ideas and arguments presentedln rJ-u/e ! lﬁ = QLY
 Discuss the book' significance and relevaice, - 0\
+ Conclude with abrief wfnmaryofyoumv\rallmpr\essmn of the bnnk

N

Take a book of your choice (either fiction or non- ﬁchnm .Write its review and a report by
following their steps separately.

EXa
B o
¥




UNIT 12

BREAK BREAK BREAK (POEM)

Lord Alfred Tennyson

After completing this lesson, students will be able to:

read with accurate pronunciation, appropriate pitch and voice variation suitable for fictional
and nonfictional texts. Recite, understand, interpret and analyze the poem and its
characteristic features

evaluate how authors use language, including figurative language, considering the impact on
the reader .Discuss others' reading critically, taking account of their views. identify poetical
devices and use of figurative language

ask and answer higher-order questions to guide/assess reading(e.g., Why is the author saying
this right now? Why did the author choose this word? How is this- dlfferentfmm what | read
somewhere else? identify images and Symbﬂls used m the ppem and l:heirfunctmn in the
interpretation () \\ | ™~

demonstrate knowledge and- appllcatfu af partsaf speech i‘n oral and written communication
in varying identiﬁj ﬁgures of speech\:sed in the poem specifically

use parapt ammg skit!.s to- paraphrase a poem

use tun‘l éw skills to write an objective summary of the given text and poem comprehend the
pmm and answer questions appended to it

summaries complex concepts, processes, or information by paraphrasing them using correct
language structure, transitional devices, own words and relevant punctuation marks. .
paraphrase and summarize the poem

understand and identify interjections , their types and their usage

punctuate given lines #

understand and use phrasal verbs in sentences




N\

|\ | BREAK BREAK BREAK (POEM)

Pre-Reading - ||\
+ Guess what the jpoem is about?

. Speculate\hn the title of the poem

Reading

Break, Break, Break,
On thy cold gray stones, O Sea!
g And | would that my tongue could utter =

- Skim for the main‘idea.
+ Scan for specific information.
- Summarize or paraphrase.

' The thoughts that arise in me. - Draw a mind picture of the poem.

e O, wellforthe fisherman'sboy,
That he shouts with his .a_sjt,;‘tg_rﬂai@!&fyl"‘ QNS
0, well for the sa‘il_pr«@dfx, AR UUE T

RN o
That he sifig§ i his b

{it/his boat on the bay!
And the stately ships go on

To their haven under the hill;

w But O for the touch of a vanished hand,

And the sound of a voice that is still!

Break, break, break,
| At the foot of thy crags, O-Seal

But the tender grace of a day that is dead
‘Will-never come back to me.

Alfred, LordTénnygoH(l"lsﬂ'?- 1820) Alfred Tennyson, one of the most celebrated poets
of the Victoﬁéﬁ Era was born in England. He was an enthusiastic reader and worked hard
to perfect his own craft as a poet. He composed short lyrics as well as longer works. In
1850 Lord Tennyson was named Poet Laureate of England. He wrote Break Break Break on

the death of his friend Arthur Henry Hallam who died at the young age of 22, The poemisa

142




moving elegy that captures the pai'n'and sorrow 0f losing a loved friend and the struggle to
come to tenTns with‘ oss. The poem expresses how Tennyson uses these elements to
express his: ﬁnef

Theme: Break Break Break is a short poem with an overridingly sad and nostalgic tone.
The poem presents a sea-side image, complete with a wild sea, playing children,
fishermen, sailors and sailing boats in the background of majestic ships. Tennyson
subtlety juxtaposes these elements with the sense of impermanence on the death of a
beloved friend

Speaker: The poet himself is the narrator

Poetic form: This poem is broken into four stanzas each of which is a quatrain. Each
quatrain is further broken down according to its rhyme scheme; ABCB where the second
and fourth lines always rhyme. W\

S\ -,
/ \ \\ L

Summary: The poem is a short elegy that expresses theq poéﬁs pEr&anaT SOrrow agal inst the
backdrop of a powerful 5cean sc,ene where d@spitéhis loss the affairs of the world goon
unperturbed.

| \-!fqgﬁ*néﬁdw L
* What does the poet mean by saying ‘the tender grace of a day-D

_Figures of Speech and Literary devices in BREAK BREAK BREAK

« Lines 1-2: The speaker uses apostrophe when he addresses the sea directly as
though it were capable of responding to him. He also uses repetition within the
first line, repeating the same word three times. The assonance in the second
line, or the repetition of that long "o" vowel sound ("cold,” "stones," and "0")
helps to slow the reader down.

« Lines 9-10: The speaker uses alliteration in line 10 when he repeats the "h"
sound ("haven” and "hill"). The ' stately ships” that gn to thEIl'/hﬂ\"?ﬂ under the
hill" might be a metaphor for coffins!-\gaing| under the “hill” sounds a lot like
going underground or bemg buned As statelsf’ or fahcy as these "ships" might
be, that doesn t make us Want to be passengers.

E Lmesi, N BJ ‘M The speaker repeats lines 1-2 almost exactly, again
apostrcphlzl ng the sea. Then, in the third stanza, we start to figure out why,he
can't talk: it's because his friend's "voice is still.” Qur speaker is all choked up on
grief that he doesn’t know how to express.



Lines 3-4: The] peaker uws synecdnche or substituting a part of something for
thﬁ thlg tHing, when he wishes that his "tongue could utter.” Because, yeah,
your "tongue” is the part that does the speaking, but not on its own, unless
you're talking in your sleep or something. The speaker uses metaphor when he
says that his "thoughts” "arise," since thoughts don't literally move around.

Lines 5-6: The “fisherman’s boy" is "shout[ing]," but we do not know what he is
saying - it may be utter nonsense as he's playing with his sister. The "0" that
opens the line is just as empty of meaning as the shouts of the boy.

Lines 7-8: The sailor's song is likewise without words - we do not know what he is |
singing; " Again, the speaker's "0" that opens the line is just as meaningless. It is
as though the speaker is starting to wonder if utterances shouts songs, or

poems- haveanymeaningatall. 1) @(\ Ul

N\ \| /,/ \
Line 12: Ah, here is why tﬁefspeaker 19 ;o dnw} tbn utterances lately. It is
because of h\ﬁ%iend'a w\ce\ﬁ\arﬁ/stﬁ Again, he is using synecdoche by

imagin h\s f[iEnd’% voice" stands in for the his friend who is dead.
QA r\] {\\jgﬁ\mt

.. Glossary

Given below are the difficult words from the unit. Look at their meanings and give
synonyms of each in the given column. The first one is done for you. Also use these words

in your own sentences.

Words Meanings Synonyms

thy your in archaic English g "yourfjﬂ\xd

bay gulf, adeepmletoftheSéasurmundedb;l:\m’d/ o |

stately grand ma;est’ ic inappeérance, .

haven QN \Hdbl%mﬂfsafew or refuge 1R 1
crag asteep or rugged piece of rock face I
tender showinggentleness kindnessoraffection




Unit 12 , ~~\\\|'| ( BREAKBREAK BREAK (POEM)

a) Answer the following.

Analyze the speaker's perspective in the poem.
To whom is the poem addressed?

Comment on the effect produced by the use of repetition in the poem.
How do you analyze feeling of the poet in the first two lines?

Identify personification in the poem.

How is the poem a juxtaposition of transience and permanence?.
Comment on the images-and symbols used in the poem.

Evaluate as to where are the ships going.
Critically evaluate the poet's notion of never coming back., ,—(7)\(\(\!
Identify personification, metaphors;, anaphma,“hyperbp{e auife.‘ratinn
refrain, symbuhsm in the poem \W Y

VPN A W

s
e

b) Choose the currect an&war. -

i, What is jhe Hﬁmsg that suggests the poet's inability to express his grief?
a) cole gl%y stone b) fisherman's boy
c) stately ships go on d) never come back

ii. What is the fisherman's boy doing?
a) singing in his boat b) fishing with his father
c) sleeping under the sun d) shouting with his sister at play

iii. What are the phrases that signify the sense of loss in the third stanza?
a) vanished hand, voice that is still b) the stately ships go on
c) sound of a voice d) haven under the hill

interpretation to the rest of the ctass N\

Recite tl]e pden‘l {h the class room.’

THE FAREWELL

Flow down, cold rivulet, to the sea,
. Thy tribute wave deliver:




BN 5&%&% ek (POEM)
o o e — - ._LL__L\_ ALY LT R T R

No more by thee my steps shall be,

Forever. aril ééreireﬂ '

Flow, softly flow, by lawn and lea,

Arivulet then a river:

Nowhere by thee shall my steps be

Forever and forever.

But here will sigh thine alder tree -

And here thine aspen shiver;

And here by thee will hum the bee,

Forever and forever.

A thousand suns will stream on thee,

A thousand moons will quiver,;

But not by thee my steps shall be

Forever and forever. 0 \ \
Alfred Lord ‘rénnysan N

N \] N N|\ e

Interjection: - An interjection is a word or phrase that mainly expresses spontaneous or
abrupt feeling or emotion They can show happiness, surprise, anger, stress, impatience,
fright or hatred etc. While interjections are a part of speech but they are grammatically
independent. For example:-

Wow! That bird is huge.

Uh-oh! | forgot to get gas.
. Shoot! I've broken a nail.

Oh! really? | didn't know Lhal. Yy L
- We're not lost! wr.- Jusp,nEed to! 20, um,» this way.

The poeiﬂ; ‘hrdak Break Break” is a fine example of use of interjections. The powerful
emotmns of loss in this case are represented by interjections for instance 'O Sea!’ and
'the sound of a voice that isstill!'.

b e e it

=nalish-11 Federal ISB Sin10 SideR Prnrass RlankN4/00/2N0M28-NE-09-77



Types of Intquttions :

Primary" fhterjectiuns

A primary interjection is a word or sound that can only be used as an interjection.
Primary interjections do not have alternative meanings and can't function as another part
of speech (i.e., noun, verb or adjective).

Primary interjections are typically just sounds without a clear etymology. As such, while
they sometimes have standard spellings, a single interjection may be written in different

ways (e.g., “um-hum” or “mm-hmm”).
Examples: Primary interjections in a sentence
Ugh! That's disgusting.

Um-hum! | think that could work.

We won the game. Yippee!

Secondary inter]ectmns 19 m

.t“
\

A secondary inter]ectw&is a ?fordthatﬂs\typ\caﬂy used as anuther part of speech (such
as a noun, verb, or\a@[ecﬂve) \that can also be used as an interjection.

Exampleﬁ ﬁ&&ﬁdﬁy interjections in a sentence

Goodness! That was a close one.
Shoot! My flight has been canceled. '
Awesome! Do that trick again.

Volitive interjections

A volitive interjection is used to give a command or make a request. For example, the
volitive interjection “shh” or “shush” is used to command someone to be quiet.

Examples: Volitive interjections in a sentence
Shh! | can't focus when you're singing.
Psstl Pass me an eraser.

Ahem! Please pay attention.

Emotive interjections i

An emotive inter]ectmﬁ is ust d td eﬁﬁ'essan' EITIOtan or to indicate a reaction to
‘somethmg. For\?xample the emotive interjection “ew” is used to express disgust.

Curse wor(m a\so called expletives, are commonly used (in informal contexts) as emotive
interjections to express frustration or anger.

Examples: Emotive interjections in a sentence

Ew! I'm not eating that.

oy .-..-.-‘. S — -. - —,-‘ 3 - : 14? 'i-,‘-:-»-; T -—----1,-=M- -1r--u-r-"";ar ,‘l'j‘g']“?;'rﬂ

b B T R P TR A S T e R




Yay! I'm so excited Mw you.
Yumi Thiﬁ @bp& FlE ls delicious.
Cognitive interjections

A cognitive interjection is used to express a thought or indicate a thought process.
For example, the cognitive interjection “um” can express confusion or indicate
that the speaker is thinking.

Examples: Cognitjve interjections in a sentence

- -

Um! can you explain it once morel
Wow! | wasn't expecting that,
Eureka! I've solved the puzle.

Greetings and parting Words 13\ O\
DNZARS 4

Greetings and parting words/ phrases arg Mmjghsﬁgedwacknowledge or
welcome someone qr@ engrgrqg | wishes \at theend of a conversation.

Examples: Greetin E? and ng-rtiné’ Wm’d;/ mm_es in a sentence
Hey! Hows| fited " ©

Hello! It's good to see you.

Bye! See you later!

See you soon! Drive safe.

Interjections and punctuation

How an interjection is punctuated depends gn the context and the intensity of the
emotion or thought being expressed.

Exclamation points are most commonly used along with interjections to
emphasize the intensity of an emotion, thought, or demand.

When the emotion or thought being expressed is less extreme, an intefjeﬂtiun can

also be followed by a period. If an interjection is used dto é,}presiuntenamty or to
ask a question, it should be followed bdy a,questjgn m:-.yk 7

Examples: Interjectian&ﬂng punaugtigﬂ\
Oh! | don't kncmr ” AR
We've ]u:#n\u}oﬁ the lottery Hurray!
Are you done .Hmm?

When an interjection is used as part of a sentence, it should be set off from the




| (' BREAK BREAK BREAK (POEM)

rest of the sentgnqe usmg cnmmas -
Examplqs Iﬁterjections within a sentence
Hmm, how are we going to do this?

It was an interesting lecture, indeed.

The project is, uh, going well.

In the folluwing sentences, Idantlfy the interjection and encircle it.
i. Hi, I'm glad that you could make it to my party.
ii. Wow! You look great tonight.
li. Thatwas the best performance that | have ever seen, br:avolr (O

N\

iv. Hmm, | wonder where | put my kgys ,and walet? (@0
v. "Shoo, go away!™ ;homediha Wan whén ‘she saw the cat licking milk from her
cereal bowl. A\

NIA 3\
vi. | Quﬁ% ﬁhét‘s'the end of the movie, dam.
vii. Stop! You should always wear a helmet when riding a bike.
viii. Yippee, | made this picture all by myself.

a) Summarize the poem “Break Break Break” highlighting the salient points
b) Justify how the theme of the poem goes with the thoughts glveﬁ by the poet?
c) Which figurative speech has the poet used In the poem? Discuss.




NN oUS=
‘1:‘_\11 'l\t:\-ll } J J ] AN

d) Punctuate the given lines.

flow down cold rivulet to the sea

thy tribute wave deliver

no more by thee my steps shall be

forever and for ever ___

e) Use the given phrasal verbs in sentences.

A\
\ \ \

log in 2\ COWY

log out

look after — 7 - 1# _ "

look down b _ 7

look into

look out i
look forward _ ‘

-J:»‘fii:],:““l\:‘_.1"':~1J--'

Tuacher's\;ﬁ(:]i\gﬁ(fl

.~ Reading between the lines,symbolism, interpretting on their own
m + Readers rewriting the poem's meaning.

»  Help the students see the key word for setting the tone and atmosphere of the poem

+ Askstudents to search and study about Tennyson and his other works.




Blow, ' Blbv‘vl
Thou Winter Wind (poem) _

William Shakespeare

After completing this lesson, students will be able to:

-+ read with accurate pronunciation, appropriate pitch and voice variation suitable for
fictional and nonfictional texts

,,,,,,

‘\,\ \l r/'}
\ \ 1 '~,

with standard pronuncmtmn . \C
+ demonstrate knowledge and applacatiun nf parts of speecb in oral and written
» communication in %aryinwnderitanﬁand fdentify figures of speech
* punctuate %wq J[ﬁnes
. useywhsgl verbs in sentences
« evaluate how authors use language, including figurative language, considering the
impact on the reader .Discuss others' reading critically, taking account of their views
+ use summary skills to write an objective summary of the given text and poem
» use paraphrasing skills to paraphrase a poem
+ ask and answer higher-order questions to guide/assess reading



Pre-Reading N} M
. Relate: *aHy nmdent when someone got a frost bite while
playing in snow?

- Guess what the poem is about from its title?

Reading |
While-reading
Blow, Blow, Thou Winter Wind r-
Thou art not so unkind » Analyze thel content of the
- . poem focusing on the title
As man's ingratitude; » Ponder over images and symbols
Thy tooth is not so keen,

Because thou art not seen,

Although thy breath be rude ) (U
Heigh-ho! sing, heagh hcﬁ \ u ntu the gree\nulhr
Most f nengqmp,iﬁ?eiﬁning. most loving mere folly:
Then hmgh -ho, the holly!

This life is most jolly.

Freeze, freeze thou bitter sky,
That does not bite so nigh

As benefits forgot:

Though thou the waters warp,
Thy sting is not so sharp

As a friend remembered not.
Heigh-ho! sing, heigh-ho! unto the greenholl;r* !
Most friendship is fe1gmng, mastlowr‘thEre fntly;-- &
Then heigh-ho, the hgllyﬂ
This life 1§ }hoét jouy

William Shakespeare

Post-reading
'+ Whatis feigningl‘)




William Shakespeatg bapt.‘zﬁ April 1'564 23 Apnl 1616) was an English playwright, poet, and |
actor, wl q Tqﬁa\rd asthe greatest writer in the English language and the world's greatest
dramatist. He is often called England's national poet and the "Bard of Avon. His extent works,

consist of some 39 plays, 154 sonnets, two long narrative poems, and a few other verses. His |
plays have been translated into every major living language and are performed more often |
than those of any other playwright. They also continue to be studied and reinterpreted.

Theme:“ This poem reflects the harm and misery those closest to us can inflict. Betrayal, faké
| friendship and bitter realities of human relations are the major themes of the poem.
Throughout the poem the speaker compares the harsh winter with the negative behavior of
mankind . For him the harsh winter is less cruel than the cruelity of men.

Context: Blow, Blow, thou winter wind” is a poem from the Shakespeare's play ‘As You Like
It.'which is a song sung by Amiens ,a lord and follower of Duke Senior in the play .In the song
Amiens compares the harshness of the west wind to the ungraefulness of humanj:[emgs, finding
the latter to be much more kind . /(3

This poem is an example of a type oLﬁgugtu tangﬁﬁé?;ahsd'pemhl}i?ation Shakespeare
reveals his true poem wi tthjnq\ (lend \feignirig, most loving mere folly."by
looking down at man's mgr ea that humans are two-faced. At the beginning of
the poem/ su ssp:e the bltter cold mnter wind. The wind can be unkind and blow
strong Bt)@{ M\tﬂs cruel as human society

&

Given below are the difficult words from the unit. Look at their meanings and give
synonyms of each in the given column. The first one is done for you. Also use these words
in your own sentences.

Words Meanings Synohyms

warp atwist or distortion as a result of [\eat OF €0 u(‘% \ 3\?@&?
ingratitude thanklesaneg,disl %V\@\ \
thou youin ancient,llﬁnglish

N \l I\Fﬁﬁwﬁg o
rude ~  impolite, blunt, ill- mannered
feigning to give a false appearance of,

folly foolishness

e et et e e

1 g
e i B 151“

i
)
X '



sting bite, woun& | '. L
unto W Jan:ﬁéicterm forto
bitter harsh

greenholly green holly tree is a symbol with the sharp
leaves symbolizing crown of thorns worn by
Christ while berries represent his blood. Holly
signifies resilience and eternal life

a) Answer the following :—~/,if"§f<f\\" [Co \ (O
Explain as to why does the pﬂet urge the wimdtu blow?

2. Comment on the muod of the poe?\vhen he says “Heigh-ho! sing, heigh-ho! unto
the green thllyﬁ‘J What is the significance of the Green Holly and how does it relate
tothe}

3. Give your understanding of why does the poet regard the wind's “tooth ... not so
keen” and explain what does the poem suggest about the harshness of nature
compared to the pain of human relationships?

Explain the meaning of the word ‘warp'in the second stanza?
Speaker’s tragic mood is discussed in poem. Elaborate.

Comment on the line “Most friendship is feigning, most loving mere folly:"

b) Choose the correct answer:

i. " Because thou art not seen" To whom the poet addresses in this line?
a) his friend b) west wind c) winter vnnd d) Easter mnd

ii. What according to the poet is most bitter truth of hfe?
a) "'most fnendship is fergmng. rm:{t loving mere fc[ly‘

b) benefit forgot |
c) th)( tPite is n& too mgh
d) thy breath'is rude
iii. What is unkind than the winter wind?
a) man's ingratitude b) man's hatred

€) man's immaturity d) man's unkindness




|’ﬂ

* Recite the poem loudly to understand its intonation pattern. Note the
expressions of the poet in this poem while reciting it. They indicate the betrayal,
fake friendship and bitter realities of human life.

» Discuss the'various interpretations of the poem highlighting its imagery, symbols,
atmosphere and tone within groups.

A i ,\ = , : ,_\\(IIY/\"’ '}' K@ I‘\.\ O\\ _)\_/ U
Figures of Speech: The poem abaunﬂgm Ee ﬁsage aﬁﬂédres f speech.A figure of speech is an
expression used to make@ f 6Q ybdﬁréaa“er or listener. It is a form of expression
(such as a simile or met \used mnvey meaning or heighten effect often by comparing or
identifying tbhhoiher that has a meaning or connotation familiar to the reader or
listener.” m amuch clearer picture of what you are trying to convey.

Metaphor: A metaphor is a figure of speech that is used to make a comparison, but in a way
different from a simile. Instead, it makes the description of an object look as if it was literally
true. In other words, it can be said that a metaphor is an implied comparison She's the man of
the house! What do you think the above sentence implies? The ‘woman'is being called the 'man’
to draw a parallel with the idea of taking all the responsibility and being the bread earner in the
house. This was an example of a common metaphor.

Assonance: Assonance is the repetition of vowel sounds in the same line Assonance is the
repetition of vowel sounds in words that are close together in a sentence or verse. For example,
“His tender heir might bear his memory” (William Shakespeare).

Apostrophe: a mark ' used to indicate the omission of letters or figures, the possessive case (as |
in “John’s book™), or the plural of letters or figures (as in ‘the 19&0_5 )" An apostr op! eisadevice

medtocallsomebodyarsumethingfromafar A fﬂ\\' ,' /;«.\_; (&S
It's a nice day outside. (cuntra;:tiem, \N [~

. The cat is dirty. 1Ls fuf 1$matted\( possessmn] t
« You're not SUFRPSEd to be here. ( contraction)

. Thu‘, %{Wﬁsbo k. ( possession)

. Who s at the door? ( contracﬁon)

Alliteration: Alliteration is a literary technique derived from Latin, meaning “letters of the
alphabet.” It occurs when two or more words are linked that share the same first consonant
sound, such as “fish fry.” Some famous examples of alliteration sentences include: Peter Piper




O\ \ ~—V TG s R

A\

picked a peck of pickle?‘peppers.&lhteratiun is the repetition of consonant sounds in the same |
linein qtdchtsH:agisith he entire poem is rich with alliterations.

. Ctai’*) closed her cluttered clothes closet.

* Harry hurried home to watch football on TV.

* Rachel ran right until she realized she was running round and round
Consonance: Consonance is the repetition of consonant sounds in the same line. For
example the sound of /z/ in ‘freeze freeze thou bitter sky' and sound of /d/ in ‘As
friends remembered not.'
Enjambment: It is a thought in verse contained in one line and does not end at line break
instead it is continued to the next line. For example:
“That dost not bite so nigh

As benefits forgot

Though thou the waters warp, i
Thy sting is not so sharp ~rS\ @©
As friend remembered not."” " At \ ¢ 5?».2 o

Imagery: Imagery is used to make readers perceive things involving their five senses. For
example, “Blow, blow, thol wﬂé?vhndﬁ\*f‘reé%eﬁréeze, thou bitter sky” and “Thy sting
is not so sharp.” Personification: Personification is to give human qualities to inanimate
objects. For gx f@ﬁlél,\f Thy tooth is not so keen”, “Although thy breath be rude” and “Thou
art not so'unkind.” Simile: It is a device used to compare an object or a person with
something else to make the meanings clear to the readers. The cold wind is compared to
human beings throughout the poem. For example,

“Thou art not so unkind

As man's ingratitude.”

“That dost not bite so nigh '

As benefits forgot.”

a) Punctuate the given lines.
heigh ho sing heigh ho unto the green holly
most friendship is feigning most loving mere folly

look over

look up L_:T;-I\:|‘§\\11;,\?;-J.4\‘;\\'1‘_.1""\“3]--'
make up

mix up

put off

put up




[\ BLOW, BLOW, THOU WINTER WIND (POEM

™
W

+ Summarize the poem “Blow, Blow, Thou Winter Wind” building on the points
discussed in written comprehension.

» Paraphrase the first and second stanza of the poem.
« Analyze the perspective of the poet as the feelings of an afflicted man.

NN M“

an.her's Point

"IN © Help the students in understanding the concept of the poem.
u |+ Make students to understand the use of figures of speech and their use,




- CARELR
CHOICE OF A PROFESSION

(A DIALOGUE)

A J \\ \ 'n_,-“ —

: A UNINNY oV
e Comgggbldﬁ‘.\{h,s lesson, students will be able to:

analyze how an author's choices concerning how to structure specific parts of a text
(e.g., the choice of where to begin or end a story, the choice to provide a comedic or
tragic resolution) contribute to its overall structure and meaning as well as its
aesthetic impact

prowderan objective summary of a range of texts including fiction, non-
fiction,dialogues and other types of text .add new words in glossary

speak confidently and fluently in a wide range of contexts, For example, (conflict
resolution, panel discussion, role-play, dialogue, etc,) to fulﬁl. different purposes
{exposition, argumentation etc.)

demonstrate knowledge and application of parts of speech in oral and written
communication in varying degrees of complexity

comprehend and use contemporary Idioms and proverbs in the different texts and in
their speech \\
apply the techniques of writing the first draft with sufﬁcient details, roofreadmg and
editing details to suit the purpose and” aﬁdience. S\ W i

write a descriptive c:)mms{tmn cgmng physrcal descnption and charagteristics/traits
of a person/object/ place m:mng from general to specific), using correct punctuation
and spe lmg,] byﬂ Mg'ing the process approach - brainstorming, mind mapping, and |
writing a ﬁrst draft. have awareness about the selection of profession :j" 5
Increase their punctuation skills by writing a resume and a cover letter R
understand some more phrasal verbs and their use in sentences

hone their writing skills by writing dialogue coherently




Pre-Reading N ok b=
. Think &bpqt wﬁatjynu will be when you grow up
- Name an*y three profession of your choice

Reading

(Ahmed and Ali are two best friends and class fellows. Since their studies will come to an
end soon they are discussing their future plans for career selection. Let's see what they
are talking about)

Ahmed: Assalam -o-Alykum Ali, how are you?

Ali: Wa Alykum salam | am good. What about you? AR
Ahmed: | am also bearing well , I was just- thmkmg(_\ | j‘ut Mﬁch pfdfésr.mn to choose
forabrightfuture. ¢\ 2\ \ L))

Ali: Welll Not &big deat“ I\ havi»searfhed it on mternet There are many sites
lﬁh\@ |pl*0\nding”ihf0nnatl on on career selection.

Ahmed: l\&ﬂ you share some with me?

Ali: . - Why not, sure. You should know what does a profession mean? A profession is
different from a regular job, because a regular job is mainly a way to earn
money. However, a profession is an occupation requiring long term
commitment which offers financial security, and numerous opportunities to
improve ourselves. Choosing a profession is an unavoidable decision for

_ anyone who wants to pursue his or her tertiary education.Therefore, it is
very important to consider several factors carefully while choosing a
prbfessiun.

Ahmed: Please tell me about these factors. | don't have any idea.

”\

Ali: - First of all, we should consider mental satlsfacuun?mem are chnasmg a
profession. If we can get this satisfac'aon from 4 profession, we will stay
motivated and enthusrastlc thraughaut Howéver, if we are not satisfied
with our prut'essmn it w\il?he difficult for us to remain productive. We
s{muw chbosv: the profession according to our interests.

Ahmed: N +hen what comes next?

Ali: Secondly, we should consider talent when we are choosing a profession. If
we have a natural talent in a field, we will find it more enjoyable and easier
todo wellin a profession that is related to our field of interest. However, we

TR 159 T g ey



(©,_CHOICE OF A PROFESSION

need more than talent -tu-?attain excellence We need to be hard working as
well Tqﬂnd uut if we are truly talented in a field, we should give ourselves a
W ) ete and honest assessment.

Ahmed: | understand your point of view. Tell me more.

Ali: Thirdly, we should consider prospects when we are choosing a profession.
Prospects refer to our chances of promotions and also increments in salary.
It is pointless to remain in a profession that does not allow us to improve
ourselves professionally because we have only one lifetime to use our
potential and become the person that we wish to be. To find out more about
the type of prospects that a profession might offer, we should do ample
research and talk to those who are already employed in our field of interest.

Ahmed: Well you have a lot of information.

ﬂ,\/\

Ali: Let me continue. Fourthly, salary, location and\thenumber of working hours
per week. These must be gntlzed When lshmsmg a profession. These
factors mus;be b;lancedw{th trawetreqm rements and family life.

Ahmed: Oh! Are &hese pmnts enough?

Ali: Q J JN&J ih\e'last point is the skill and commitment, for you the skills set and how
to gain those through education must be considered when choosing a new
profession. For instance, becoming a doctor requires extensive education
and training. In addition
this professional field
requires an 8-years long
educational commitment

Ahmed: You really have given
me lots of information. | |
will follow your advice
Insha'Allah before
choosing a profession.
Thank you.

Ali: My pleasure .;dea,nw,,f- |
friend. '

]’ 1 ]l J‘“

Post-reading
3‘-,' What skills are needed to become a successful professional?)




| > CHOICE OF A PROFESSION
B TR T ey

Glossary

Given below are the difficult words from the unit. Look at their meanings and give
synonyms of each in the given column. The first one is done for you. Also use these words

in your own sentences.

words
security
numerous
opportunities
tertiary
motivated
enthusiastic
potential

Meanings Synonyms
safety protection
many in number, several
chances

third in order or level,
inspired, stimulated
eager, passmrtate \U AU
lafentqualities,ébilities

extensive AR J'\IM ‘huge

cnrnmltment
gain

dedication, devotion
achieve

a) Answer the following
At what age students decide to choose a profession?
Elaborate on the factors which must be discussed before selecting a profession

ok

Explain what is meant by natural talent. AN
We should consider certain factors before cheosmg a prnfesslon DISCUSS

Skills and commitment play: an important mle in selectionofa profession. How?
What is your chuice of professﬁt? Discuss it in detail while focusing on your

motives i m thq selectmn of acareer.

NN

b) Choose the correct answer:
i. What was Ahmed thinking about?
a) profession to choose b) hobby to have
c) friends' party d) going out with friends

el

161



el dd i 1 44 ey e e

CHOTCE GF A PROFESSICIN

ii. What is the first factor tu tonsider \;hile chnosmg a profession?

a) meT\tal tﬂpaﬁthty b) mental thinking

c) mental satisfaction d) mental caliber
ili. What is meant by prospects?

a) chances b) satary

c) increases d) pay cheque

7w Oral Communication'---..,,v___

Activity
1. Intonation pattern

Read aloud the following sentences to 3 yourpartrer tawng &tresaaﬁ the sylables
/words thatarein capltal letters.| A\(

a. It was SO dark th atWe cmﬂdn‘t SEEhUrhands in front of our faces.
b. Do ymll vis.'lmoph su:k grandparents REGULARLY every WEEK?
c. Imsos sorry, but | just CANT go out with you NOW.

2, Exchange stories with your partner about a situation that caused you stress.

Note the rise and fall of tone and pitch you speak how you felt, what was your
physical condition, and what you did.

/

Participle: In the lesson choosing a profession the word ‘choosing' has a combined
characteristics of verb and adjective. Such words which are formed by adding 'ing' to
the first form of the verb are called Participles. The word participle comes from
classical Latin participium, from particeps 'sharing, participation’, because it\shares
certain properties of verbs, adjectives, and adverbs, Present, part;mples can be used as
adjectives, as part of pamctplal phrases am:l "'o‘-,furm contmuuus verb tenses. For
example:- A\~ WO A~

Base Verb: Sneeze |
Present Part]lciplb Snjeezmg

Types of partlcmle

1) Present participle: The present participle is often used when we want to express an
active action. In English we add -ing to the infinitive of the verb.

Use of the present participle

162 + —— e 9



~ CHOICE OF A PROFESS10N

]

Progressive/\| "~ ° | He is reading a book.

Continuous tense

He was reading a book‘.

Gerund Reading books is fun.
He likes reading books.

Participle Look at the reading boy.

He came reading around the corner.

| He sat reading in the corner.

ﬂ/\/ \

| saw him reading. ~ o N
_L‘ J&/“ -\ CA\ .
\

—\/ \

2 - Past participle. The form of awer@ t:ypiéaliy endi ih"eﬂ*m English which is

‘‘‘‘‘‘

looked fn have you Ionkp.d? Lbst irlost property

Use of\ ;ﬁﬂt\‘h\rﬁdpl&

Perfect tenses He has Lo_rggt];githe pencil.
He had forgotten the pencil.
Passive voice A house is built. -
| Arhouse was built.

Participle Look at the washed car.

The car m_shj_ye.;.terday is blue
| He had his car washed.

a- Complete the story with the correct form of tl'nefverbsir@t;:ebﬁf S

breathe run watch

N AN o
One evemhﬁ ‘ wJas walkmg home and | started to feel very nervous. | was walking down a
very dark street and | could feel | wasn't alone. | could feel someone ~
me and | was sure | could hear their footsteps. | fastly. | stopped and
listened carefully. Yes! There it was. | could hear someone loudly and smell
their cigarette | turned round quickly and saw something out of

163



o

- = N O
~ I\
A \v ~2(()) )

\\U)
—T AN
".\\ \' { / / \ 2

- EHUICE OF A PROFESSION

the corner of my eye. Tl[lpn o ,BANG' The last thl ng | remember is that | heard the sound of
N ﬁz\ nd then | woke up and found myself lying in this hospital bed.

b- Camplete the following sentences with an appropriate participle.

« His____ coatneedsmending. (tattered, tattering)

« A______ stonegathersnomoss. (rolling, rolled)

« A opportunity never returns. (losing, lost)

+ He kept me (waiting, waited)

+ She looked (worried, worrying)

« Being with work, | couldn't meet them. (occupied, occupying)

c-Punctuate the given lines.

—)/—\
oh not a big deal i have searched it on intemet thergﬂam\qan%;me{
providing information on career selgﬁtmﬁ) WU

O\\ J\\“ "‘\/\)

\ r\\ & \\ '\ \
1 ‘[/ \ \\_\ X /
N ‘ \JNI N
d-Give the antonyms of the following.
fine regular numerous
several satisfied honest

e-Use the phrasal verbs in sentences.

pass out

pass up

pass away

pass off — 4

pass on

pay back

pay down




-\/\

1N\ ¢Qﬂm§:£ oFA PROFESSION

Verb Tense Consistency.

Verb tense consistency refers to keeping the same tense throughout a clause. If you
have two or more time periods, start a new clause or a new sentence. Let's consider an
- example:- .

Ali finished his essay, tidied his room, and went out for supper.

Finished and went are in past tense, but tidies is in present t tense j;ally, this
can't happen. We could fix thisin a couple of dlffereut '“@

\\r

Ali finished his essay, tlngthI\S/rqu@d\\’@ At@gt supaer
Ali finished his ess%y an&\wmtﬁmt\far supper, and now he is tidying his room.

w\"'

I'm eat\}@@ cake whtch | made this morning.

The verb tense consistency in this sentence is logical, as the cake must be made before
it can be eaten. Still, we use two clauses to show the different tenses.

inthe dialogue above cﬂhﬁisfent ».rerb t nse: are used which clearly establish the time of
the actions dg&tribed It is vital to use the same tense throughout a writing unless it

is nece:\.shﬂ} shaw an event that occurred at a different time. Do not shift tenses
unnecessarily.




(O \NO~

Unit 14 .~ CHOICEOF A PROFESSION
¥z e e :—\x \._\H.;n;_‘,;— oA SRS RTITT

Activity: e\t X N
in the fa[[ow_i\ng\[?gﬁs\a'g@' from Alex Haley's Roots, some of the verbs have been rooted

\

from rewords i bracket. Supply the appropriate tense for each missing verb, the plain
form of which is given in brackets.

In Banjuh, the capital of Gambia, | met with a group of Gambians. They [tell] me how for
centuries the history of Africa has been preserved. In the older villages of the back
country, there are old men called griots, who [be] in fact living archives. Such men
[memorize] and, on special occasions, [recite] the cumulative histories of clans or
families or villages as those histories [have] long been told. Since my forefather [have]
said his name was Kin-tay (properly spelled Kinte), and since the Kinte clan [I.::.e] known in
Gambia, the group of Gambians would see what théy could do to help me. | was back in
New York when a registered letter [arrive] from Gambia. .

Words [have] been passed in the back country, and a griot of the lgint\@/i:@ﬁ{{have],
indeed, been found. His name, the I;Etterc;aiq;"‘\[pg]-‘@ﬁﬁﬁéh@}ﬁﬁﬁi | [return] to
Gambia and [organize] a %falgi tolgcaft,éﬁitﬁﬁh \/Q \CR\E R

! _\‘ \ T"/ ~ \\ \

\
\ \ "
\ \ O\ \\\ \ i\ \‘/\J
(II \.“ I .\‘ I“.I \ \\3 \.. /} \,/,\' o
\ L

B .-(\'\\J‘.\\\J"‘ REL= \_)
NN
\\‘J I\;\J ' \\LJ \ bl -

\J

1 - RS L L ,d



TR

<1/ | (2 \CHOICE OF A PROFESSION

N

b) Summarize the 5allentpmnts of thlsunlt in the form of mind map.

~ [N\ AN |
N\ t‘ S ma

Steps in
career
selection . g

Resume

Writing

A resume is a formal qﬂfﬂm@? that all job applicants create to let their prospective

employers know theirleducational background, qualification, expertise and how suitable
they are for any job position. A resume is usually accompanied by a customized cover
letter in which the applicant expresses an interest in a specific job or company and draws
attention to the most relevant specifics on the resume.



OBJECTIVE

EDUCATION

PROFESSIONAL
EXPERIENCE

sm.ls ,

Driven high sehosl stadent with a 3.84.0 GPA and excellent orpanizstional and
interpersonal akills, Seeking to apply my totoring and mentorship skills to the Youth
Developmamnt summar internship st [Company]. Possess proven communication skills and
passion for advoeacy that will support your orpanization’s canse.

West Ashley High School Relevant Coursework
Chicago, IL Caleulns
Claz= gf 2025 AP Baglish

1.5 GPA, made Homor Roll Fall £ 2022 &  Extracurriculars

Spring of 2023 mmnumuamsam
Matiomal Merit Scholarship Fmabist P-blﬂ'j‘ l’:hﬂ:/ ~ )
~ [ [~ (LAY V

J | <‘;>V"" ~study and ttering sessions each Lasting 2 hourns

\ ,\\JNJ\\A-'\-J -

» Improved students’ test scores by an average of 18% over the course of the

samater
» Actively veek variad taaching methads to affactively cater to differant laaming
styles, masting sach stodent where they are
Volunteer Jun 2021 - Ang 2012
Tha Academy Project - Chicago, IL

» Volunteer twice weskly in reading remedistion and mentoring programs, having
worked with 15 foster children

. A.nut:hﬂdrnundmlmddmmdlﬂlnq lﬂh%ﬁllb“ of

. Spni;hndhﬂi:h

o Wiab and tech savvy, require Littls to no traming
s Adaptability

» Sef-motivation




| EDUCATION PN C9O

\.\::\_J-;\\\J»'\-\:-\.\J',-:;lj“\\?ﬂl‘\\"-ljﬁj 2" Sample Resume (Name)
Your street address Your City,
OBJECTIVE
Seeking a position as a Sales Associate in Multinational Company.
EXPERIENCE

« Three years working experience in Gold Star Insurance Company, Blue Area,
Islamabad. as CSR (July 2005 to July 2008).

« Five years working experience in Punjab Insurance Group as Assistant Area
Manager (August 2008 to August 2013)

1\

A
N AN
v \

= \ A\~ T\

. Mastersin Busineg@@@tq‘qﬁ@ﬁ@iqn@rgﬁi&bﬂﬁé Pinjab, 2005. )
\ \{ O\ DU

\
. P
\{ A () A\

\

-

- Graduation in,l%rasiﬁésg‘nﬁnﬂh#ti*aiﬂon (University of The Punjab, Lahore, 2003.)
I G@gﬁﬁ ral Board of Intermediate and Secondary Education, Islamabad in 2001).

« Matriculation Federal Board of Intermediate and Secondary Education, Islamabad
in 1999

SKILLS
« Good telephonic and communication skill.
« Keyboard typing at 45 wpm and 10-key skill.
+ Basic knowledge of Windows, Word, Excel, Power Point and Internet.
» Three years of working in a Spanish company.
« Dependable, hardworking and trustworthy. o~ A
+ Responsible, punctual and task orlented. - (" & | -
« Work well as a teamplayerand\igdep;ndenﬂy -
 Great s

REFERENCES -

References available upon request.

|

e 169



\ \ [ T T P I
\ \\ ) f
\ O\ \ \ A = [
/~ ~
"

etter foru Job Appllcatlon

Cove

I J,\ J;\“ J‘\ o i

' Cover letter /Job Application Letter Sample
123 Main Street,
New Town, Lahore.
12345 (+92 42 9234678)
Contact Name
Title
Company Name
Company street Address

5/\/ \
TN (N \V (\\
’ |K/“ \.\ //‘ \‘

A\S)A A
\;"‘-,‘ Ne / ' ' /// \O Py
Dear Mr. / Ms. Contact, A OO WO

O 44 N\
| have effectwely cumpaqu my\(giucatmnal background) and skills in the areas
of {marketl étwns) to successfully (meet all balanced scorecard targets) and
(generate EH\Nn excess of 5 million). | have been asked to take on increasingly more
responsibility at company xyz.

City, Zip Code

| am bringing to your attention my skills, accomplishments, and (talent for
selling in a competitive market place). So that we can discuss joining xyz company as a
(senior member of your district sales) team.

Significantly upgraded work force planning process of large company's call |
| center operation resulting in a 15% increase in service level in just one year’s time.

| look forward to meeting with you to discuss how | can add value to your
company's bottom-line results.

Sincerely,

Name.

N \I\ 1‘1 “‘ ]

NN
+ Now y&tl have read the samples given above. Select an advertisement from a
newspaper, paste it in your notebook. Then write your resume and a covering
letter.

+ Follow the instructions and demands given in the advertisement and develop a
resume,




CHDICE ‘or A“PRDFESSIOH

AR, uE]

» Has 1 year experience in
according field

« Write a dialogu between father and son regarding the challeges faced in
ﬁndinga ﬁuita le job in Pakistan.

Teacher's Pmnl

+ Discuss with students about the choice of a right profession and its benefits. it will be a counseling for
their future,

+ Askthem to perform role play of the dialogue.




After completing this lesson, students will be able to:

speak confidently and fluently in a wide range of contexts, For example, (conflict resolution, panel discussion,
role-play, dialogue, etc. ) to fulfil different purposes (exposition, argumentation etc.)

engage effectively in a range of collaborative discussions-{one-on-one, in groups, and tea;harded] with diverse
partners on grade-level topics, texts, and issues .(,Q\.\ f‘/.’ )\ \ 4

read with accurate pronunciation, apprupn;g pltcﬂ\and miie(vaﬁ}u\ nsu ( fgwlfe}‘ur ﬁct;mnal and nonfictional
texts 2\ N

ask and answer hlgher@'UEn' quesﬁqm tﬂ lee!asﬁéeradmg

evaluate how authors ﬁsa lamguage, In;ludirig figurative language, considering the impact on the reader.

use pre-readifig Jﬂwmle‘readmg strategies to analyse and explore different layers of meaning within texts
1nﬂ\w&Hg isses and opinions.

choose words and phrases for effect (mood of the story).

comment onimplied meaning, e.g. writer's viewpoint, relationships between characters etc.

evaluate the particular elements of a story or drama (e.g., how the setting shapes the characters or plot).
Evaluate stages of plot development in a fictional text. (exposition, setting, climax, character development,
resolution)

evaluate different points of view (e.g., first-person, third-person narrative) Examine an author's point of view
Or purpose in a text

read, view and analyse a variety of reading grade-appropriate and high-interest books and texts from print and
non-print sources: c. Narratives (e.g., fables, historical fiction, science fiction, legends)

cite strong and thorough textual evidence to support analysis of what the text says explicitly as well as
inferences drawn from the text

identify and correctly use patterns of word changes that indicate different meanings or parts of speech (e.g.,
different types of gerund)

varying degrees afcnmplexity ISR i
produce legible work that shows the correct speu/ing uf the com)emm uf punctuatmn and capitalization
produce clear and coberent demg m 'M’“Q e devﬂopIﬁent organizatinn and style are appropriate to the
task, purpose, and audfcnc 2\ () AN\
write narrati tqulevﬁ!np real imag{ned experiences or events using effective techniques, well-chosen
detqlls] }&nh l'sm.ictured event sequences
engage "and orfent the reader by setting out a problem, situation, or observation and its significance,
establishing one or multiple paint(s) of view, and introducing a narrator and/or characters; create a smoath
progression of experiences or events
use a variety of techniques to sequence events so that they build on one another to create a coherent whole
and build toward a particular tone and outcome (¢.g., a sense of mystery, suspense, growth, or resolution).




Pre-Reading ) R J‘\“ UL
. Recall the theme of any short story you have read earlier.
- Search any two famous short story writers.

Reading

Just a few days ago | invited Yulia Vasilyevna, the governess of my children, to come to my
study. | wanted to settle my account with her.

"Sit down, Yulia Vasilyevna, " | said to her. "Let's get our accounts settled. I'm sure
you need some money, but you keep standing on ceremony and never ask for it. Let me
see. We agreed to give you thirty rubles' a month, didn't we?”

“Forty. " m\/ -
,"'l(;:\\\ (~ /—\\ )
“No, thirty. | made a note of it. Ialways PAY g \
the governess thirty. Now, let me see! Yqujfav’ebgen/ wmnmamng_

—\ W\ VL ) Jv\<
with us for two months?" ©\ \\ u.“/:/f\ \ /'\&\ e Ask the students to locate the
\ . specific information such as names, |
“Two mo tl'{F&qN ;ﬁv\e days

\é dates, times, and numbers
’Tthé hs exactly. | made a note of it. So,

mentioned in the story.
you have sixty rubles coming to you. Subtract nine
Sundays. You know you don't tutor Kolya on Sundays; you just go out for a walk. And then
the three holidays..."

Yulia Vasilyevna blushed and picked at the trimmings of her dress but said not a
word.

"Three holidays. So, we take off twelve rubles. Kolya was sick for four days—those
days you didn't look after him. You looked after Vanya, only Vanya. Then there were the
three days you had toothache, when my wife gave you permission to stay away from the
children after dinner. Twelve and seven makes nineteen. Subtract. . . . That leaves ...hm

. . forty-one rubles. Correct?" ~ 20 O\
Yulia Vasilvena's left eye reddened-andi filled wlth feé'r;'s( Her chin trembled She
began to cough newuusly}hlew he;m'zas‘e; a‘n‘d sa;d nothing. :

"Then around New' Year's Day ynu 'broke a cup and saucer. Subtract two rubles. The
cup cost mor \tﬂgn\mébit was an heirloom, but we won't bother about that. We're the
ones who' bay Another matter. Due to your
carelessness Kolya climbed a tree and tore his coat. KU NCRETrL
Subtract ten. Also, due to your carelessness the )
chambermaid ran off with Vanya's boots. You ought Skim the text for finding matn idea

to have kept your eyes open. You get a good salary. | of the text.




A~ |

m O \U\\ |\ The Ninny (Short Story), Anton Chekhov
- *:&mmmwﬂmﬁmm*_n&mm ——

Sowe dﬂdf offgiﬁfqmqﬁe, \On'the fe.nth of January you took ten rubles from me. "
I d\iﬁﬁ\;t’, \""‘t"\ijlia Vasilyevna whispered.
"But I made a note of it. "
"Well, yes—perhaps..."
"From forty-one we take twenty-seven. That leaves fourteen. "

Her eyes filled with tears, and her thin, pretty little nose was shining with
perspiration. Poor little child!

"l only took money once, " she said in a trembling voice. "I took three rubles from
your wife . . . never anything more. "

"Did you now? You see, | never made a note of it. Take three from fourteen. That
leaves eleven. Here's your money, my dear. Three, three, t r,ree;/f o@e(apd one. Take it,
my dear. " o ATV~

| gave her the eléi'enﬂmtes W&bﬁeﬁbﬁﬁg fingers she took them and slipped
them into her pocket.. R\R\BE A

N NINNE
" q{Nﬁe'}vﬁlspered.

AN

Q A\

A\ [ N—

\ |
\

| jumped up and began pacing up and down the room. | was in a furious temper.
"Why did you say merci”?| asked. "For the money.

"Don't you realize I've been cheating you? | steal your money, and all you can say is
merci”!

"In my other places they gave me nothing. "

"They gave you nothing! Well, no wonder! | was playing a trick on you—a dirty trick.
. . 'l give you your eighty rubles, they are all here in an envelope made out for you. Is it
possible for anyone to be such a nitwit? Why didn't you protest? Why did you keep your
mouth shut? Is it possible that there is anyone in this world who is so spinelgg? Why are
youstchuoinoyr _ e\ @O0

She gave me a bitter little smile. Dnhg{facelreﬁd the' Words:"Yes, it is possible. "

| apologized for havmgptayedmg cruelthtk on her, and to her great surprise
gave her the eighty rubles. And\then'she said “merci” again several times, always
timidly, angi’yfenﬂbﬁ‘t I'gazed after her, thinking how easy it is in this world to be
strong.

Post-reading

* Who apologized for having played a tri;k?)

r-
i
1
-
i
[
f
;
=
N
1
L
|
%
~at |
e
B



<
~ v\
\ \ Al AN
~ \ \ 1 U\ Gl \Y
- Yy \\ Ry, =

_\",

Ninny (Short Story), Anton Chekhov

’ Anton Pa\f\lqgjg!wgnﬁkfmvf‘(fﬂﬁb?i 904), a twentieth-century master storyteller and
! playwrigﬁg}iﬁ}iif“bo\r'h in southern Russia. He studied medicine in Moscow, supporting his
| family by writing comic stories. After Chekhov published his first book in 1886, he
concentrated on writing. He also wrote plays, among them the classics The Three |
Sisters and The Cherry Orchard. That Chekhov sought to "paint life in its true aspects,
and to show how far this life falls short of the ideal life" can be seen in “The Ninny. "

Theme is the central idea of a story, or the general idea about life that is revealed
| through a story. Sometimes the theme of a story is stated directly. Sometimes you must |
| draw a conclusion about it—by considering all of the story's elements. In "The Ninny" the

theme is stated directly in the conclusion that the employer draws about certain

Lpeople.

]/—\ \‘ \ ,——\4,‘/” \ \ ‘//_‘_J) ,
9 \ DO\
X

V5.1

AT\
— — 7~ O
. ;"'rx//w \ (C J iU v

—~X / -~ \ \ ‘\__,,-\\\ ) A=
NN [ (o \o=

\ T\ L VY (ERE

ALV L AL LD [

AL L AL L LY

A
\ - [ ]
L

NN 0=
NN

Given below are the difficult words from the unit. Look at their meanings and give
synonyms of each in the given column. The first one is done for you. Also use these words

in your own sentences.
words Meanings » Synonyn'fi’s‘
rubles units of money used in Russia, now the Sofiiet currency of R

Union. Federation
merci for “Thank you”
perspiration sweat _
nitwit stupid or silly person o — ﬁ— |
' ninny afoolishandweakm \n (\m\\I/ (Gd 2™ ,(ﬂ
governess  nanny | V/\ |00
reriiing sver, 1)\ SO i ]
amlﬁgiz?ﬂ'i:{ r\‘ﬁ\é'h ess” :
timidly delicately, slightly ; ‘ b
gazed glare, see o



The;l_i;my\ﬁhert Story}. Mtﬂn Chekhov

»H‘\\ A-\.ﬂ..ﬁ:ﬁ. AN T LAY

a) Answer the following questions:
1. According to the governess, how much should she be paid per month?

2. Name three reasons why the employer subtracts money from the governess's
salary.

How does the governess behave as the employer goes over their accounts?
How much money does the employer pay the governess in reality?

A\

@ O\ I

- ( A\u

In this story, the governess whispers pr swaks ﬁes\t%ntl‘y “in- a trembhng
voice"—or says n%hmg atJalL sed awthls what do’ you infer about her

character? AU
7. What\c}a\q m\}lmferabout the employer from his “furious” speech at the end of the

Why does the employer trick the governess?

’ ik/ \'\

o e

8. Choose the best definition for the following italicized words, based on context:
+ Mr. Breen stormed and shouted, his face red, his hair flying, his manner berserk.

a. surprised b. hurt c. frenzied
« Cheryl, smiling and nodding pleasantly, acquiesced to any plan, rather than refuse.
a. rejected b. agreed to C. opposed

b. Choose the best answer:

i, The writer invited Yulia Vasilyevna, the governess of his children, to corne to his
study to . A0

a) arrange an event for them. 7\ b) 5etﬂe fhé acggunt_.-"“
c) prepare food fqr them - \\/,
ii. The governess had three days helﬁay,' so, the writer took off
a). tenj mt;dlés” ©°7 " b) eleven rubles. c) twelve rubles.
iii. The employer tricked the governess because he wanted to help the governess

a) earn money b) stand up for herself.  c) randomly

176



tory), Anton Chekhov
i3 e - T g = |

=

Loy

- o Oral Communication

Atmosphere or Mood of A Story

Atmosphere is the emotional tone of a literary work. It determines an emotional
mood to the readers, whether happy or (more commonly) terrifying or disastrous. For
example, Shakespeare establishes the tense and fearful atmosphere at the beginning
of the play Hamlet by the terse and nervous dialogue of the sentinels as they
anticipate a reappearance of the ghost. Coleridge engenders a compound of religious
and superstitious terror by his description of the initial scene in the narrative poem
Christabel (1816). Alternative terms frequently used for atmosp
ambience. 2\ 20

The mood is the feeling that the wnterfri&s;to&y'ﬂk/ein the readers e.g., anxiety,
calmness, anggr\gﬁ“jgyl\l{sfpﬁfﬁﬁiﬁy@ﬁ@hﬁuﬁhk&tiﬁgs, tone, word choice, theme, or
subject mattgr‘{irj-v\.a\";;ﬁqrx.‘gg_tﬁﬁk-'réfers to the physical location in a narrative. Tone
dgtegﬁjﬁi‘e\q‘[t\hqﬁatﬁmdébf the narrator. Words with negative or positive connotations
&yﬁ@eﬁiﬂiarticular feelings, and subject matter or theme also creates sad or happy

mood respectively.

Most often, the words which are used to describe emotion can be used to describe the
mood of a story. Gloomy, humorous, reflective, idyllic, melancholy, ominous,
mysterious, calm, lonely, exciting and fearful are some common words used to
describe mood in a piece of Literature.

Discuss the mood of the story in group by stgt[ri's sgtting, tone, word choice and theme
of the story. Afterwards, each group leader m@ share his/her the views of the group
. with the rest of the class. NN A\

Gerund: A gerund is the -ing form of a verb that functions the same as a noun. For
example, “Running is fun. ” In this sentence, “running” is the gerund. It acts just like a

noun.




A~

— — /7\‘ WOV

1, Anton Chekhov

 Types of gerunds A

The fourtwf:b of! gir}unds and gerund phrases are as following:

1. Gerund as a Subject
-| Gardening is my favorite hobby. (Gardening is normally a verb, but here it is the name
of an activity.
Gardening in the summertime is a challenge because of the heat. (The gerund is
followed by a modifying adverbial phrase, forming a gerund phrase.)
2. Gerund as a Direct Object

My neighbors admire my gardening. (The admiration is not for the action of gardening,
but for the results of the action.)

| am enjoying my gardening this year. (The direct object of the subject is “my gardening
n r/\ ‘
thisyear."”) A \@
l& U U
3. Gerundas an Objectof Preposition (1, w' @
d

| have received several awa{ds for. my\g fde{rff%\frhéa s have been given for the
results of the activity ) m \ \ r\“/ N\ ”\ S “\

Some people nzgy/mtérest in gardening an obsession. (The gerund phrase is
“gardemnﬁc\%k sion.”)

4. Gerund as Subject Complement

My favorite hobby is gardening. (Again, gardening is described as something done, not
the act of doing it. The statement is the inverse of the first sentence in this group; here
“My favorite hobby" is the subject, and gardening is its complement.)

| do my gardening in the morning. (The phrase “gardening in the morning” is the subject
complement.)

b)  Make sentences of the gerunds Swimming and Flying as Subjects, Direct
Objects, Objects of Preposition and Subject Complements.

AR

—~N ( ‘.I \
—~ AN

— | M2\ ({ \U /U ¥
i | ~ -~ \ \ \.«“-\ -/
\ N\ | | 7o \a\2 ™
\ .il \ |\ \ 5

-11.’ aﬂp Xt

“H ';‘;': f-f-‘f: ks ':,1 éll‘,L l‘i- “‘-E:é

nnlich 44 Cadaral 10D Oladn Old-P Ao __ “_th-um - —



Unit 15
c) Punctuate thé\ ﬂiff-'“lines S

did yg[f;_\i’_qb&f\you{ see never made a note of it take three from fourteen that leaves
eleven here's your money my dear three three three one and one take it my dear

d) Give antonyms of the following.
ago settle never
shut little strong

e) Use the given phrasal verbs in sentences:

put down
put off

put out
put together
put on _
run into "\J'F\IN‘ &

» Do you agree with the theme of the story? Give reasons for your answers.
+ State the theme in your own words.

« Fill the given mind map according to the story's mode.

SETTINGS AND}—
ATMOSPHERE ) [(o—

Create another story on tt;e‘“-.,‘_tbgmg of “ Dignity of Labour' keeping in your mind the
mood you \\gﬁaar]‘lrt;\tglhigﬁl‘ight’ in your story.

References:

Abrams, M. H. (1999). A glossary of literary terms (9" ed.). Earl McPeek.
https://www.masterclass.com/articles/how-to-create-atmosphere-and-mood-in-writing
https: / fwww litcharts.com/literary-devices-and-terms/mood

Teacher's Point ) .
*  Askstudents to bring short narratives from the Islamic History regarding the dignity of labor,

B 179 BT T




s R e

\\”I \« A

After completing this lesson, students will be able to:

speak confidently and fluently in a wide range of contexts, For example, (conflict resolution, panel discussion,

role-play, dialogue, etc.) to fulfil different purposes (exposition, argumentation etc. ).

engage effectively in a range of collaborative discussions (one-on-one, ingroups, and teacher-led) with diverse

partners on grade-level topics, texts, and issues

read with accurate pronunciation, appropriate pitch and voice variation suitable for fictional and nonfictional

texts

ask and answer higher-order questions to guide/assess reading

evaluate how authors use language, including figurative language, considering the impact on the reader.

use pre-reading and while-reading strategies to analyse and explore different layers of meaning within texts

including biases and opinions

comment on implied meaning, e.g. writer’s viewpoint, relationships between characters etc.

evaluate stages of plot development in a fictional text. (exposition, setting, climax; charactEf development,

resolution) 1N

read, view and analyse a variety of rea;ding grade: appmpﬂate an& h{gh ,{nxerest books and texts from print and

non-print sources: c. Narratives(e.g., fable;, h‘lstm‘ical ﬁctlm scie:u:e fiction, legends)

cite strong and{hnmugh teﬁrtual I'E\kdeface m support analysis of what the text says explicitly as well as

inferences drnwn frum the text

ident Hlufniﬁ gprreclly use patterns of word changes that indicate different meanings or parts of speech (e.g.,
flers)

..""‘demonstrate knowledge and application of parts of speech in oral and written communication in varying

degrees of complexity

apply knowledge of parts of speech, tenses, sentence structure and other features of grammar and vocabulary
to understand how language functions in different contexts, make effective choices for meaning or style while
reading, listening and writing

produce legiblework that shows the correct spelling of the conventions of punctuation and capitalization

produce clear and coherent writing in which the devélopment, organization, and style are appropriate to the
task, purpose, and audience



Pre-Reading

. Whatisa OHG-M Pb&y?
- Have you ever read any One-Act Play?

I\ ‘ J

Reading

CHARACTERS

MRS. HORA&E PRINGLE: Awoman of fashion.
ELAINE: Her debutante daughter.

DUNHAM: The butler or maid.

SCENE: L NRN G
The dining-room of a New York residence. A Iong t@bte mﬂning fr left ta right, witha
chair at each end and six chafi;'} nn mffh s:rdeﬂs set etnborately for fourteen, DUNHAM,
the butler, is hovering a< r\FpE tﬂble to give it a few finishing touches as MRS. PRINGLE
comes in. She fs\qmm&h f fashion, handsome, and wears a very lovely evening gown.
She is rather excftable in temperament but withal capable and executive, vivacious and
humorously charming. She enters in haste carrying a corsage bouquet of flowers and the
empty box of paper from which she has unwrapped them. ]

MRS. PRINGLE: Dunham, I've just had word from Mr. Harper that he was called away to
the bedside of a friend who is very ill. He sent me these flowers -- it's a good thing he did. |
don't approve of young men refusing dinner invitations at the very last minute.

DUNHAM: [Relieving her.] I'll take the box and paper, Mrs. Pringle.

MRS. PRINGLE: [Looking at the table anxiously and then at her watch.] It's too bad -- after
you've set it all so beautifully -- and it's getting so late -- someone might be coming any
moment. How's cook? \

DUNHAM: Cook's in a temper, as always, madam. 2\ CON®

W\ \) r/
\ \

MRS. PRINGLE: I'm glad to hear it. She's like an actress - the . better the temper, the better
the performance. As long as sheservesus agooidihner I'don't care how much she swears.
The rest of you can ]ust keepj?ut of her way. Where's Gustave?

DUNHAM: I'm snmﬂ to héve to say it, madam, but there's such an awful blizzard out he's
sweeping off the sidewalk.

MRS. PRINGLE: Oh! Dear me, yes! | should have ordered an awning! But who expected a
storm like this?

e 181



[She glances out of thﬁmndowELﬁ(NEya oung debutante in evening gown comes
running in with a buqi':hofplacecards]

ELAINE:\;;_I]{'e_\]ﬁé.‘;?‘\f\Jé\tﬁé place-cards, mother, and the diagram. Shall | put them around?
MRS. PRINGLE: Yes, dear. Elaine, I'm going up to look after your father. He's so helpless
about his ties. [She starts to leave the room.] Remove one plate, Dunham.

DUNHAM: Remove one plate, madam? Oh! Madam! It is a certainty! You wouldn't sit down
with thirteen.

MRS. PRINGLE: [Drawing back.] Thirteen! Why, you're right--thirteen! We can never sit
down with thirteen. That's all due to Mr. Harper's negligence. Sick friend, nothing! He's
just one of those careless men who never answer their invitations in time. His flowers,
indeed, to make me forgive him -- now look at the trouble he's put me to -- thirteen! |
wonder whom | could get to come in the last minute.
Quick -- Elaine -- help me think.

[She rushes to the telephone and looks\ ma

through her list of acquaintances.] \ 7\ (

| / |/E) l\J /_:)}\‘\_’.9 - -\
| '\Circle any four unfamiliar words or
*| ‘expressions. Before you reach for

sl ) y"' Iy "/H\/’_\ \ y“' : N'v I“‘\\\ P . i
ELAINE: There's alwaygi}ncle George.. - their dictionaries, have a closer
MRS. PRINGLE: Helniéver opens his head! look at the words preceding and
< &Kg;\mﬁ@ p following the unknown terms.

DUNHAN:—MI‘{ Morgan, madam, he always tells a | ysing context clues, see if they can
joke or two.  figure out their meaning. Y,
MRS. PRINGLE: Why, yes, Dunham -- that's clever of

you! Hello Central -- Lakeview 5971 -- at once, please -- Elaine dear, your hair's much too
tight -- pull it out -- pull it out -- come here. [In telephone.] Mr. Morgan's Well, this is Mrs.
Pringle speaking -- from across the street. Yes. When Mr. Morgan comes in, please tell him
to call me up right away. | want him to dine with us -- in about ten minutes -- you expect
him? [She pull's ELAIN'S hair out to make it look fluffier. ELAINE makes faces of pain, but
her mother pays no attention.] Have him call me right away. [She hands up the receiver.]
Now if he shouldn't get it -- then what'll | do?

ELAINE: Well, mother, | don't have to be at the table. It's you[_p\artg,ﬁg;}myi;ﬁverybndy's
married and older than | am. AL are ./ OV

MRS. PRINGLE: [Pointing to the table diagram in ELAINS hand.] Didn't | put you next to
Otiver Farnsworth? Milljonst He'swarth miltions!

ELAINE: V_‘{e«l\‘\l\npﬁ@.{gﬁt\bﬁ‘éﬁiﬁﬁ me any.

MRS. PRIN&LEICant he marry you? Aren't you going to try to make a good match for
yourself? | fling every eligible man | can at your head. Can't you finish the rest yourself?
ELAINE: It's no use, mother, you're trying to marry me off to anyone as important as he is.
He frightens me to death. | lose my tongue. I'm as afraid of him as I'd be afraid of the
Prince of Wales!

B A R 182 1T g

¥



FOURTEEN [ﬁné*Act Fla',r). Alice Gerstenberg

MRS. PRINGLE' The Pnnce of Wales! OMWhat wouldn tl give to have the Prince of Wales
in my house! Ney »Yarlq has \ostits heart to him. | was just telling Mr. Farnsworth yesterday
that I'd gm; anyt ing to have the Prince here. | would establish my social position for life!
And I've such a reputation for being a wonderful hostess. [The telephone rings.] Dear me!
-- the phone -- Hello -- Mrs. Sedgwick -- Yes -- this is Mrs. Pringle -- What? No -- Oh! Caught
in a snow drift -- can't get another car? [She puts her hand over the telephone and speaks
delightedly to ELAINE.] Goad! The widow can't come -- that leaves us twelve -- remove
two plates, Dunham. [DUNHAM removes two plates. and ELAINE changes the table-cards.
MRS. PRINGLE continues into the telephone.] Oh! That's a shame! I'm heartbroken. Oh!
My dear, how can we get along without you! But have you really tried? Oh, I'm reduced to
tears. Good-bye, dear. [She hangs up the receiver, and takes it down again.] Well, I'm glad
she dropped out -- Central -- give me Lakeview 5971 - - Dunham, with two less, you can
save two cocktails and at least four glasses of champagne. [Into the telephcne ] Has Mr.
Morgan come in yet? Well, don't give him the message | | tele haned be(Qre about crossing
the street to Mrs. Pringle’s for dinner. It's tuu late Yaunhdersfcand? [She hangs up the
receiver.] Well, anyway, | fye m;-uted Clemk retum’ed

my indebtedness and sav&d my champa e besides—

DUNHAM: Thg pt:pmlJ isgetting low, madam -- what _ _
with pmhfﬂitlun and entertaining so much-- After students have read a

ELAINE: [In dismay.] But, mother, if you only have | paragraph, make them pause and

twelve people, Father can't sit at the head of the | ask what they think is going to
table. happen next. Make predictions.

MRS. PRINGLE: But he has to sit at the head. It looks

too undignified when the man of the house is pushed to the side--
ELAINE: There's no other way. There must be a woman at each end--
MRS. PRINGLE: [Distraught.] How absurd! | always forget. Of course, twelve is an
impossible number -- [She goes around the table looking at the place cards.] | don't want
to put any of these women at the head -- there's Mrs. Darby -- such a cat wouldn't give
her the honor and Mrs. -- [The telephone rings. ]Answer |t Dunham 0

DUNHAM: Hello -- Mrs. Pringle’s residence -- amesiage? Yes, sir“What sir? - Mr. Darby --
the doctor says your baby has thechickeg poxa

MRS. PRINGLE: Chicken- pmtl Elail‘IE!

ELAINE: Motert | °

DUNHAM: Yes, sir. [He hangs up the receiver.] Mr. Darby sends his apologies -- but owing to

the transmutability of the disease, Mr. and Mrs. Darby feel obliged to regret and also their
house-guests, Mr. and Mrs. Fleetwood--

MRS. PRINGLE: That's four out.

While-reading




—~ \

ELAINE: Then you're only eigh t‘lﬂulcﬁgtﬁeplatés,l)unha}n
[She begins to ren qgﬁ-sqmi@'aﬁﬂ""‘g&thé’fs"i.lp silver and plates feverishly. MRS. PRINGLE

VR
b e M2 (LA @ T
Unit 16 __ FOURTEEN (One>Act Playy , :
‘— iz NS X el LA oy o N i W T, WA W, ) A P, DN s, = gl EoR 8o A
{ \ ~— \ |\ | 1 \ - -
\ VL) \ “. }',__J ) ‘v
\ L

getting more aﬁdﬁﬁdﬁé‘dis’ﬁaught, helps. With so much unaccustomed help, DUNHAM
gets confused and goes through many unnecessary motions; removes plates, breaks
them, drops silver, aimlessly trying to hurry, his fingers all thumbs. ]

MRS. PRINGLE: Don't we know someone to invite the last minute--
ELAINE: The Hatwoods--

MRS. PRINGLE: They don't serve drinks when they entertain -- | can't afford to invite them
to drink mine--

ELAINE: The Greens--

MRS. PRINGLE: She's not interesting enough.

ELAINE: Mr. Conley-- N
MRS. PRINGLE: He never makes a dinner call, even after all the ti ,r@é\rem@/t—é\di\%
ELAINE: Hester Longley-- A -Ra TNy =

r RAVZAAESR\CA U

MRS. PRINGLE: Not at the sam%;h\[é/%\hum}j\l%@ﬁamsworth. She's far too pretty,
A\ \.\ \ [

Fon clever-- N N NJ\\J | U\

ELAINE: Where'WMk? [She runs her finger down the address book.] The Tuppers?

MRS. PRINGLE: The Tuppers! Good Heavens, Elaine, six in the family.

ELAINE: That would get us back to fourteen; then father could sit at the head of the

table.

MRS. PRINGLE: Well, try them. I'll rush and tell your father to hold up the drawing room--

[Exit left.]

ELAINE: [on the telephone.] Ridgeway 9325 -- This is Elaine Pringle -- What Tupper am |

speaking to? Oh, Ella, hello! -- | hope you haven't finished your dinner -- We had a party

arranged here and the last moment everybody's been dropping out -- the blizzard -- Can't

you flock your family around the corner and eat with us? Mother and | thought we knew

you well enough to call you like this at the seventh hour. You would? Oh! finel\[To

DUNHAM.] Six more plates, Dunham. [In the telephone.] What? - O - well - bl - [She

hesitates, stutters, looks distressed, muffles the,tele hune]ﬂun 1am, get Mother quick.

[In the telephone as DUNHARR hurries -out «of the room.] Yes -- yes -- of course [not

enthusiastically], lm\re\l

 J

4_ t\\;\r;‘yyt{yﬁéﬁﬁiﬁlﬁrfyes, my dear -- all right. [She hangs up the
receiver and puts hier h nd to her head with an ejaculation of dismay.] Great Caesar, now
what have | done?

MRS. PRINGLE: [Rushes in followed by DUNHAM.] What's the matter -- Elaine -- what is--

ELAINE: idaw Iv2 done it! I've just done it -- but | couldn't get out of it -- | just couldn't --

W e g =
——




Unit 16 o . FOURTEEN (One-
youweren't here -- | always ldsemyhead andbungle'chmgs

MRS. PRINGLE: But what. - on't keep us waiting like this - what s t?

ELAINE: | invited Ella and the family and she accepted and then she said they had two
house-guests -- and would it be all right and of course | said it would and now we're --
sixteen!

DUNHAM: [In dismay. ] Sixteen! But, madam, the table's not that long!

MRS. PRINGLE: Elaine! That's just like you -- no tact -- no worldly wisdom -- if I'd been at
the phone I'd have politely said that my table--

ELAINE: But you werep't at the phone -- you ought to attend to such messages yourself --
you know | always lose my head --

DUNHAM: But the dishes, madam -- and we only have fourteen squabs--

ELAINE: | won't eat any--

MRS. PRINGLE: But | must not be disgraced -- we'll have to make thejbest of it (Landinsert

another board -- [DUNHAM goes out. MRS., PRINGLE and ELAINE hurriedty remove part of

the cloth.] O\~ VL WA
~ 1\ \\ L) \ ) N

ELAINE: But mother, | need |tsitatthembt;\

MRS. PRINGLE yﬂ’:&{]ﬁi}ﬁ% the chair authoritatively.] You're going to sit right next to
Oliver Farnsworth] Now | don't wish to hear another word about it.

ELAINE: But can't we squeeze them in without all the work of adding another board? If |
move the plates and chairs closer--

MRS. PRINGLE: Have you forgotten that Mr. Tupper weighs something like two hundred
and fifty pounds? And Mrs. Conley has no waist line? It can't be done! --

DUNHAM: [Entering with table board.] Cook is in a rage, madam -- she says she has only
prepared for fourteen.

MRS. PRINGLE: | can't help it -- she'll have to prepare for sixteen. Tell her to open cans of
soup and vegetables and--

DUNHAM: But the ice-cream forms and the gelatine molds-- R
ELAINE: I'll pretend | don't like them. A ,

MRS. PRINGLE: And I'l pretend I'm on adiet-» = (|| ) \\\ 1))
ELAINE: But | really wouldn't havetabeatthe\ﬁable
MRS. PRINGLE: Be stillf[SHe starts as the telephone rings.] The telephone! [Her hand to
her head.] Noﬁ{{ﬂhé&‘ﬂdh’t answer it! It's driving me mad-- [She goes herself as ELAINE
and DUNHAM do not go.] Hello -- yes -- This is Mrs. Pringle -- Oh! yes -- Jessical -- What! --

the blizzard -- your cold -- too dangerous! [She waves to DUNHAM not to put the board in
the table. DUNHAM, ELAINE and MRS. PRINGLE are delighted and relieved but MRS.

E 185



Unit 16

PRINGLE pretends utherwise over the tetephone l]\‘Uhl Jes:'.lca - you poor dear --yes, your
husband's right, it wm*d be, faalhardy put on a mustard plaster -- hot toddy -- go to bed -

- 50 sorry}, Iﬁhe‘ Héngs up the receiver.] There -- that's wonderful -- now we are just
fourteen--

ELAINE: But the cards are all wrong. Only six are coming who were invited originally.
You'll have to make another diagram. How do you want them seated?

MRS. PRINGLE: Give it to me. [She remains at the telephone table where there is a pad
and a pencil and makes a new diagram. ]

ELAINE: Here are some fresh cards. [She tears up the old cards, then goes back to help
DUNHAM, who is having a maddening time with the table.]

MRS. PRINGLE: What a mess! | spent hours over that diagram! So much depends upon
having guests seated harmoniously! There's the front door-bell, Dunham -- | told Annie to
answer it for you -- but go, peek into the drawing-room and tell me wtht/ib' “[As DUNHAM
goes out, the telephone rings. MRS. PRINGLE eyes it} uspmﬂustst]\%u murderous
instrument! What have you to say? Nuw wriat? Hellml Wh 1 Mr. Farnsworth! Mr. Oliver
Farnsworth? No--you're hj% secfefary? Hé\'i what? Instructed you to make his excuses! He
had to leave for Bﬁﬁw at once-on very important business -- Oh! [She hangs up the
receiver w{i muh\E pletmg the conversation and hits the telephone in a temper, then
rises and paces back and forth in a rage.] How dare he! How dare he! The last moment like
this! No regard for a hostess's feelings! No regard for the efforts she goes to to provide an
evening's enjoyment! And such a good dinner | planned -- and he promised he would come
-- business! | don't believe it! He didn't want to exert himself -- was afraid of freezing in
the blizzard -- as if he didn't have half a dozen limousines to carry him to the door --
selfishness -- downright rudeness -- and worth millions -- just a match for you, Elaine --
and | was bound you should meet him and sit next to him at the table [she tears up his
card], and now | don't know when | can give you a chance like that again! I'm perfectly
furious -- I'll never speak to him again! | won't be treated that way--

ELAINE: [Timidly.] Perhaps he really did have business and was called away--

MRS. PRINGLE: [Not hearing her.] And | one of the most important. hostesses m thls city --
people clamoring to receive my invitations -- all myafrérrs aré a’success. [insist that they
shall be -- | can't bear a failure -- | won! tha\fe aTawLUre - he'was my most important guest -

- he's such a man’'s man --éo lmpnrtant ﬁﬁanmaﬂy - every other man considers it an honor
tomeet him anq mw not \corning! I'm furious! Furious! --it's all this damnable blizzard!
ELAINE: Now 3 w’i[l have to stay away from the table. His not coming makes us thirteen
again.

MRS. PRINGLE: [In a temper.] Go to bed -- go up to the nursery! 'l send you milk and
crackers!

TR, 186 T B -



ELAINE: But, mother, i!z's nat;my fauutbathehad business out of town.
MRS. PRINGLE: Yi es] lt lsf If yuud perk up a bit and not be so timid and make something of
yourselfi he %ul& hear about your attractions from other men and be curious to meet
you hlmself -- Oh! What a family | have! No one to help me with my ambitions! Go to bed! |
certainly won't sit down to thirteen -- go to bed -- get out of my sight--

[DUNHAM enters from left. ]
DUNHAM: It was Mr. Morgan, madam--
MRS. PRINGLE: Mr. Morgan! But | telephoned his maid to tell him not to come.

DUNHAM: He couldn't have received the second message, madam, for | heard him
explaining to Mr. Pringle how happy he was to receive your telephone invitation.

ELAINE: That makes you thirteen again -- unless you don't want me to go to bed--

MRS. PRINGLE: Of course | don't want you to go to bed. We're back to whgre we started --
fourteen, Dunham. N ,“/ \ ©C A&

DUNHAM: Il get the cocktails ready, madam Anme l;olij mé fheré were several motors
making their way through Ihesnnw Qs latﬁ \ndw and cook's swearing about the dinner
getting too dry-- rl'l]e tetephune‘dngs 'ELAINE jumps.]
ELAlNE«;anNh\aﬁ\ver it.
MRS. PRINGLE: | should say not -- hello -- what is it? [Sharply.] Yes -- yes? Mrs. Tupper! Yes!
Mrs. Tupper! But now you must come -- we're prepared for you -- yes -- for eight of you --
Your daughter told my daughter about your house-guests and we are delighted to have
them -- but now we're set for you -- but every plate is set -- but your daughter was quite
right -- it wasn't an imposition at all -- but you must come now -- of course my daughter
had authority to invite the guests of -- Oh -- eight isn't at all a big number -- there is room -
- the table is all set -- but | beg of you -- but my dear, you are not imposing -- Oh! but how
-foolish of you to take that stand! Why my dear, my dear -- [She hangs up the receiver.]
Now, what do you think of that? Mrs. Tupper is perfectly furious at Ella for telling you
about the house-guests, and says Ella has no tact; that nothing would induce her to bring
eight when we invited six -- so she's leaving Ella and Henry at. heme only Wx are coming.
Remove two plates, Dunham -- we're melve afterallf-e f
ELAINE: But if you leave it twelve, father can tsitat the end--

MRS. PRINGLE: [Exhausted, harassec} angry, tempestuous.] | shall go mad! Il never
entertain galn] l-ne%r"never--people ought to know whether they're coming or not--but
they ac::ézt and regret and regret and accept--they drive me wild. [DUNHAM goes out.)
This is my last dinner party--my very last--a fiasco--an utter fiasco! A haphazard crowd--
hurried together--when | had planned everything so beautifully--now how shall | seat
them--how shall | seat them? If | put Mr. Tupper here and Mrs. Conley there then Mrs.
Tupper has to sit next to her husband and if | want Mr. Morgan there--Oh! It's impossible--|

-




Unit 16

might as well put their names in\a hatand d(awvthem nut at randum--never again! I'm
through! Through with soaety--mth parties--with friends--| wipe my slate clean--they'll
miss my entertaquenfus i tHeyll wish they had been more considerate--after this, I'm
gaing ta live for myself! ('m going to be selfish and hard--and unsociable--and drink my
liquor myself instead of offering it gratis to the whole town!--I'm through--Through with
men like Oliver Farnsworth!--| don't care how rich they are! How influential they are--how
important they are! They're nothing without courtesy and consideration--business--off on
train--nonsense--didn't want to come--didn't want to meet a sweet, pretty girl--didn't
want to marry her--well, he's not good enough for you!--don't you marry him! Don't you
dare marry him! | won't let you marry him! Do you hear? If you tried to elope or anything
like that, I'd break it off--yes, | would--Oliver Farnsworth will never get recognition from
me!--He is beneath my notice! | hate Oliver Farnsworth!

[DUNHAM enters with a note on assilver plate.]
DUNHAM: Anote from Mr. Farnsworth, madam-- ~ 1) Cf’i@ UL

>\ )
A N | /,; \ oo~

MRS. PRINGLE: Anote from Mr. Farnswortht {Shéiakes and ogens ]

DUNHAM: Yes, madam, theréJareWo ‘strahge gentlemen in the lower hall. They
presented this letter. He Whe was théﬁecretary All the other guests are upstairs in the
drawing-room, R}ENN' \t.mted twelve in all, including you and Mr. Pringle and Miss
Elaine. But the two gentlemen downstairs, madam, are waiting for your answer -- the one
gentlemen’s face looked very familiar, madam, but | just can't place him -- although I'm
sure I've seen his face somewhere--

MRS. PRINGLE: [She has been reading the note and is almost fainting with surprise and
joy.] Seen his face -- somewhere -- Oh, my goodness! Elaine -- It's the Prince of Wales!
DUNHAM: The secretary said you cut off the telephone or central disconnected you. He
was about to tell you that Mr. Farnsworth knew that the blizzard had prevented His
Highness from keeping an engagement way up town--

MRS. PRINGLE: The Prince of Wales sitting in my lower hall -- waiting for me to ask him to
dinner--

ELAINE: Then we'll be thirteen again--
DUNHAM: There's the secretary, Miss, he is ms bedyguard '. \ /‘ ‘

MRS. PRINGLE: [Rising to the( uc;:asmn ] Certmnly,/che secretary, Elaine. We shall be
fourteen at dinner -- Serv tfhe mcktalls, Dunham -- the guests may sit anywhere they
choose. Ishall bm}gluhéi ishhke in with me!

ELAINE: [Following.] But mother, wasn't it nice of Oliver Farnsworth to send a Prince in his
place?

MRS. PRINGLE: Didn't | always say that Oliver Farnsworth was the most considerate of
men?

|




ELAINE: | think | shall rfker\

MRS, PRII:{ Eil Eﬁlky'chi{dl It is tua late now to like Mr. Farnsworth. It's time now to like
the Pnnéé tarting out.] | always manage somehow to be the most successful of
hostesses! Thank God for the blizzard! g

CURTAIN

Alice Gerstenberg was born in Chicago, the only child of Julia and Erich Gerstenberg.
Gerstenberg's grandfather was a founder and member of the Chicago Board of Trade in
1848, a position Gerstenberg's father inherited later, which meant that the
Gerstenbergs enjoyed a higher standard of living than most middle-class families in
Chicago at the time. Growing up, Gerstenberg had ample travel experiences and social
indulgences including commercial theater. She attended a private school in Chicago
and later graduated from Bryn Mawr, a women'’s college in Pennsylvanﬁ\ in 1907. After
college, she spent some time in New Ypr{k wal i th'“ ehg l§‘ of David Belasco
before returning home to Chicago., /@wﬂeﬂﬂg Blay_ﬁy Alu:e Gerstenberg. This one- |
act social satire wa ’r‘s qu méci\ dcﬁaber 7, 1919 at the Maitland Playhouse, 332
Stockton Street\ F rahti on a bill with three other one-act plays. Mrs. Pringle is
preparin ﬁp&nner party to introduce her daughter, Elaine, to the city's most
eligible achelor Oliver Farnsworth. Illness and a blizzard force some guests to cancel,

and the three characters are compelled to try to salvage the evening and the dinner-

table layout

Given below are the difficult words from the unit. Look at their meanings and give
synonyms of each in the given column. The first one is done for you Also use these words
in yourown sentences. .

N ,cana;sy; : acovering supported by a frame

a board or leaf added to extend the length 6f
dining table '

the telephone exchange (Mrs. Pringle calls the
exchange to be put through a private number;
telephone numbers at that time consisted of
the district or area followed by the number)

NN

R s e 189 e S e



Unit 16

3 ong wnman. who is befng 1ntraduced
formally into society by appearing at a public

debutante

event
‘flasco  atotalfailure
gelatine asweet food
‘mustard plaster  apastemade fromblackmustardseeds T
place cards a small card with snmebodys name on it

squab  smallpigeon

temperament nature, character
rtran;pmtabmty " abilitytochange
vivacious: - livety, full of high spiﬁts

a. Answer ollowing questions.

Who was Mrs. Pringle?

Who were the two gentlemen waiting in the lower hall?

Did Mrs. Pringle like Oliver Farnsworth?

What was the impact of Oliver Farnsworth secretary calling to cancel?

What value did Mrs. Pringle see in a marriage between Elaine and Mr. Farnsworth?
Which word sums up Mrs. Pringle’s motivations in the story?

Why did Mrs. Pringle insist on having only 14 people at the dinner party?

How did Mrs. Pringle show reaction to the cook’s anger?

Why was Mrs. Pringle happy to know that the cook was in a bad temper?

Why did Mrs. Pringle make new place cardsandan ag:ﬁ
. Why was Mrs. Pringle so upset when f‘\ would be unable to
lay “F ourteen

ol o B G I

]
-
.

attend thedinner? O
12. Whatisthe the I'\li'L %\
~13. Discuss| of the plot of the play.

H?

b. Choose the best answer:
i. Mrs. Pringle is a woman of

"a) old ideas b) fashion c) courage




Unit 16

?“d the Party because she thinks everybody's

. Elaine didn't wan} to !
and nld?rtpiwn she s
a) marned b) fashionable c) silly
iii. Mrs. Pringle wanted _ to attend the dinner because she wanted
him to marry Elaine. '
a) Dunham b) Mr. Farnsworth ¢) Prince of Wales

b\ = A7 N

" e i Oral Communication
}w

* One - Act Play: - Students may perform this one act plny in the ttaﬁs They
must follow intonation patterns duﬂngdialuu&deﬂ?ém \ OV

» Work in small groups to rewew thE/pla’y Tak\e mm\e ‘to offer suggestions and
reasons funmprovement— - \\x LS he

* Do you think tﬁz d;alogues prmnde necessary information about the characters
and. t[hqf's\lt,i{aﬁ 7Exchange views about it.

* The Hléy becomes more forceful because the two characters are speaking
directly to one another. Opportunity should be provided to stage the play with
the help of the teacher.

Vocabulary and Grammar

Tenses: - Verbs come in three tenses: past, present, and future. The past is used
to describe things that have already happened (e. g. , earlier in the day,
yesterday, last week, three years ago). The present tense is used to describe
things that are happening right now, or things that are continuous

a. Simple Present NGO

The simple present is the most basic way | to say samething in- the present tense.
We use it to talk about more general thmgs that we'do often or regularly, or to
 state simple facts: T\ \| (\ |

To use the snEp{e prp&bnt we dnnt always need helping verbs. Simple present
sentence follows the pattern Subject + Present Verb.

| work at the mall.
They eat waffles for breakfast every day!
Irha likes candy.




b. Presenf q?ntinmu:i -
nﬂi‘eient continuous tense describes actions and/or events that are currently

happemng or going on now; in other words, things that are continuing to happen

right now in “real time. ” To do that, we use a verb ending in ing. Sentences in the

present continuous follow the Subject + Verb to be + ing Verb pattern:

Eshaal is listening to music.

| am eating a cheeseburger.

The dogs are barking loudly.

c. Present Perfect

We use the present perfect tense to share something that happened before, but is

still relevant or important now. To use it, we always place the auxiliary have

before the main verb, which shows that we “have done it,” and Wshould be

followed by the past-tense form of the main verb. It %y s{@/ngunﬁlsmg that even |

though we use a past verb, it's sml /the p(eserrt \te e*renmmber we are showing

that something %reaqy !;agpeﬁ but still matters now!

As you knnw the ﬁaﬁ‘,t fbrm 'of regular verbs ends in ed, but irregular verbs have

differ

F\e in the present perfect should follow Subject + Have/Has + Past form
of main verb: .
Ali has traveled to Rome, but she really wants to go Venice.
They have lived in that house for 10 years.
d. Present Perfect Continuous
The present perfect continuous expresses actions (or events) that we have been
doing and are still doing. To use it, we need to use have and been combined with
the continuous form of the verb (ending in ing) to show tﬁﬂt we “have been” doing
something. So, a sentence in the present perfect continuoﬂs follows the Subject +
have/has been + ing Verb form:
Hassan has been listening to music online.
They have been living in that house since 2005 O\Y

\\ \l v / '\\.‘~;_7 hae?

He has been takmg that exam for ¢ at fEﬂSt 2 haum,

( M \ § ~ \
a) Decide if the[ verb in brackets should be in the present simple or the present

cnntin,.lgﬁsi N 11

\N
™ He — (live) with his parents at the moment.

ii. Some areas of Italy —- (become) drier.
ifi. People ——- (live) longer if they live healthy life.
iv. This month they —- (work) on a new project.




b) Put the verbs mtt:Tt " ri'm ,fh;m"(ﬁrésént perfect simple).
i, He\:\(‘gﬂﬁt\jﬁ){m&e&éi‘s.

ii. She (not/see) him for a long time.

iii. (be / you) at school?

iv. We (buy) a new lamp.

c) Put the verbs into the correct form (present perfect continuous).
i. Ithas snowing a lot this week. (be, been, being)
ii. I'm tired because |
iii, Julie ______living in Italy since May. (has being, is been, has been)

been working out. ('ve, has, am)

iv. Hasit _____raining since you arrived? ( be, been , is) ~ “”

N\
AN (O NN
oo~

\
—_ ./ \L
—~ \\ [ S| A
S \.\' ICA!
"\ \ | \ o~
AR A
WA\ Y

\ - J
\ \\ -

(L \\ W VD)
A VoA~
3 Wit W |

d) Use the given phrasal verbs in Egnt\p_pc/e_-g}.,‘

run over o\ VI

ough g VWY
run throug NiNEiae

AN
run away. NN

run out -

send back

set up

Describe how realistic do you thirik th&ptay 157 WY/

« Doyou agree with theendﬁftheplay\?\!&iver sasons.

Write a di al?gﬂgjl?emwn any situation you like.

. Some‘ﬁu#ddr"éan"be derived from a play. Describe the humor in this play.

+ You have read the play. Now make a connection between characters, events,
motives and causes of conflicts in text across the culture.

A —————




oo

MISPLACED MODIFIERS /

When modnﬁm,!hdﬁbétwes and adverbs) are out of place, too far away from the
word they' #nudify, the sentence will be awkward or confusing. Misplaced modifiers
may be single words, phrases, or clauses. Study the following examples:

1. The following words are often misplaced: almost, only, just, even, hardly, not,
nearly, merely.

Most often, these words are placed in front of the words they modify.
Misplaced: My sister only has two children.
Correct: My sister has only two children.

2. Here is an example of a misplaced phrase:
Misplaced: The little girl screamed at the library at her mother.
Correct: At the library, the little girl screamed at her mnther(ﬁ \ (P fwﬁ/ W
3. Here is an example of a mlsplaced c@um \ “/( \ \&' ',' /_f’/--?‘ o2~
Misplaced: | held the tlgﬁat gghtly lh Qy hang that :ﬁy friend gave me.
Correct: | held the n\fket’ that my fhénd gave me tightly in rny hand.

w ToE
a. Clrdg\t"le sentence that is clearer. Be sure you can explaln your choice.

l A. Maria only attended school half of the time.
B. Maria attended school only half of the time,

ii A. Let me caution you to for every second keep you eyes on your own
paper.
B. Let me caution you to keep your eyes on your own paper for every
second.

iii A. With a little practice, you will be able to run nearly as fast as Carl
Lewis.
B. With a little practice, you will nearly be able tn run as fait as Carl
Lewis. 1A j/‘:’_)z )1} A

_ iv A. From our seats hlgh in the- stadiun{‘; we watche’d‘ fhe parachutists
- float to eafth SR\

\ o
B. We watche;l Ehe parachutlsts float to earth from our seats high in

- W AT méméa& arm.

v o Po ] il
« Discuss the two characters of the play with students,
m + Discussindetail about present tense and its kinds. Help them practice the concepts.

+ Opportunity should be provided to stage the play with the help of the teacher,

for

SRR 194 §

inalish-11 Federal ISB Sia13 SideR Procsss Blaak04/00m0798:A8:0%-97



The Last Leaf (Short %tory)

0 Henry

After complgﬂiné ﬂﬁ{ Iegson. students will be able to:

speak confidently and fluently in a wide range of contexts, For example, {conflict resolution, panel discussion,
role-play, dialogue, etc. ) to fulfil different purposes (exposition, argumentation etc.)

engage effectively in a range of collaborative discussions (one-on-one; in groups, and teacher-led) with diverse
partners on grade-level topics, texts, and issues

read with accurate pronunciation, appropriate pitch and voice variation suitable for fictional and nonfictional
texts

ask and answer higher-order questions to guide/assess reading

evaluate how authors use language, including figurative language, considering the impact on the reader.

use pre-reading and while-reading strategies to analyse and explore different layers of meaning within texts
including biases and opinions

comment on implied meaning, e.g. writer's viewpoint, relationships between characters etc.

apply skimming and scanning strategies for relevant information and main points in texts to identify the
writer's purpose, and intended audience. Infer the theme/main idea of the text, dlslingmshingbehveen fact
and opinfon where necessary N \
acquire and use appropriate words and phrases for reading, writing, speaking, am llitehing, 1ndependently
gather vocabulary when considering a wurdor phraselmporthnt far camphehemidn or expression.

evaluate the particular elements of a stuw o drama (E‘.E.\. hnw tbe setting §I1apes the characters or plot)
Evaluate stages of plot devdnpment in 3 ﬁctim\al, text.(exposition, setti ng, climax, character development,
resolution) \RLS!

evaluate di rgnd poln&'nf *riew"(e' g., first-person, third-person narrative) Examine an author's point of view
or purpow; atext

identify and correctly use patterns of word changes that indicate different meanings or parts of speech (e.g.,
correct form of verb)

use past tense correctly in speech and writing

demonstrate knowledge and application of parts of speech in oral and written communication in varying
degrees of complexity

produce legible work that shows the correct spelling of the conventions of punctuation and capitalization

use summary skills to write an objective summary of the given text and poems




Unit 17

Pre-Reading . [ AR
+ What &oé&s fhe title SIgmfy?
. If we are in a difficult situation, can hope sustain us? Let us read.

Reading

IN ASMALL PART OF THE CITY WEST OF
Washington Square, the streets have gone
wild. They turn in different directions. They k&
are broken into small pieces called “places.”
One street goes across itself one or two times.
A painter once discovered something possible
and valuable about this street. _Suppgse | a\
painter had some painting matepals for Whlfh |
he had not paid. Suppnse hé had no money. §
Suppose a mar\ﬁ{wﬁé to get the money. The
man m‘lﬁh&'walk down that street and
suddenly meet himself coming back, without having received a cent!

This part of the city is called Greenwich Village. And to old Greenwich Village the
painters soon came. Here they found rooms they like, with good light and at a low cost.

Sue and Johnsy lived at the top of a building with three floors. One of these young
women came from Maine, the other from California. They had met at a restaurant on
Eighth Street. There they discovered that they liked the same kind of art, the same kind
of food, and the same kind of clothes. So, they decided to live and work together.

That was in the Spring.

Towards winter a cold stranger entered Greenwich Village. No one could see him.
He walked around touching one person here and another there wnhtnsmy ﬁngers He was
a bad sickness. Doctors called him Pneumonia On the east side of the city he hurried,
touching many peclple but in the narruw streets of Greenwich Village, he did not move so
quickly. { NS

Mr, Hnmnlhtg @s not a nice old gentleman. m

A nice old gentleman would not hurt a weak little | pyt stydents in pairs , then have
woman from California. But Mr. Pneumonia touched | them read one paragraph at a time

Johnsy with his cold fingers. She lay on her bed | siently. When m‘-‘Yhﬁ“‘ih a:hk therm
almost without moving, and she looked through the C“::k;;;r:‘;e?v’:?l;*t‘srgf 4 ?
window at the wall of the house next to hers. parasrer -

T T N 196 R




One morning the b'-"f-. dﬂctﬂl‘ Spb% tn Sue alune in the hall, where Johnsy could
not hear. “ ” \] UV

“She hﬁs a very srnall chance,” he said. “She  KNIIRETTT
has a chance, if she wants to live. If people don't '
want to live, | can't do much for them. Your little Ask the s__tudents to locate the
. . specific information such as names,
lady has decided that she is not going to get well. Is dates, times, and numbers
there something that is troubling her?" mentioned in the story.

“She always wanted to go to Italy and paint a
picture of the Bay of Naples, " said Sue.

“Paint! Not paint. Is there anything worth being troubled about? Aman?”
“Aman?” said Sue. “Is a man worth—No, doctor. There is notaman.”

“It is weakness, " said the doctor. “I will do all | know how to do But‘ﬁvhen a sick
person begins to feel that he's going to die, half my\ work is uaéless Talkaw 'her about new
winter clothes. If she were 1nterested in thé futqre, her than és would be better.”

After the doctor had gﬁnensue ekt into the workroom to cry. Then she walked
into Johnsy's roo \$he carried some of her
painting ma;%ﬁélk ach she was singing.

Johnsy lay there, very thin and very quiet.
Her face was turned toward the window. Sue
stopped singing, thinking that Johnsy was asleep.

Sue began to work. As she worked, she
heard a low sound, again and again. She went
quickly to the bedside.

Johnsy's eyes were open wide. She was
looking out the window and counting—counting
back.

“Twelve,” she said; and a little later, “Eleven”;
and then, “Ten, “and, “Nine”; and then, (Eight;" and;

“Seven,” almost together o it of temmorke
When does of the work of a
Sue looked out the mnduw What\as there W0 towerr teerons meghied

count? There wafs gnliy Hhe side wall of the next house,
ashort disténée Away The wall had no window. An old,
old tree grew against the wall. The cold breath of winter had already touched it. Almost
all its leaves had fallen from its dark branches.

“What s it, dear?” asked Sue.

TN e 197




Unit 17

“Six,” said Johmy,lnawtestl&}&wer“ﬁueyre falling faster now. Three days ago
there were almo \qthdned It hurt my head to count them. But now it's easy. There goes
another one. Th reare only five now."”

“Five what, dear? Tell your Sue.”

“Leaves. On the tree. When the last one falls, | must go, too. I've known that for
three days. Didn't the doctor tell you?”

“Oh, | never heard of such a thing,” said Sue. “It doesn't have any sense in it. What
does an old tree have to do with you? Or with your getting well? And you used to love that
tree so much. Don't be a little fool. The doctor told me your chances for getting well. He
told me this morning. He said you had very good chances! Try to eat a little now. And then
I'll go back to work. And then | can sell my picture, and then | can buy something more for
you to eat to make you strong.”

“You don't have to buy anything for me,” sagJohr'riy;She(@/l@JaBkéd out the
window. “There goes another. No, Ifdpnf@(ap);; arfythmglcx\eai; .'Now there are four. | want
tosee the last onefallb@}p{gpigt)\t.\lﬁ[hrgl@'ti\@;gb&.ﬁ RSN

“ Johnsy, dear.f- said Sue,) “wilt you promise me to close your eyes and keep them
oINS T > .
closed? Wit Wﬁ‘ lise not to look out the window until | finish working? | must have this

picture rtf}ail y tomorrow. | need the light; | can't cover the window.”

“Couldn't you work in the other room?” asked Johnsy coldly.

“I'd rather be here by you,” said Sue. “And | don't want you to look at those
leaves."”

“Tell me as soon as you have finished,” said Johnsy. She closed her eyes and lay
white and still. “Because | want to see the last leaf fall have done enough waiting. | have
done enough thinking. | want to go sailing down, down, like one of those leaves.”

“Try tosleep,” said Sue. “| must call Behrman to
come up here. | want to paint a man in this picture, and
I'll make him look like Behrman. | won't be gone a

minute. Don'ttry tomove till Icome back.” - A Béﬁ hsh Had been a painter?

Old Behrmanwas a pamtgrwholwed on the first!
floor of their house. He-was past sixty. He'had had no
success as a Qg}igﬁe\r};‘l@rffﬁr@ﬁa:rihe had painted, without ever painting a good picture.
He had Mﬁ-@alk&d of painting a great picture, a masterpiece, but he had never yet
started it.

He got a little money by letting others paint pictures of him. He drank too much.

He still talked of his great masterpiece. And he believed that it was his special duty to do
everything possible to help Sue and Johnsy.

While-reading

\\\\\\

For how many gears Old

\

— e — = s 2

nvamee 198 L TOOREESENENIERETT T R




Sue found him in hisdaf'krﬂﬂm, and she knew that he had been drinking. She could
smell it. She tgldﬂﬂ‘“ about Johnsy and the leaves on the vine. She said that she was
afraid thﬁi")ohhs'y would indeed sail down, down like the leaf. Her hold on the world was
growing weaker.

Old Behrman shouted his anger over such an idea.

“What!” he cried. “Are there such fools? Do people die because leaves drop off a
tree? | have not heard of such a thing. No, | will not come up and sit while you make a
picture of me. Why do you allow her to think such a thing? That poor little Johnsy!”

“She is very sick and weak, " said Sue. “The sickness has put these strange ideas
into her mind. Mr. Behrman, if you won't come, you won't. But | don't think you're very
nice.”

“This is like a woman!” shouted Behrman. “Who said | will not come? Go. | come
with you. For half an hour | have been trying to sagjl;hgt\l«gjﬂfgjﬁg@@ This is not any
place for someone 5o good as Johnsy tolie sick. 'Someday | shall paint my masterpiece,
and we shall all go away@'DTnbeFEGOgQ’eM;\/ -

Johnsy was S\lﬁ?plngwhenthey went up. Sue covered the window and took
Behrmamiptg‘\tw\dﬁhef’fdom. There they looked out the window fearfully at the tree.
Then the',}%bked at each other for a moment without speaking. A cold rain was falling,
with a little snow in it too.

Behrman sat down, and Sue began to paint.

She worked through most of the night. Why was Johnsy looking towards

, the window?

In the morning, after an hour's sleep, she went
to Johnsy's bedside. Johnsy with wide-open eyes was looking toward the window. “l want
tosee,” she told Sue.

Sue took the cover from the window.

But after the beating rain and the wild wind that had not stopped through the
whole night, there still was one leaf to be seen against the wall. It\was the-last on the
tree. It was still dark green near the branch. But at the edgesitwas tlfring yellow with
age. There it was hanging from a branch riearly twenty feet above the ground.

“It is the last one,"SdeohnsyK choughhtwnuld éhrely fall during the night. |
heard the wind. It will fa‘lu! today,and Ishall die at the same time.”

“Dear, @éaf Johnsy!” said Sue. “Think of me, if you won't think of yourself. What
would 1 do?” ~

But Johnsy did not answer. The most lonely thing in the world is a soul when it is
preparing to go on its far journey. The ties that held her to friendship and to earth were
- breaking, one by one.

The day slowly passed. As it grew dark, they could still see the leaf hanging from its

whilei;eading .

.. i 199 .




N N\
branch against the wal And then, as the mght came the north wind began again to blow.
The rain stil! Peﬁti a@ inst the windows. When it was light enough the next morning,
Johnsy again commanded that she be allowed to see.

The leaf was still there.

Johnsy lay for a long time looking at it. And then she called to Sue, who was cooking
something for her to eat.

“I've been a bad girl, Sue,” said Johnsy. “Something has made that last leaf stay
there to show me how bad | was. It is wrong to want todie. I'll try to eat now. But first bring
me a looking-glass, so that | can see myself. And then I'll sit up and watch you cook.”

An hour later she said, “Sue, someday | hope to paint the Bay of Naples.”

The doctor came in the afternoon. Sue followed him into the hall outside Johnsy's
room to talk to him. N

“The chances are good,” said the doctor. He took Sug’ #ftnn shaking hand in his.
“Give her good care, and she'll get well, Amtnow l mu;t sée 'another sick person in this
house. His name is Behrman #ﬁafntE(QeMevﬁs\FVneumoma too. Mike is an old, weak
man, and he is ven(lkl There is 'nb'hope for him. But we take him to the hospital today.
We'llmake P&ﬁsi&ﬁéﬂb# Rim as we can.”

The next day the doctor said to Sue: “She's safe. You have done it. Food and care
now—that'sall.”

And that afternoon Sue came to the bed where Johnsy lay. She put one arm around
her.

“I have something to tell you", she said. “Mr, Behrman died of pneumonia today in
the hospital. He was ill only two days. Someone found him on the morning of the first day,
in his room. He was helpless with pain.”

“His shoes and his clothes were wet and as cold as ice. Everyone wondered where
he had been. The night had been so cold and wild.

“And then they found some things. There was a light that he had taken outside.
And there were his materials for painting. There was ‘
paint, green paint and yellow paint. And—, ||~ ('

“Look out the window, dear, at, the last leaf nn the-
wall. Didn't you wonder| whsr if never méved when
the wind waf bfcwind? Oh,,'my dear, it is Behrman's
great masiérbléce he painted it there the night
that the last leaf fell.”

i "“'\
i Post-reacing A

( Why did the .Luf not fall from the tree?)




Given below are the difficult words from the unit. Look at their meanings and give
synonyms of each in the given column. The first one is done for you. Also use these words
in your own sentences.

words Meanings e Synonyms
_quaint, attractively unusual or old-fashioned charming | ; (
prowl (of a person or animal) move around

restlessly and stealthily, especially in
search of or as if in search of prey

‘gable the part of a wall that encloses the end of a : m
pltched roof A~ / 2\ \ @ o
greenwich a district of New York Elt«} un the lower|west
Village side of, Manbattan adltlcmatty associated

with writers, .B\rlnst:azj and musicians

pewter  a@g rwl alloy of tin with copper and £ o
W\ \antimony (formerly, tin and lead)
chafing dish a metal pan with an outer pan of hot water,
used for keeping food warm
table d'’hoté a menu where multi-course meals with only a
few choices are offered for a fixed total price 5 Aol 0
chicory an edible Mediterranean plant whose bitter
leaves may be blanched and used in salads;
also known as endive
‘smite ' strike with a firm blow; defeat or conquer SR
chivalric displaying courteous behavior, as would be
- expected of an ideal knight
- zephyrs a soft gentle breeze
pneumonia lung inflammation caused by bacterial or

viral infection, in which the alr sacs hu wvzl'r
pus and may becﬂme solid) | .
pharmacopoeia a book, éspecially anbfﬁc:lal pubhcatmn
contapmng a\list of medicinal drugs with
\;_\:_k]{.;;:._]'i":-l’.t.,ﬂélli effects and directions for their use; a
- stock of medicinal drugs
jew's harp a small lyre-shaped musical instrument held
between the teeth and struck with a finger.
It can produce only one note, but
harmonics are sounded by the player
altering the shape of the mouth cavity

.
“ |




curative  a Wedlcme or"‘remedy

solicitous .\ ‘characterized by or showing interest or
concern

scorn the feeling or belief that someone or
something is worthless or despicable;
contempt

serrated having or denoting a jagged edge; saw-like

mastiff a dog of a large, strong breed with drooping
ears and pendulous lips

fancy

a thing that one supposes or imagines,
typically an unfounded or tentative belief or
idea; notion or whim o

. Answer the following:

How does Behrman's last painting become a masterpiece and save a life in "The
Last Leaf" by O. Henry?

Analyze the friendship between Sue and Johnsy in "The Last Leaf" by O. Henry.
How would you describe the character of Mr. Behrman in the story “The Last Leaf”
by O. Henry?

How is "The Last Leaf" by O. Henry a story of hope, friendship and sacrifice?

What is the point of view in O. Henry's short story 'The Last Leaf and what are
the three coincidences in this story? N2 \

Does Johnsy's doctor thmk that she w:ll recover fi rom her lllness and does Johnsy
planon getting better? AT\
How is pneu. 0 ‘,_\"‘ desc .é‘r

What is| ‘the hrgmﬁcance of ivy leaves?
Who was struck by pneumonia in the story the last leaf?

. What is the main idea of the story “The Last Leaf" by O’ Henry?
. Discuss the following elements of the plot of the story: exposition, setting,

climax, character development, resolution.

1202




b. Choose the best answe.-- | N

. Thereare/i. NN Y meteor showers each year
a) malana b) pneumonia c) fever

ii. Behrman painted the leaf because he wanted to save 's life.
a) Sue b) Johnsy c) a boy

iii. Towards winter a cold strangernamed _____ entered Greenwich Village,
a) Sue b) Behrman C) pneumonia

x’\‘

, ey \\J \, o -,
Recite a pﬁé}ﬁ"ln line with the theme of Hope keeping in mind the following
points:

a) Read the poem aloud. Remember that reading poems is different from prose.
Like fiction, poems mostly do not have many characters. Even if you do not
understand the meanings, it gives you pleasure while reading.

b) Discuss whatever you have understood, and what you think is the message in
the text.

c) Do the students agree that one must never lose heart? Even the adverse
circumstances must be overcome with hope and determination.

Past Tense \ ‘
The past tense is a verb tense used %r a past activity or a past state of being. For
example: N[} NN N ¢

| jumped in t‘.he lake.

| was happy.

a. Simple Past

The simple past is a “simple” way to share past events and can reflect something
happened from any time in the past. It's also the main way we express that we did

B oo - 203 BN



something one tlms; twti can also cover thmgs that happened many times. Its form is
easy: Subject rnJ Pést Verb.

| ate a cheese burger for dinner last night.

She ran fast!

b. Past Continuous

The past continuous tense shares events or actions that happened continuously; they
were going on for a while or over a period of time in the past. To show this, we use
verbs ending in ing. Sentences in the past continuous tense follow the form Subject +
Verb tobe +ing Verb:

| was eating a cheese burger.

The dogs were barking loudly.

c. Past Perfect A\

The past perfect tense describes something that we \ha% done %efore, but also
matters now. We use it to clarify that, oneevenf happened before another event in the
past. To use the past perfect, wevneed t\he au;uhary had before the main verb to show
that we “had done” someth\ng Then ‘'we need to add the main verb, in its past-tense
form. As you kq Vfr\ mhé\ﬁast form of regular verbs ends in ed, but irregular verbs have
different forms. , a sentence in the past perfect follows the form Subject + Had + |
Past form of main verb

Rayyan had traveled to Europe already, he wanted to go to Asia.

| They had lived in that house for 10 years.

He had taken the exam already and felt confident that he had done well.

d. Past Perfect Continuous

The past perfect continuous describes actions that we had been doing or had been
going on continuously before a certain time in the past but aren't going on anymore.
It's often used to express a situation where something had been happening until
| something else happened. To use it, we need to use had and been combined with the
| continuous form of the verb (ending in ing) to show that we “had been" domg the
action. oy Q ALY

Sentences written in the past perfect contmuuus follew Sub;ect +had been +ing Verb:
They had been living in that housesmce\ 006 bur. they moved.

He had been taking that exam far two hours when the teacher said, “Time's up!”

a) Make two sqﬁténces using simple present and past continuous tense.




SN \ ”

\ 1 ]T \J \

b) Put the verbs into the correct form (past perfect tense).
i-The children collected the chestnuts that (fall) from the tree.

ii-He (not / be) to Cape Town before 1997.

iii-When she went out to play, she (do / already) her homework.

iv-My brother ate all of the cake that our mum (make). -

AUNNY A

\ -

d) Use the given phrasal verbs in sentences:

shop around -
show off

sleep over
sort out
stick to

switch off

Writing

Summarizel rtﬁE story in) your own words.

Teacher's Point

» Help students to understand the theme of the story.
= Let them discuss their moment of tension, and how did they solve it?

T -1, )
T 205 P S



TTUNIT 18

T

. .

e

—

The Necklace short story)

Guy de Maupassant

N

ARN oL

QNN W
After completi‘ﬁfg’this lesson, students will be able to:

« speak confidently and fluently in a wide range of contexts, For example, (conflict resolution, panel discussion, role-
play, dialogue, etc.) to fulfil different purposes (exposition, argumentation etc.)

» perform a drama/ role play/play script showing different roles and scenarios through deliberate choice of dialogues/
speech

* read with accurate pronunciation, appropriate pitch and voice variation suitable for fictional and nonfictional texts

+ askand answer higher-order questions to guide/ assess reading

- evaluate how authors use language, including figurative language, considering the impact on the reader

- use pre-reading and while-reading strategies to analyse and explore different layers of meaning within texts including
biases and opinions )

- apply skimming and scanning strategies for relevant information and main points in texts to identify the writer's
purpose, and intended audience. Infer the theme/main idea of the text, distinguishing between fact and opinion
where necessary

+ evaluate the particular elements of a story or drama (e.g., how the setting shapes the characters or plot). Evaluate
stages of plot development in a fictional text. (exposition, setting, climax, character devefopment, resolution)

«  evaluate how authors use language, including figurative language, eonsidering the impacton'the reader

« identify and correctly use patterns of word\changes-that indicate \different meanings or parts of speech (e.g.
synonyms and antonyms) WU WY — ¢

»  use future tense correctly in speech andwriting (|

- demonstrate knowledg.ew_a,nﬁl‘aﬁ‘p‘l.‘ig:a‘t‘l_@ﬁadf \parts of speech in oral and written communication in varying degrees of
complexity o\ [\ [\ o\

- apply knowledge of parts of speech, tenses, sentence structure and other features of grammar and vocabulary to
understand how language functions in different contexts, make effective choices for meaning or style while reading,
listening and writing .

» produce legible work that shows the correct spelling of the conventions of punctuation and capitalizat_ion

» produce clear and coherent writing in which the development, organization, and style are appropniate to the task,
purpose, and audience

= write multiple paragraphs essays/stories; multi-stanza poems or playscript using mechanics of correct writing

+ engage and orient the reader by setting out a problem, situation, or observation and its significance, establishing one

or multiple point(s) of view, and introducing a narrator and/or characters; create a smooth progression of
experiences or events



Pre-Reading O\ \¢
What do you understapd b 'f;the title?
Read the ﬁrsﬁ pamﬂéri\ph of the story, then guess what the story
will be about.

Reading

She was one of those pretty and charming girls born, as if by an error of fate, into a family
of clerks. She had no dowry, no expectations, no means of becoming known, understood,
loved or wedded by a man of wealth and distinction; and so, she let herself be married to
a minor official at the Ministry of Education.

She dressed plainly because she had never been able to afford anything better, but she
was as unhappy as if she had once been wealthy. Women don't belong to a caste or class;
their beauty, grace, and natural charm take the plaf;e qf Inrth an,d famrly Natural
delicacy, instinctive elegance and a qulckw;determmé\thei\r p’cace in society and make
the daughters of common erst the &quals oQ:he very finest ladies.

She suffered endlessly, feellng sha was entitled to all the delicacies and luxuries of life,
She suffered bgcqysgl of i{he poorness of her house as she looked at the dirty walls, the
worn-out chalrs ‘and the ugly curtains. All these things that another woman of her class
would not even have noticed, tormented her and made her resentful. The sight of the
little Brenton girl who did her housework filled her with terrible regrets and hopeless
fantasies. She dreamed of silent antechambers hung with Oriental tapestries, lit from
above by torches in bronze holders, while two tall footmen in knee-length breeches
napped in huge armchairs, sleepy from the stove's oppressive warmth. She dreamed of
vast living rooms furnished in rare old silks, elegant furniture loaded with priceless
ornaments, and inviting smaller rooms, perfumed, made for afternoon chats with close
friends - famous, sought after men, who all women envy and desire.

When she sat down to dinner at a round table covered with a three- -day-old cloth opposite
her husband who, lifting the lid off the soup, shouted excitedly, “Aht) Beef stew! What
could be better, " she dreamed of fine dinners; of shlmng sﬂvemare of tapestries which
peopled the walls with ﬁgures from anuther tlme ‘and strange birds in fairy forests; she
dreamed of delicious dishes served nn waTEIerful plates, of whispered gallantries listened
to with an 1nscrutable pmpl!e asone ate the pink flesh
of atrout or the' *M%gs of aquail.

She had no dresses, no jewels, nothing; and these | Ask the students to locate the
were the only things she loved. She felt she was | specific information such as names,
made for them alone. She wanted so much to | dates, times, and numbers
charm, to be envied, to be desired and sought after. ( Mentioned in the story.

Whu‘le-reading

207



"'Gu de Maupassant

She had a rich friend, a fofthér schoalrate\at the convent, whom she no longer wanted to
visit because shesuffe]rﬂdsomuch ‘When she came home. For whole days afterwards she
would weep mi’thsﬁmﬁa{v, regret, despair and misery.
One evening her husband came home with an air of triumph, holding a large envelope in
his hand.

“Look, "he said, "here's something for you. "

She tore open the paper and drew out a card, on , ) )

. Make students consider other

perspectives of the text. After
"The Minister of Education and Mme. Georges | students Rave read the text one

Rampouneau request the pleasure of M. and Mme. | time, ask them to read it again and
Loisel's company at the Ministry, on the evening of | Pretend they are reading it from
Monday January 18th. " Gomgune else's point of view.

Instead of being delighted, as her husband had ANEOMNE
hoped, she threw the invitation onthejﬁl;leresenffut& ',l"a?iﬂ--l‘i‘h\u"tjt_éred:

"What do you want me FB"‘”"‘“““&“Z\

"But, my dear, | thoyg!qtymuwouldbepleased You never go out, and it will be such a
lovely occasiqp@iw&v‘ﬁ\a}fdt‘trouble getting it. Everyone wants to go; it is very exclusive,
and they're not giving many invitations to clerks. The whole ministry will be there. "

She stared at him angrily, and said, impatiently:

which was printed the words:

/

A\

g U | g \ \ \

PG\ WY
r 1\

N\
—~ A 'Ik/j \

"And what do you expect me to wear if | go?"
He hadn't thought of that. He stammered:" .
"Why, the dress you go to the theatre in. It seems very nicetome . . ."

He stopped, stunned, distressed to see his wife crying. Two large tears ran slowly
from the corners of her eyes towards the corners of her mouth. He stuttered:

"What's the matter? What's the matter?"

With great effort she overcame her grief and replied in a calm voicg{,‘\as she wiped
her wet cheeks: ) @O\

“Nothing. Only | have no dress and.so 1cantgoto/thls'pértﬂgrﬁwe your invitation to a
friend whose wife has bex;erclomest@n do.*

He was distraught, but tried again:~

"Let's see, M@thilé\J‘H‘owmuch would a suitable dress cost, one which you could use
again on other occasions, something very simple?”

She thought for a moment, computing the cost, and also wondering what amount she
could ask for without an immediate refusal and an alarmed exclamation from the

thrifty clerk.




Unit 18 y), Guy de Maupassant

At last she answered hesﬁantw{
"I don't know eitaﬁﬂly,l jBut't think I could do it with four hundred francs. "

He turned a liét"[e pale, because he had been saving that exact amount to buy a gun and
treat himself to a hunting trip the following summer, in the country near Nanterre, with a
few friends who went lark-shooting there on Sundays.

However, he said:

"Very well, | can give you four hundred francs. But try and get a really beautiful
dress. "

The day of the party drew near, and Madame Loisel seemed sad, restless, anxious. Her
dress was ready, however. One evening her husband said to her:

"What's the matter? You've been acting strange these last three days. "

She replied: "I'm upset that | have no jewels, not a smgle stone mwear I will look
cheap. | would almost rather not go to the party. \\\' /o (@)

“You could wear flowers, " t@ said, 'Thay ar’e weay fashmnable at this time of year.
For ten francs you could g( t u? three magnificent roses.

She was not con WJI

AN
"No; there is ﬁé&ﬁlg more humiliating than looking poor in the middle of a lot of rich
women. '

"How stupid you are!” her husband cried. "Go and see your friend Madame Forestier
and ask her to lend you some jewels. You know her well enough for that.

She uttered a cry of joy.
"Of course. | had not thought of that. "
The next day she went to her friend's house and told her of her distress.

Madame Forestier went to her mirrored wardrobe, took out a large box, brought it
back, opened it, and said to Madame Loisel:

“Choose, my dear: "

First, she saw some bracelets, then a pearl pecklace, thewa gald Venetlan cross set
with precious stones, of exquisite craft;t‘nanship She tried on the jewelry in the
mirror, hesitated, could not..bearfe pawththem, to give them back. She kept

asking:
"You have nuthrmg Jeléé?‘*
"Why, yes.. But | don't know what you like. '

Suddenly she discovered, in a black satin box, a superb diamdhd necklace, and her
heart began to beat with uncontrolled desire. Her hands trembled as she took it. She
fastened it around her neck, over her high-necked dress, and stood lost in ecstasy as




Unit 18

she looked at herself. \
Then she askqg ﬁﬁmbu@.ly, hesntatlng:
"Would you lend me this, just this?"
"Why, yes, of course. °

She threw her arms around her friend's neck, embraced her rapturously, then fled
with her treasure.

The day of the party arrived. Madame Loisel was a success. She was prettier than all the
other women, elegant, gracious, smiling, and full of joy. All the men stared at her, asked

her name, tried to be introduced. All the cabinet officials wanted to waltz with her. The
minister noticed her.

She danced wildly, with passion, drunk on pleasure, forgetting everything in the triumph
of her beauty, in the glory of her success, in a sort of cloud of happmess, made up of all

this respect, all this admiration, all these awakened ﬂesngeﬁyef tt{al;\sense of triumph that
is so sweet to awoman's heart. /-‘- \\ \ \

She left at about four o' cle;:mn thR mormng Her husband had been dozing since
midnight in a little des Sﬁl’t&d anteroom with three other gentlemen whose wives were
having a good t{ﬂ\ﬂ\' N

He threw over her shoulders the clothes he had brought for her to go outside in, the
modest clothes of an ordinary life, whose poverty contrasted sharply with the elegance of
the ball dress. She felt this and wanted to run away, so she wouldn't be noticed by the
other women who were wrapping themselves in expensive furs.

Loisel held her back.
"Wait a moment, you'll catch a cold outside. I'll go and find acab. "

But she would not listen to him and ran down the stairs. When they were finally in the
street, they could not find a cab, and began to look for one, shouting at the cabmen they
saw passing in the distance.

They walked down toward the Seine in despair, shivering with cold. At last they found on
the quay one of those old night cabs that one sees lr;Pan$ oply afte;dark as if they were
ashamed to show their shabbiness duri ng the day \

They were dropped off at the1r~dmor\kn the Rue des Martyrs, and sadly walked up the
steps to their apartmer t It was all-over, for her. And he was remembering that he had to
be back at his afﬁtqé at'ten o'clock.

In front of the mirror, she took off the clothes around her shoulders, taking a final look at
herself in all her glory. But suddenly she uttered a cry. She no longer had the necklace
round her neck!

"What is the matter?" asked her husband, already half undressed.

22210 .




She turned towards him, panir:-st‘ncken\.,. ~he
“Ilhave...lhave. ¢ H qq longer have Madame Forestier's necklace.”
He stood up, diséi'aught

"What! ... how!...That'simpossible!"

They looked in the folds of her dress, in the folds of her cloak, m her pockets,
everywhere. But they could not find it.
"Are you sure you still had it on when you left the ball?" he asked.
“Yes. | touched it in the hall at the Ministry."
"But if you had lost it in the street, we would have heard it fall. It must be in the cab.”
"Yes. That's probably it. Did you take his number?”
"No. And you, didn't you notice it?"
They stared at each other, stunned. At lasg I,m!sel pUt hisk{othe'son agam
"I'm going back, " he said, ovér thewhote{oute weWalked seeif | can findit."

He left. She remained i in her ball dress all evening, without the strength to go to bed,
sittingona chatr\mtﬁ ho' re, her mind blank.

Her husband returned at about seven o'clock. He had found nothing.

He went to the police, to the newspapers to offer a reward, to the cab companies,
everywhere the tiniest glimmer of hope led him.

She waited all day, in the same state of blank despair from before this frightful disaster.
Loisel returned in the evening, a hollow, pale figure; he had found nothing. '

“You must write to your friend, "he said, "tell her you have broken the clasp of her
necklace and that you are having it mended. It will give us time to look some more."

She wrote as he dictated.

At the end of one week, they had lost all hope.
And Loisel, who had aged five years, declared' B o O\

- "We must consider how to replace the ]ewel \ O\ WY [ (@A0~

The next day they took the]nox whlch had\-he[d 1t and went to the jeweler whose name
they found inside. He consylted his books.

“It was not |, mﬁaah'ue who sold the necklace; | must simply have supplied the case.

7 g

And so,. they went from jeweler to jeweler, looking for an necklace like the other one,
consulting their memories, both sick with grief and anguish.

Ina shop at the Palais Royal, they found a string of diamonds which seemed to be exactly

e A A U 6 T it b b e s 9211 -

. A!."'L A TR P U i S o .



Unit 18

......

what they were looking ﬂ:;r ‘It was’wortt;_fbrty thousand francs They could have it for
thirty-six thousand. “

So they begged 'tﬁb ]eweler not to sell it for three days. And they made an arrangement
that he would take it back for thirty-four thousand francs if the other necklace was found
before the end of February.

Loisel had eighteen thousand francs which his father had left him. He would borrow the
rest.

And he did borrow, asking for a thousand francs from one man, five hundred from
another, five louis here, three louis there. He gave notes, made ruinous agreements,
dealt with usurers, with every type of money-lender. He compromised the rest of his life,
risked signing notes without knowing if he could ever honor them, and, terrified by the
anguish still to come, by the black misery about to fall on him, by the prospect of every
physical privation and every moral torture he was about to suffer, he went to get the new
necklace, and laid down on the jeweler’s counter thirtycsix .thousgmiﬂ'ands

When Madame Loisel took the necklace back Maddme F Dresuer said coldly:
“You should have returned it SQQrier* Irmght ﬁave needed it.”

To the relief of h@r {p”eﬁhl she chd not open the case. If she had detected the substitution,
what would SHEJLIa‘L'\é thought? What would she have said? Would she have taken her friend
for a thief?

From then on, Madame Loisel knew the horrible life of the very poor. But she played her
part heroically. The dreadful debt must be paid. She would pay it. They dismissed their
maid; they changed their lodgings; they rented a garret under the roof.

She came to know the drudgery of housework, the odious labors of the kitchen. She
washed the dishes, staining her rosy nails on greasy pots and the bottoms of pans. She
washed the dirty lmen the shirts and the dishcloths, which she hung to dry on a line; she




, Guy de ' Maupassant

carried the garbage down_ tﬂ thestreet Eyery mommg, and carried up the water, stopping
at each landing to catﬁh her breath And, dressed like a commoner, she went to the
fruiterer's, the] ,gwp&eﬁs the butcher's, her basket on her arm, bargaining, insulted,

fighting over every miserable sou.

Each month they had to pay some notes, renew others, get more time.

Her husband worked every evening, doing accounts for a tradesman, and often, late into
the night, he sat.copying a manuscript at five sous a page.

And this life lasted ten years.

At the end of ten years they had paid off everything, everything, at usurer's rates
and with the accumulations of compound interest.

Madame Loisel looked old now. She had become strong, hard and rough like all
women.of impoverished households. With hair half combed, with skirts awry, and
reddened hands, she talked loudly as she washed the floor with gr&aﬁ Swrshes of
water. But sometimes, when her husband was at. theofﬁce /shE\sa“Fdown near the

window and thought of that evenmg a,t tﬁe ball 50 longﬁgo when she had been so
beautiful and so admiredo)! ‘

What would have hanrened 1t‘l §he had not lost that necklace? Who knows, who
knows? How\sﬁmhgé life is, how fickle! How little is needed for one to be ruined or
saved!

One Sunday, as she was walking in the Champs Elysées to refresh herself after the
week's work, suddenly she saw a woman walking with a child. It was Madame
Forestier, still young, still beautiful, still charming.

Madame Loisel felt emotional. Should she speak to her? Yes, of course. And now that

she had paid, she would tell her all. Why not?

She went up to her.

"Good morning, Jeanne."

The other, astonished to be addressed so familiarly by this common woman, did not
recognize her. She stammered: P\

"But - madame - | don't know. You must have made aii;n' :
"No, | am Mathilde Lmsel 0 anE
Her friend uttered a cry \ DN
"oh! . my ponr Mamilde, how you ve
changed! '

“Yes, | have had some hard times since |
last saw you, and many miseries . . . and all |

because of you! .




it 1 Necklace (Short Story),
.r.':‘ o A AL «..;.5..,.,,.,.,._(7, ok The eckwurt ‘S..., m!'.,—{-s*'}l? de Ma'iﬂfﬁ?l"&

"Me? How can that be?"C

"You remember th t dflamond\ necklace that you lent me
to wear to the\ Mim try party?”

"Yes. Well?”
"Well, | lost it."
"What do you mean? You brought it back.”

"I brought you back another exactly like it. And it has taken
us ten years to pay for it. It wasn't easy for us, we had very
little. But at last it is over, and | am very glad.”

Madame Forestier was stunned.
"You say that you bought a diamond necklace to replace mine?”
"Yes; you didn't notice then? They were very similar.”

And she smiled with proud and lnnocent pleasure./
Madame Forestier, deeply moved,| taﬁk both he; hands
“Oh, my poor Mathilde! ane was an im\tatlon! It was worth five hundred francs at
most! . . ." “\ J'\] | \J‘ NJ o\ e EPost reading\
* How long did it take to pay for the necklace?j

Henri René Albert Guy de Maupassant (5August 1850- 6 July 1893) was a 19th-century
French author, remembered as a master of the short story form, and as a representative |
of the Naturalist school, who depicted human lives and destinies and social forces in |
disillusioned and often pessimistic terms.

Maupassant was a protégé of Gustave Flaubert and his stories are characterized by
economy of style and efficient, seemingly effortless dénouements (outcomes). Many l
are set during the Franco-Prussian War of the 1870s, describing the futility of war and |
the innocent civilians who, caught up in events beyond their control, are permanently k
changed by their experiences. He wrote 300 short stories, six novels, three travel |
books, and one volume of verse. His first publlshed story, /"Boule de Suif* ("The |
Dumpling”, 1880), is often considered hIS masterp1ece‘ NIDZAARE

Theme A\ A Y

"The Necklace™" or"The D‘Jamand Neﬁklaoe“ (French La Parure) is an 1884 short story by
French writer Guy dem.aupassant 'Itis known for its twist ending (lronic ending), which |
was a hallmarlf ofde aupassant's style. The story was first published on 17 February | |
1884 in the French newspaper Le Gaulois. “The Necklace” is, at its‘heart, a story about
Mathilde's social ambition, which takes the form of a desire to acquire luxurious objects
that she cannot afford. Through her ruin, Maupassant warns against the dangers of
greed and criticizes those who ascribe too much value to wealth and material
possessions.

e e = e ——— 214 AR T —————er L
g Aty | R e = e L ey

e S A



Glossary

Given below are the difficult words from the unit. Look at their meanings and give
synonyms of each in the given column. The first one is done for you. Also use these words

in your own sentences.

words Meanings Synonyms
antechamber small room next to main bedrooms in a house or waiting room
apartments
ante-room small room before a main room
boudoirs bedrooms =
breton the place, or someone who comes frq;n N /" \ € \: Y
chagrin feeling of embarrassmen;and annnyance N A
candelabra branched cand’teholde&fqr more than one candle
coupe’s four whq led horse drawn carriage with two seats
W \ilﬁsﬁd 'd nd two seats outsides
disdain d1sl1ke
finesse elegant skill
frowsy untidy in appearance
gallantries polite words or actions
garret aroom at the top of a house just under the room
homage to show respect

incessantly constantly

a. Answerthe fO"O\lving quesngns, AR T

1. Why was qhilde ‘unhappy with her life at the beginning of "The Necklace” by
Guy de Maupassant??

2. Why Mathilde did not to like to visit her rich friend?
How did Mathilde and her husband get money to pay for the new necklace?

4. What was it for the couple after they had returned the necklace to Madame
Forestier?

5. How does Mathilde change as a result of her experience in “The Necklace™?

g

- e ——— ~

gl A b R G % i, 5

- Ty T A g P T




Unit 18

Do you think Mad me-,‘Lmsel got what she deserved?

hat is thef the%é of "The Necklace™?

Write a character sketch of Madame and Mister Loisel.

Would you agree that Mathilde feels the end to borrow a necklace?

6.
7.
8.
9.

b. Choose the best answer:
i. Mathilde did not to like to visit her rich friend because she was unhappy with
her .
a) husband b) looks C) poverty

ii. Her husband worked every evening, doing accounts for a tradesman, and often,
late into the night, he sat copying a manuscript at sous a page

a) four b) five ‘.<-K'j:t\.} 51}1:/:\ L
iii. was still young, 5t1ll beaunfu’t stlﬂ charm‘mg ‘after ten years.
a) Madame Forestier  _ ,..—«b]:"Mainde ~  ¢) Madame Loisel

Activity

+ Represent one or two of the major points of action of the story: when Madame
Loisel borrows the necklace from her friend, the affair... through a scene.

+ Get into pairs and represent the last part of the story where Madame Forestier
and Mathilde Loisel found each other after 10 years. Try to represent Mathilde’s
reaction when Madame Forestier tells her that the necklace, she lent her was
animitation indeed.

Future tenSl: © -

It shows that the timeline of the action hasn't actually occurred yet, but will later.
For example:

- | will write a book.

| He will be writing a book.

R RS 216




— [
\ [ |
N\ |/

mﬁw__._mntf%.ﬂ e g)@,j,g;ﬁ.,.ﬁck__.!.ai:.ﬁ._IEL'_O,rt.,_Stﬁg!zb,. Guy de Maupassant
Types of Future_TgP,§ﬁg§, AR\BIE Ak

a. Simple Futare! )\

You can use the simple future to talk about something (like an action or event) that will
happen any time in the future, and also to talk about something that will happen one
time. In the simple future, we use the base form of the verb with a modal auxiliary, like
will. So, the simple future follows the form Subject + modal + Base Verb.

| will eat a cheeseburger for dinner.

Jane might buy a new car tomorrow.

b. Future Continuous

The future continuous tense talk about things will be happening continuously in the
future. To show this, we use a modal, the verb to be, and a verb ending in ing.
Sentences in the future continuous tense follow the Subject + modal + Verb to be
+ ing Verb model: N

Zara will be driving to work. o ~NB\
| will be running;the race at 6pm. O~ \(\\\\\\\Y/
The dogs will be barking loudly when you arrive.
c. Future Perfect N7\
The future perfect ﬁénﬂ ‘shows that an event will have happened before another thing
in the future. It often expresses that by the time one action or event happens, another
will have happened. To use the future perfect, we need to place the modal will and the
auxiliary have before the.past form of the main verb (this shows that we “will have
done” an action). Using a past verb in the future tense may seem confusing, but
remember, it's to show that something will have happened before another thing, so we
needit!

50, a sentence written in the future perfect should follow the Subject + will +
have + Past form of main verb pattern:

Faiza will have traveled the world by the time she turns 30.

They will have lived in 10 states once they move to New York.

He will have taken the exam already, so he won't need to study more.

d- Future Perfect Continuous AR
The future perfect continuous describes events and/or actionsthat have been going
on continuously until a certain time in the future. Qften,)it's used to show cause and
effect; in other words, because one thng will -have been happening, another will
happen. To use it, we needito combine have and been with the continuous form of the
verb (ending in i‘ng)._»,A:.\_w;jgg_#_hﬁwvs'fth‘a’t the action or event “will have been” happening.

A sentence mﬁhé fliture perfect continuous follows Subject + modal + have been
+ ing Verb:

Mother will have been working for 12 hours, so | don't think she will want to cook.

I should have been watering the plants every day; | hope they won't die.

They will have been living in that house for 10 years this March.

He will have been driving since noon, so he will need a rest.




Unit 18 uy de Maup

=

a) Rewrite the underli neJ fnrn‘us withi\e futuressi mple or continuous.
i) Don't call me at Wlntwck I'am going to fly to Spain.

ii)l suppose we 're going to stay at a hotel next summer.

iii) Do you think it is snowing at the weekend?

Iv) Is the coat OK.? - Yes, | am taking it.

Ry /—\\ “, \ "\J ‘-,5
- 7 =
A \ \! '//; \ g\~
A\ A “ IO

\ A

\v,y‘l\\'
[J

V) This time on Sunday wwn?q mg{‘{ F; \ m:e \ ) L

s ||\J\“\i\|

N

vi) Every student is using a computer in the near future.

b) Complete the sentences with the future perfect or the future continuous.
disappear, arrive, cook, watch, replace, move, finish, fly, teach, listen

i. When we reach Portsmouth, we___ . our voyage.

ii. When | drive my car | to the new CD.

iii. In a twenty years' time thousands of species , - from this
planet. AYEOMN

iv. In a few hours' time we _____2._ N on the plane.

v. I'll meet you at fdur o'c 1uck \t\four?‘l m-afl’ald I English.

vi. We NrAN Jl ) the wheels before you
come' bﬁék from the shup

vii.Shall | buy a pizza? - There's no need. | as usual.

viii.I'm sorry, we can't come tonight. We the new
documentary on TV.

iX. My new PC , by the end of this week.

e e o —————————
e A e T TR TR i




Unit 18

| The Necklace (Short Story), Guy de Maupassant

in their new

x. The Jﬂhnsong Pl

c) Punctuate the given lines. |
but madame | dont know you must have made a mistake

No | am Mathilde Loisel

d) Give antonyms of the following.

natural _ silent strange _____ o0\
longer slowly o discovero oo

e) Use the given phrasal verbsiﬁsenteﬁ%es
switch on \JH”'\I Nl“ )
take apart
take back
take off
take out
tear up

)

Literary Devices:
Irony PPN L A -
Irony is about how your perceptionisdiﬁ‘erentfrom how something really is. Irony has
disappointed m ‘Qﬁﬁ@d;‘erﬂvﬁéhfthey thought something would happen, but it didn't.
It comes in different forms like dramatic, verbal, or situational irony. For example:

My old English mastiff dog is named “Tiny”. (situational irony)

My son is as innocent as the devil. (verbal irony)

Flashback
You have flashbacks in life. For example, the smell of baking cookies takes you back to |

Y A e e e e e T — - .- = -y 7 At
| o 219 X




C unit 13 [ mmJ,Tz @*ﬁ féf_&w de Maupassant

a time you spend with, gur grandmother Flashbacks in literature are the same. These

are story elemphrﬁ é ving you insight to a previous moment or experience.

Standing on the edge of the cliff, she was suddenly transported back to the time when

she was two. She remembered the feeling of her heart pounding as she looked down at
the ground, seconds before falling.

Tone

Has anyone ever reprimanded you for your tone? Tone tells us a lot about what a
character is thinking, or the feeling the poem is trying to portray. It can be a happy,
energetic, or even melancholy tone.

The exhilarated girl danced along the sidewalk making her way to her friend's house.
(upbeat, happy tone)

Alliteration (O
A type of repetition, alliteration is when a letter isilsed rematédiy tu add emphasis
and interest to a work. For example' \ /70 \( -

Sleepy sheep were shorn on Suridav
The big black bw' ahﬁéd blandly on the bark.

Symbolism NN

Symbolism is a fun literary technique. Writers use this to add meaning to an object or

person within a story. Depending on the writer's creativity, the level of symbolism can
be basic or unique. For example:

In Harry Potter and the Sorcerer’s Stone, the scar on his forehead symbolizes not only
his past but his future.

Plot Twist
Plot twist is a literary technique that introduces a radical change in the direction

or expected outcome of :L e plot in a work of fiction. When it happens near the
end of a story, it is known as a twist or surpﬂse ending

¥

« Exploit the text of the story “The Necklacef’
irony. '

« Find examples of alhteratmn n{“The .‘Necklace

« What moment.s halve been revealed to the readers through the flashback
techmq\u& in "The Necklace?

« Do you find twist in the plot of the above read story? Explain.

Teacher's Point

m « Discuss with students about the evils of today’s world. Ask them to perform an evil role in the form of

role-play. Each character will reveal his bad quality and its impacts. Help your students in making a
positive citizen of society.

to ﬁnd examples of symbohsm and

o iy

B T 020 T

J'-j‘

Al i i il e S o



